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COMPANY'S WEBSITE
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
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PRC
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Mr. Zhang Lei (Chairman)

Mr. Zhong Tianxiang (CEO)
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Mr. Chen Yin
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Qin Youguo (appointed on June 14, 2013)
Mr. Cui Jian (appointed on June 14, 2013)
Mr. Hui Chun Ho, Eric (appointed on June 14, 2013)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Hui Chun Ho, Eric (Chairman)
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Mr. Cui Jian
Mr. Zhang Lei

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Cui Jian (Chairman)
Mr. Hui Chun Ho, Eric
Mr. Zhang Lei

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35th Floor
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Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Hong Kong:
DLA Piper Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Bank of China
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
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INVESTORS AND MEDIA RELATIONS CONSULTANT

Porda Havas International Finance Communications
Group

Units 2009-2018, 20/F, Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3150 6788

Fax: (852) 3150 6728

Email: moma@pordahavas.com
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy FCS (PE), FCIS
(resigned on April 1, 2014)
Mr. Wong Tak Chun CPA (appointed on April 1, 2014)

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, PO Box 1586
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
22nd Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
Daiwa Capital Markets Hong Kong Limited
Level 28, One Pacific Place

88 Queensway
Hong Kong
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Company Profile

Modern Land (China) Co., Limited (hereinafter referred to as
"we”, "us”, “Modern Land” or the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries as the “Group”) is a company listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) from July 12, 2013 with Class 1 qualification in real
estate development in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company has always been adhering to the development
philosophy of “Technology Buildings and Quality Life”, sticking to the
development philosophy of “Natural Simplicity, Harmonious Health,
Simple Focus, and Endless Vitality” and focusing on the theme
of “Action of Loving My Homeland” to bring home owners the
sincere and real life experience and achieve positive social effect and
economic benefits.

The Company pours herself to a homeland of “Green + comfort +
energy-saving + full life cycle”. In 2002, “MOMA" is viewed as
an iconic brand in the energy-saving real estate industry of China.
MOMA consists of four text graphics “M"“*O""M"*“ A", Two “M"
symbolizes our home, “O" represents the origin of the universe
and “/\" stands for human. The left and right half of the pattern
symbolizes architecture and life respectively, which in turn provides
a vivid interpretation for the slogan of the Company of “Technology
Buildings and Quality Life”. For many years, a robust and standard
development mode of product line has been established. The top
three product lines of Wan Guo Cheng MOMA, Shang Pin Ge
MOMA and Man Ting Chun MOMA have won high praise from
the market. With the successful operation within three product
lines, in 2013, in order to solve the two challenging problems in
21st century i.e. sustainable development and aging population,
the Company practiced the strategy of “heating and cooling unique
solution + air quality unique solution + energy consumption and
operation cost reduction unique solution + full life circle aging
population solution + industry-leading solution under the theme of
sustainable development”.
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The Company has its own “Research, Development and Design
Department” with a number of self-designed technical architecture
systems such as a geothermal pump system, ceiling radiation cooling
and heating system, exterior temperature preservation system,
the high-performance exterior window system, overall fresh air
displacement ventilation system and noise reduction system, which
outfit MOM A products with hi-tech value added. When creating a
high comfortable level, with the indoor temperature around 20-26°C
and humidity around 30%-70%, which fits the definition of “most
comfortable environment” within 1SO7730, its energy consumption
is estimated to be only 1/3 of the energy compared to that of other
normal residential buildings in China. In the one-hundred-year
long the course of use, a slew of energy and cost will be saved for
contributing a pleasant ecosystem for the society.



BRIRR -

AANZBREEREE () ERARESRT
([EEg)]) MAREAEEHZ2013F12
A31HIEFEZ EFOIEERSE -

FRIH B B E B S 4

03F RAEEERY FEZARAHKE
EH—F o 2013578128 - AR ARG
BRINREE AT ER LT - 2 E AR R
REBE—EFTHNER - Z@A 2% ARQF
RINERBHFTISRITISEETELEZE - 2
NFERBEREATSHEE —REAUREK
DRTERTE - et E BB T B
A TE ©

FX T Y TR E 3% R

013F RAEBEELERTBHEN—F - K&
BANHEEBBHARKL652B8 L H
FYMEALNIBESBHARE4L,13928 8
T BUAHHEHESENARK226088
T MEAHIEE®MIEL368,412F H K
HEHESFEAHRHARYN,235.27T
BAUAYIEE 724 HEHESEHA
R#131,004.575C ° EH2012F LL 8 & 485
EBERENS42%  AHMBEEERBERY
14.1% -+ SHEHEILRE36.6% °

REE - EEE2013FFIR THBES0%E
HHERRMEREBE -

ERE®E

Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

[, on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Modern Land
(China) Co., Limited, am pleased to present the business review of
the Group for the year ended December 31, 2013 and its prospects.

SUCCESSFUL ENTRY INTO INTERNATIONAL
CAPITAL MARKET

2013 is a significant and strategically meaningful year for the
development of the Group. The successful listing of the Company’s
shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on July 12, 2013
was a milestone in the development of the Company. The Company
also successfully completed the issue of US$150 million senior notes
in the bond market in three months after its listing, showing the
recognition of the international capital market for the Company as
a dedicated pioneer in the comfortable and energy-saving property
development market.

SUCCESSFUL LEAP FORWARD

The results of the Group significantly improved in 2013. The
Group recorded contracted sales of approximately RMB4,365.2
million, including contracted property and car parking spaces
sales of approximately RMB4,139.2 million and RMB226.0 million,
respectively. The contracted property sales area was approximately
368,412 square meters (sgq.m.), and the average selling price
was approximately RMB11,235.2 per sq.m. The contracted car
parking spaces sales were 1,724 and the average selling price was
approximately RMB131,094.5 per car parking space. The contracted
sales increased by approximately 54.2% while the increase in
the contracted sales area and the average selling price were
approximately 14.1% and approximately 36.6%, respectively as
compared to 2012.

In view of the above, the Group successfully achieved its development
target of over 50% growth in terms of contracted sales in 2013.
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PROPERTY WITH GREEN+COMFORTABLE+
ENERGY-SAVING+FULL LIFE CYCLE FEATURES

The Group has been committed to be a socially responsible company
since its establishment in 2000 in Beijing with a belief in providing
customers with green+comfortable+energy-saving+full-life-cycle
residential communities. The Group is engaged in construction of
green, comfortable and low-carbon communities. As of December
31, 2013, Modern Green Development Co., Ltd. (“Modern Green
Development”) and its subsidiaries held a total of 41 patents, and
applied for 8 other patents which were being examined. In 2013,
both Nanchang Man Ting Chun MOMA and Modern MOM A
passed China Green Building Three-Star Certification. Up to now,
the Group is the only company that has passed the top certification
for green building in China — China Green Building Three-Star
Certification twice. This tremendous recognition of our core
competitiveness from the certificating institution further solidified our
confidence in the cultivation in this niche market.

SUCCESSFUL BUSINESS GROWTH

In 2013, the Group acquired a total of five parcels of land in
Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, Wuhan, Hubei Province, Beijing and
Jiujiang, Jiangxi Province (of which two parcels of land are located in
Nanchang). The Group always responds to regional difference with its
own technologies based on local climate conditions and local social
and economic conditions. By providing regions south to the Yangtze
River, where the temperature difference was large in different
seasons, with effective solutions to the humid and cold winter with
significantly lower energy consumption and meeting increasing
market and customer demand for green property in regions north to
the Yangtze River, where the air pollution was aggravating, the Group
has been exploring new operations proactively. Since operating only
in Beijing at the beginning, at present, the Group has successfully
expanded its operations into Shanxi Province, Hunan Province, Hubei
Province and Jiangxi Province. Looking forward, in addition to actively
developing its existing businesses in these regions, the Group will
devote efforts to expand its operations into other regions. Before
deciding to enter into new regions, the Group will, depending on
the market conditions, geographic locations and climate factors,
select the most suitable products or portfolios among three product
lines: Wan Guo Cheng MOMA, Shang Pin Ge MOM A and Man
Ting Chun MOMA, to meet the ongoing demands for full life
circle industrialised community development by the markets of these
regions. From a long term perspective, the Group seeks to invest its
resources in the first, second and third-tier cities at the same time, so
as to ease the impact of the national real estate austerity policies and
the real estate market conditions on the Group.



BEME

BEMEHRAEBEAFEEZES AR
MEREIFHEBEFEEE+ 2 oA
EEREMZOBEFEN - 2013F - KEFERK
ZHERERMNERAEREEEWESR -
HERNEBEEXEHEREZETSEHEMOMC
E% (PRHETEE) - S Z B~ America Modern
Green Senior Garden MOMC (Houston) °
T8 B 4215 H48.475 A - 2,111,404 5 &
R #1196,156F 5K - REX1 - B2EEE
211404 F FRHR (MEEES)  c ERE
T REEARE - FAETR2019F 2 B ALE -
ZEBRENEREFAE  HERNEFH
E-EZFETE - ZFHEPL  BEXRE
RABERE - BBEARK  NEBRAERME
ERFBEAENMAZE : JREZRMA
OZERt e Al EEHMESKARKFH
EmE— BT R2RNE D o XEBEEEE
BEEZWEZTZI TS IER  AREEE
BEWEEEESR [RFED ] HAITTEN
EEFER -

RE& - AABRREZRRLOEHBRRNS
NAXPFMEE  AEBLHAEEEZR
EREGNEREIFHB NN ITIERKRH

=
IS

£

201453 H24H

EE®E

Chairman’s Statement

REAL ESTATE FOR THE SENIORS

Real estate for the seniors is of importance to the Group, in the
way that it will enable the Group’s products to make better use of
the core competitiveness of sustainable development + full life cycle
residence. In 2013, the Group commenced a real estate project for
the senior in Pearland, Texas, the U.S. The Chinese name of the
project is EBEE K4 EESEMOMCES (RETTE) while its English
name is America Modern Green Senior Garden MOMC (Houston).
The total site area of the project was 48.47 acres (or 2,111,404
square feet or approximately 196,156 sq.m.), with floor area ratio
of 1 and floor area of 2,111,404 square feet (excluding car parking
spaces). The project will be developed in 6 phases. It is expected that
all units will be occupied by 2019. The project comprised apartments,
apartment hotels, offices, trading center, ancillary facilities and
residential units all specialised for the seniors. Looking forward, the
real estate market will face two major challenging issues: sustainable
development and ageing of population. Therefore, real estate for the
seniors should not be ignored in the real estate market in the future.
The Group believes that when the real estate for the senior attracts
more market’s attention, the Group will become the leading real
estate developer in that area.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend sincere thanks to
our shareholders for their unwavering support and trust, and the
Group would like to express its deepest gratitude to the Board, the
management team and all staff of the Group for their dedication and
diligence!

Zhang Lei
Chairman

March 24, 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

AIRRE :

RE20145F - P EIETH N E ETTE S #
BRIMERLN  BRECNEERIZBE -
2B R H DA E R B BER A H &R
BB EENFWERE - Bt FSERE
ZEEHREBEEGELANERRE - BEEF
RIEFTIGEEREEPERTEEIER - BE
EW AP ER A TIS — R - BEE AN
REMERDERBEROHEE - BFES R
P ETREBEAORBEFIZL T @ - §E
B EITEAENFREAKRR TSN T AE
o BERBEAZBRRNEEL W AR
FZHEENBEFTRBEERREXE
EONEEBIE MIEREBL - EZHRE
B &EEaRE;AEEmmEN L HHtLE
R AMISBRBEREERE D - BEEM
BAORTENRA - £= « =R R
—REFFRER REHETERE
BERREHEENRE -

AEEBZBIAL DM AAARBERENH
BEMSRENE(C  BIEIAZEEE
BREEN - ETEZAIFEANAERE -
ERBEWT - B EERRHAE - BB
MERMAHIAR - BN - ARRSE
BROF N - BRI - NEREGEEETT
AEE(L  BRERECEBRG  HERER

PROSPECTS:

Looking forward, the Chinese government will continue to implement
its stringent macro-control policies over the real estate sector as a
normal practice in 2014. The purchase restriction policy will be still in
place for major cities to suppress speculative real estate investments,
and ensure the consumers with low purchasing power is provided
with affordable housing. With its policy of letting the market play
a decisive role in resource allocation, combined with development
in the integration of urban and rural construction land, and the
accelerated real estate tax legislation and implementation, the
Chinese government will gradually shift its regulation and control
from administration orientation to market orientation in the long
run. Later on when there are more tightening policies, consumers
will change from speculating/investment to solely residential purpose.
The land supply for affordable housing, economic housing and owner
occupation will constitute a larger part in the market. The advance of
urbanisation will bring about a new round of housing demand in the
second and third-tier cities, which are going to safeguard stable and
healthy development of the real estate sector.

The Group will closely monitor and analyse all adjustments to relevant
policies and market changes. It will successively introduce a series of
investment models and conduct more cooperative development in
innovative modes. By actively exploring new projects and expanding
its land bank, it will minutely cultivate its market in existing cities
and provinces to enable sustained development. At the same time,
the Group will maintain its internal optimisation, which includes
deepening project design, developing standardized operation process
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Management Discussion and Analysis

and management thereof; analysing the capital market and financing
plans; enchaining sales and marketing capability; and establishing and
perfecting the system of internal control. It is the Group’s objective to
provide its customers with green, comfortable, energy-saving and full
life cycle residential properties. Leveraging its unique brand and its
edge on constant temperature, humidity and oxygen supply products,
it will strive for great economic return in the sub-market of green
real estate for shareholders, and take up more responsibility in the
sustainable development of the society.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s revenue is mainly attributable to sale of properties and
rental income.

Sale of Properties

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group’s revenue from
sale of properties amounted to RMB3,427.6 million, representing
an increase of 76.2% as compared to 2012. The Group delivered
367,098 sq.m. of property in terms of total gross floor area (“GFA")
and 1,033 units of carparks in 2013. Gross profit margin of sale of
properties amounted to 39.5%, a slight decrease from the level in
2012. Recognised average selling price (“ASP") was RMB8,950.0 per
sq.m. and that for car parking spaces was RMB137,594.4 per unit for
the year ended December 31, 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Revenue by project

EBHMOMA (KR)

Wan Guo Cheng MOMA (Taiyuan)
HEREEMOMA

Nanchang Man Ting Chun MOMA
EXMOMA

Modern MOM A
NIHEZEMOMA

Jijiang Man Ting Chun MOM A
MOMA B EH#

MOMA Forest Forever
EDOREFEMOMA

Changsha Man Ting Chun MOM A
fikmEBEMOMA

Xiantao Man Ting Chun MOMA
BEHMOMA (KY)

Wan Guo Cheng MOMA
(Changsha)

EEHMOMA

Wan Guo Cheng MOMA
HEMOMA

YMOMA

iMOMA

iMOMA

FEMOMA

Shangdi MOMA

(]
Car park

At
Total

Table 1: Breakdown of revenue from sale of properties of

the Group

*  After deducting sales tax

2013§ 20124

BRI B

THEREE nHEEES

AEHEN AEREN

2013 2012

Total saleable Total saleable
[ GFA or units TIER Wz GFA or units THEE
Revenue delivered ASP Revenue delivered / ASP
AREFT, AREFT,/
FHK ) Ehk
AEEFR Frk RMB’000 AREFT FhHK RMB’000
RMB’000 sq.m. per sq.m RMB’000 sq.m. per sq.m
837,691 60,791 14 572,164 53,153 11
661,172 104,900 6 99,039 16,248 6
629,719 12,041 52 346,150 8,296 42
472,190 88,709 5 - - -
229,064 8,770 26 106,751 4,396 24
196,670 38,704 5 432,153 84,381 5
126,162 38,608 3 - - -
87,981 13,289 7 73,777 11,516 6
39,888 1,003 40 64,120 2,248 29
3,488 197 18 22,547 1,062 21
1,453 86 17 11,747 514 23
- - - 8,395 272 31
3,285,478 367,098 9 1,736,843 182,086 10
1,033 unit 138/unit 1,113 unit 188/unit
142,135 BEQ 184 208,714 (& B /£

3,427,613 1,945,557
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HE2013F12A318LFE - AEEEGH
tHE B E A RE4,365.28 8 T 0 82012
FR EAS42% - AEEHESRESLER
&368,412F KM, 724BE 1 - WEHZE
2012F12A318 IEFE 7 5 £14.1% A0
62.2% °
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Contracted Sales

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group achieved
contracted sales of RMB4,365.2 million, representing an increase of
54.2% as compared to 2012. The Group sold 368,412 sq.m. in total
GFA and 1,724 units of carparks, representing an increase of 14.1%
and 62.2%, respectively as compared to the year ended December

31, 2012.

Table 2: Breakdown of contracted sales of the Group

*  Before deducting sales tax

2013F 20124
BE je:3
ERERE EiEREN
BHHE 2013 BHIHE 2012
Contracted GFA THEE Contracted GFA THER
Sales or Unit ASP Sales or Unit ASP
AREFTL K AREFTL AREFT Frk AREFT
RMB'000 sq.m. RMB'000 RMB'000 sq.m. RMB'000
ERMOMA
Modern MOMA 1,145,392 18,413 62 525,703 11,612 45
BEEMOMA (KR)
Wan Guo Cheng MOM A (Taiyuan) 1,118,781 81,338 14 402,008 31,174 13
ROHBEREFEMOMA
Changsha Kaifu Man Ting Chun MOMA 974,901 151,390 6 374,506 63,428 6
NIREFEMOMA
Jiujiang Man Ting Chun MOM A 246,775 42,885 6 399,595 74,843 5
MOMAEE#
MOMA Forest Forever 229,274 7,681 30 82,663 3,221 26
HEREFEMOMA
Nanchang Man Ting Chun MOMA 128,859 17,514 7 678,448 101,304 7
HREFMOMA
Xiantao Man Ting Chun MOM A 120,606 34,810 3 92,402 26,977 3
FRIEMOMA (BD)
Shang Pin Ge MOMA (Changsha) 68,416 7,741 9 - - -
EREMRE
Modern City Garden 65,000 4,626 14 - - -
iMOMA
iMOMA 29,300 977 30 15,177 754 20
ERHEMOMA (ED)
Wan Guo Cheng MOM A (Changsha) 11,182 897 12 43,268 4,987 9
RPREFEMOMA
Changsha Man Ting Chun MOMA 695 140 5 20,655 3,658 6
HMOMA
YMOMA - - - 20,503 896 23
4,139,181 368,412 1 2,654,928 322,854 8
B 1,724 unit 1,063 unit
Car park 226,007 {BERbs 131 176,372 (EESm 166
4,365,188 2,831,300
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MEEE

HZE2013F12A831HIEFE - AEEYE
HERSEAARKEIM6BE L BEE2012
F12A31HEFEH RIS T% - AEER
B EEMIEB47,702F 7K » BERERA
89.3% °

XEEXBERBER

BEARSBEH  ARBEMLNXEERELS
MERBENERDENATHRBNER - B
ENAREBEBORAEEE SEMOMCER
B FETROR KM - NEETAEME2014
FARMPZERER - WAKER20145F6
A30BRIRBXBENMERR - AEEHIA
TIEAHHEAEMEEEBOERBR -

BREBERBR

AEBR201MFARMNFEILAERHR
MHYMEZRRBBE-RBYF =7 (RE
BRI HEER  AEBERMBHOZE
A) RISLRB BEERF 1% o A B AR
BEEA /89,5027 7K - R B MBETE
#173376,245F 71K (AR AR E R&EL
) WHBRETE MEREENZHEER
BELAE - ZEBNERERBEMFNE
ARK1,391BE T - BURNZIA B R AR
RAE  BHFHELHHEBED - RIEZ
e ARESEEZRENEREE (8
HRETRRERRE MR - 2% HEZR
EEEAREEREH) o tbI - NEBA
ELREFHHERZIEB100%H R E [

Leasing of Properties

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group’s revenue from
leasing of investment properties amounted to RMB34.6 million,
representing an increase of 75.7% as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2012. As at December 31, 2013, the Group owned
investment properties of 47,702 sg.m., with an overall occupancy
rate of 89.3%.

Status of U.S. Business

As of the date hereof, the Group’s project located in Pearland,
Texas, the U.S. is still at the early stage of planning, and the project
company is actively engaged in exchange and communication with
the government in respect of America Modern Green Senior Garden
MOMC (Houston). It is expected that the construction of the project
will be commenced in 2014. If the Group commences the property
development in the U.S. prior to June 30, 2014, an announcement in
relation to updates thereof will be issued.

Status of Yangquan Project

In June 2011, the Group entered into a project management service
agreement in relation to a property development project located in
Yangquan city, Shanxi Province, the PRC with an independent third
party that is the grantee of the parcel of land on which a project will
be constructed under the relevant land grant contracts. The project
has a total site area of approximately 89,502 sgq.m. and planned
total GFA of approximately 376,245 sq.m., subject to final approval
of the relevant planning bureau, and will be developed into a multi-
phases residential and commercial complex with underground
carparks. The total investment size of the project is estimated to be
approximately RMB1,391 million subject to final development scale
of the project, and the funding for the investment will be arranged
by the counterparty. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group shall
be responsible for the overall management of the project including
without limitation project planning and design, construction, quality
and safety control and sales and marketing. Furthermore, the
Group undertakes to generate for the benefit of the counterparty a



(HARB213.088L) - WASEEEEN
ZEETERT  FEMZEETERTH
BFEE  AEBEUEAAHFAIINEES
RERIRIZE B H25% (HHER ARKES3.25
AEL) WEE - HEITIREREL RS
REMR ) o 2N [F 8 A YE 18 B 858 SR
(BIEETRAZTE B EEERRA A K&
EREHEATPBEE S ENBETEE
SEMID) o W - NEBMAMEFH A
HWE WEBEMAINEASEREEE
BERNENTIESHN - R TYWERRER
P B RAZR ZE R S A 51 3Kk M B 3 38 B A8 78
Bk e

EREF AU RKBBHIS (HPRE)
NN ZFBRE AN MAEEEEHR
BhEERITRBEBTg#ET HE HF
FHEEMERASERZEENERER
A WR2012F7A BB MIBER K - 1)t
SN EF R BIES AR L B E R
A ARRSERE REEDTN2012F T
FFREETZIER - ENTEREEECEH
TR ABRRETERFE T #5Z
HEEREARGHOBEBEEE T HE
HERE - B £2013F 128310  EHEAZ
ST e
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minimum investment return of 100% on the project or RMB213.0
million. In the event that there is any delay in the completion of the
project, which is caused directly by the Group, the Group may be
required to pay compensation to the counterparty in the amount
equivalent to 25% of the minimum investment return (or equivalent
to approximately RMB53.25 million) for each year it has caused
the delay in the completion of the development of the project.
The compensation is not subject to the amount of the minimum
investment return. The Group is required to bear the excess costs
of the project, including but not limited to the construction costs
and sales and marketing expenses incurred under the project which
exceeded the predetermined budgeted amounts as agreed by the
parties. Further, the Group is required to pay compensation to the
counterparty so as to cover economic losses sustained by it as a direct
result of the material work accidents, below national standard of the
completed property development and payment of penalty caused
directly by Group in connection with the project.

Given that the counterparty had not made prepayment according to
the payment schedule stated in the agreement, among other things,
the Group reasonably considered then that the agreement had not
been and would not be proceeded with. After that, the counterparty
would like to resume its cooperation with the Group with respect
to the development of the project and in July 2012, paid us in full
the prepayment amount. Further, the counterparty has obtained the
relevant land use rights certificates and the relevant permits and in
view of which, the Group have proceeded with the project in the
second half of 2012. It is the intention of the parties to enter into a
supplemental agreement setting out the terms and conditions for the
development of the project given the notable delay in the progress
and possible changes to the development scale of the project. As of
December 31, 2013, no supplemental agreement has been entered
into by the parties.
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T GEE Land Bank

A2013F 128310 - AEBRFFEA HiE  As at December 31, 2013, the Group’s total land bank in the PRC
B (TEREEEDENZEERNYE) &  (excluding investment properties and properties held for own use)
£12,796,835F 53K o T HbEEERIF AU was 2,796,835 sq.m. The average unit acquisition cost of its land
BN AT T RKARK,5887T » £95%H  bank was RMB1,588 per sq.m., accounting for approximately 14.1%
FHNEBEEN141% o of unit price of current contracted sales.
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Bfet - AEBZ BB SHHRIER - ST - Il Noter  The land bank of the Group includes lands in Beijing, Jiujiang, Xiantao,

HoRE -BmE AR EYRET (& Wuhan, Nanchang, Taiyan, Changsha and Suizhong (Suizhong project

FIEHZ2013F 12990 A H BT 5% was obtained through a connected transaction as set out in the

BMMIEE  %ZX5EHE2014F1 72588 announcement dated on 9 December 2013, the transaction has been

FREERIREETK) ° completed upon the extraordinary general meeting on 25 January
2014)
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REBM L FEEHE ST - The geographic spread of the land bank of the Group was as follows: H_%@E
&
F*= KEELHFE Table 3: Land bank of the Group Q‘ﬁ\i
B
Bl A L it 1S 20134
Land bank in China 12A431H af
REH a
rEH EEEE b
PB4 3 Total GFA 2l
Attributable unsold as at <
HE AR W interest to  December 31, 8
Project name City the Group 2013 g
=
ILBEHEFEMOMA filik 3
Xiantao Man Ting Chun MOM A Xiantao 100% 814,540 &
RAFBHEEFEMOMA =972 g
Changsha Kaifu Man Ting Chun MO M A Changsha 100% 540,685 =
EDREFEMOMA =37 5
Changsha Man Ting Chun MOM A Changsha 100% 35,445 s
ERHBEMOMA (KR) KIR g
Wan Guo Cheng MOM A (Taiyuan) Taiyuan 100% 335,859 =
REREEMOMA iz g
Wuhan Man Ting Chun MOM A Wuhan 100% 283,100
mEmEEMOMA (BER) ElS
Nanchang Man Ting Chun MOM A (International) Nanchang 100% 207,084
FImEBZEMOMA T
Jiujiang Man Ting Chun MOM A Jiujiang 100% 174,754
bR RERE Hb 15 bR
Parcel in Caiyu County, Daxing District, Beijing Beijing 100% 152,400
FEEmEEMOMA (A& Ha
Nanchang Man Ting Chun MOM A (Hongwan) Nanchang 100% 90,432
e mEEMOMA &1
Nanchang Man Ting Chun MOMA Nanchang 100% 66,913
ERXMOMA bR
Modern MO M A Beijing 100% 34,412
BEHEMOMA (EX) §7%
Wan Guo Cheng MOM A (Changsha) Changsha 100% 29,131
MOMAB & Bl
MOM A Forest Forever Beijing 100% 14,338
ERETRE bR
Modern City Garden Beijing 100% 9,437
FH#MOMA b=
Shangdi MOM A Beijing 100% 4,460
iMOMA b
iMOM A Beijing 100% 1,262
HEMOMA bR
YMOMA Beijing 100% 2,139
EBHHEMOMA Bl
Wan Guo Cheng MOMA Beijing 100% 444
2,796,835

* B REEBEEEEERITEEEESHA  *Note: Total GFA unsold includes aggregated GFA sold but undelivered with
BB EERITEEEE sales contracts.
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REGEEHETENIMNEBEB2EHEE —
18 Hh 4% 1 F& 49196, 156 J5 2K B9 3 38 /3 46 B
BERE - ZEMAL  ZMIRDERATHIR
ZIRSEL - M TR ERETEt R EmEEE -

HE2013F128318BILFE - KEBE DRI
SR - BRI

BIEARRAFTR2013F6 A28 M ERMDRE
BERARBRMAZENBRER ((BRE
21 MR AEEZRIEERBERDE
HE#925,004F oK A) b RRE - A
E—HERLIMEEMOMAIER - K&
B2 R2013F6 7 BEL it HEE
THHESHARK203B8E T AEED
7R2013F7 A15H R i M AHRIE A -t
FRFE - AEEBEFZIEAEEEMER
5 86,141 F K »

M2013F8A14H  AEBRBEFEEMEA
B A AEA LREEE - RKESIT
TEAMEMFTEE M M T E AR
HExHEs  BREQFAARKE27TEE
TTRAREIOAEE T - AEBIFEFTZ M
SR 4B R EE A5 9 Bl £978,000F J5 K A 49
175,000F 752K o LA EHb ¥R 89 £ 30 11 38 & 1%
RAER 2 ASERZAT ©

M2013F 108310 AEEBARETEHA
BRI AR LR RINES
B REM R RER Ap(2013)16347
R L E AR PED  BREA
ARBETSOEE T - NEBIEBF RO E
M FE#I235,000 5 K o LA EH R &) T i
HESKEARAEEZATERI -

20135 12A248 - AEBBEBIERWE -
BRBEB T AEEEES - KIES
hE AR FEFBIIL 7T A E R HE $EDX10-
0001-6006H 38 —$8 E (X A B A & &
AR TEERAEARKEESSEE
T AEBEBEEZIBRNREERREL A
150,199F K o LA E b HiE & i m A%
B NEBERZAT -

The Group wholly owns a parcel of land with a site area of
approximately 196,156 sg.m. located in Pearland, Texas, the U.S.
for future development. So far, this parcel of land is still at the
early stage of planning, and the estimated GFA data has not been
determined accurately.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group acquired 5 parcels
of land, the information of which is as follows:

As disclosed in the prospectus (the “Prospectus”) issued by the
Company on June 28, 2013 in connection with the initial public
offering of its shares in Hong Kong, the Group was applying to
obtain the land use rights of a piece of land with a site area of
approximately 25,004 sg.m. for further development of its Jiujiang
Man Ting Chun MOMA Project. The Group fully paid relevant
land grant premium of the abovementioned parcels of land of
approximately RMB20.3 million in June 2013, and also obtained such
land and relevant State-owned Land Use Rights Certificates on July
15, 2013. The Group estimates that the total GFA of this land will be
86,141 sq.m.

On August 14, 2013, the Group successfully acquired the land use
rights and its entire interest of two parcels of land located in Xinjian
county, Nanchang city, Jiangxi Province through an online auction of
land use rights of state-owned construction land in Nanchang city.
The aggregated considerations were RMB287 million and RMB704
million, respectively. The Group has estimated that the total GFA of
such two parcels of land will be approximately 78,000 sq.m. and
175,000 sq.m., respectively. The land grant premium of the above
mentioned parcels of land will be financed by the Group’s internal
resources.

On October 31, 2013, the Group successfully acquired the land use
right and its entire interest of a parcel of land located in Donghu
Development Zone (B#FZ[E) with the No. p(2013)163, Wuhan,
Hubei Province through an online auction of land use rights of
state-owned construction land in Wuhan City. The aggregated
consideration was RMB789 million. The Group has estimated that the
total GFA of such parcel of land will be approximately 235,000 sg.m..
The land grant premium of the above mentioned parcel of land will
be financed by the Group’s internal resources.

On December 24, 2013, the Group acquired the State-owned
construction land use right over a parcel of class 2 residential land
DX10-0001-6006 at Caiyu Town, Daxing District, Beijing, PRC
through bidding of State-owned land use right organised by Beijing
Municipal Bureau of Land and Resources at a cost of RMB685 million.
The Group has expected that such parcel has a GFA of 150,199 sq.m.
The land grant premium of the above mentioned parcel of land will
be financed by the Group’s internal resources.
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FEIEH MAJOR PROPERTIES
BEER
Fokug
HRAE RE/ER EH/ER
Approximate BREEE  BBRSE  BERSE BIA BIR
KEE  total land HORE  ATCHE  NLBHE Ewpected/  Expected/
EREBE  siteareain 228 SR BREEE  ERIER Aduwl Actual
Atributable ~ respect of BREEE  totalGFA  total GFA  total GFA construction construction
B interestto  theentie  HREEH GFA  lessGFA  withlease  withlease commencement completion  FEfi Be i
Project the Group poject  total GFA  delivered  delivered under 5years over5years date date Majorusage ~ Status  Address

7z A /7y B¢ 7 /S e 07 v R 1 7y M 1 7
(sq.m) (sg.m) (sq.m) (sg.m) (sq.m) (sq.m)
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ERMOMA 00% 6000400 ISTSTI0 140802 MAI00 266567 647131 200511- 200806  BEEE ORI 4ETESE
Modern WOM A 200711 2010.11 El Completed  ZARS15
Residential, Xiangheyuan
commercia, 080 1,
car parks Dongcheng
Distrit,
Beijing
ERAMOMA 100% 4766200 283854.00  274,651.90 44400 8,758.10 - 2001.09- 2002.12- fz-#% 7l FRTEAE
Wan Guo Cheng 0001 00704 EE Completed - &5
MOMA Residential, Xiangheyuan
commercia, 080 1,
car parks Dongcheng
Distric,
Beijing
MOMAEEH 100% 18316100 10014100 8502100 1433800 7800 - 0604 01200- FEEE ORL LATEEE
MOM Forest LT/ VAT Conplted BESEASH
Forever Residential, Gaoliying
commercia, Huosi Road,
ar parks Shunyu District,
Beijing
BEREENMOMA 100% 11634900 25183300 18198131 6691300 63602 230057 201009-  01108-  fEEE ORI IEEEET
Nanchang Man 010 wBn EE Completed  FWLHESE A
Ting Chun Residential, Dongyi Road,
MOMA commercia, Qingshanhu
ar parks District,
Nanchang City
Jiangi Province
ERMOMA 100% 12449600 58464100 24878200 335,859.0 - - 009- 0B0-  FEEE OEE LEEARR
(XE) 0009 w50 EE Under  REEH16E
Wan Guo Cheng Residential, ~ construction Changfeng
WMOMA (Taiyuan) commercia, West Street 16,
ar parks Taiyuan City,

Shanxi Province
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il Ll

e iyt

= it ik BE/ER BE/ER

= Approximate BpEmE  RORSE  HEBRSE BIR $IA

- KEE  totalland BERE  WTCHE  MLCHE Expected  Expected

5 E{iER  siteareain BRE bR HEFEE  BEEER Adwl Actual

% Attributable  respect of BEEME  total A total GFA  total GFA construction  construction

N &R interestto  theentie  BEEHRE GFA  lessGFA  withlease  withlease commencement completon  ¥EFi k& it
o Project the Group project  total GFA  delivered  delivered under Syears over Syears date date Majorusage ~ Status  Address

iz /7y B 0% /S e 0 v R 1 7y M 1 /%
(sq.m) fsq.m) (sq.m) fsq.m) (sq.m) (sq.m)

ROREEMOMA 100% 33879400 107875100 45521874 60526100 3664l 1460712 2007.07-  013M0- T EE. AR bR

Changsha Man Ting 0003 w0 EE Under  ROTHEE
Chun MOMA Residentidl,  construction B7LRA199%
commercial, Fuyuan West
ar parks Road 199,
Kaifu District,
Changsha City,
Hunan Province

ATREEMOMA 100% 11463000 32509755 14709557 17475400 37,

0 273088 201306- 201411 bz B [B TRENI

Jijiang Man Ting 201403 L Under  EBEEEER
Chun MOMA Residential,  construction Lufeng West
commercial, Road,
ar parks Xunyang District,
Jujiang City
Jiangxi Province
IEEHEZMOMA 100% 20609500 8347300 3530700 81454000 - 6600 M 01305- EEEE ORE O HpEldw
Yiantao Man Ting w508 EE Under  FHER
Chun MOMA Residential,  construction &% KERASESE
commercial, (Ganhe Bangshichu
ar parks Huangjin West 88,
Xiantao City,
Hubei Province
REREENOMA 100% 9405200 283,10000 - 28310000 - - 0405 0l BEEE i rEREn
Whan Man Ting 88 Paming ~ RHFEE
Chun MOMA Residential, TARE
commercial, Guanggusi Road,
ar parks Donghu
Development
District,
Wuhan City,

Hubei Province
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BRER
i 2]
il ik BE/ER BE/EB
Approximate fREmE  RERSE  EEBRSE BIR $IA
AEE  total and BORE  ATCHE  NLBHE Expected/  Expected/
BUERE  sitearealn BRE PR AERER  SEEER Adul Actual
Attributable ~ respect of BEEAE  total GFA  total GFA  total GFA construction  construction
&R interestto  theentie  BEEERE GFA  lessGFA  withlease  withlease commencement completion  EFi Ea it
Project the Group project  total GFA  delivered  delivered under Syears over Syears date date Majorusage ~ Status  Address

ik Pk Tk s BN (A
(sq.m) fsq.m) (sq.m) fsq.m) (sq.m) (sq.m)
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BERES 100% 7000007 20708400 - 0708400 - - N4 oeM EEER HY IEERED
MOMA (EE) 1 Panning ~ HREREER
Nanchang Man Residentia, Changzhen
Ting Chun commercial, West Road,
MOMA ar parks Xinjian County,

Nanchang City
Jianxi Province

FRAERENA 100% 6130560 15240000 - 15240000 - - 0406 01606 B AR #E GRAAR
Parcel n 5 Pamning ~ FEEREY
Caiyu County, Residential, Caiyu Street,
Daxing District, commercial, Daxing Caiyu,
Beijing ar parks Beijing

BERER 100% 312005 9043200 - 904300 - - 201403 2016.03 &% o IEEEER
MOMA (48) El Paning ~ HTRETZAE
Nanchang Man Residentia, Gongye Street,
Ting Chun commercial, Xinjianxuan,
MOMA car parks Nanachang City,
(Hongwan) Jiangxi Province

23 Tod 146775320 436738355 154208554 277953100 168313 2873188

21



Sl
#
>
=
=
(=
>
[
=
m
o
o
=
=
N
(=}
—
w

22

BEEENWE DN

Management Discussion and Analysis

BRAIREE

PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

EBRHMOMA (KE) :
Wan Guo Cheng MO M A (Taiyuan):

BEHMOMA (KR) 2EZTEmE 18
TBIE - WAERRBAAET A —EBHRE
HEGAE BRUNLABAETREARD
BEm o BZmmEEFEE - BA0LEE X
BibT - BB E8E - AEMEE - BEWERSE
BlivtE - ZHEB —HIEEMEE £251,610F
FK - BEMEE12,513F K ZHEER
& 5108,012F 5K - B E M 1E48,051F 75
;Jr( o

Wan Guo Cheng MOMA (Taiyuan) is a luxury complex of retail
shops, 5-star hotels, offices and serviced apartments, which is located
at Changfeng Business District, Taiyuan, Shanxi Province, the major
development area of the city. Wan Guo Cheng MOMA (Taiyuan)
is within close proximity of Shanxi Grand Theatre, Shanxi Library,
Shanxi Art Gallery, Shanxi Museum and Shanxi Science & Technology
Museum. Phase 2 of the project has a GFA of 251,610 sg.m. and the
area sold amounts to 12,513 sq.m. Phase 3 of the project has a GFA
of 108,012 sq.m. and the area sold amounts to 48,051 sq.m.

MEmEEMOMA :
Nanchang Man Ting Chun MOMA:

MEMmEEMOMAR —E#HEEEFFEM -
TERE - A BW - R - AR
BEMTE EERUNIAEMEMS LS
MEE - EEETMHP OS5V EBRRHEER -
fEE SFEMBRFTAFREZLENEER
- BMEREEMEFE —MHZMEERNFL
- ZTBEEEMEA251,833FF K B
EEFE200,047F 73K o

Nanchang Man Ting Chun MOMA is a community consisting of
residential units, retail shops, clubhouse, supermarket, kindergarten,
swimming pool and restaurants. It is located at the east side of
Qingshan Lake, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province and within a 25-minute
drive of downtown Nanchang. This project is an attempt to create
Nanchang’s first new mixed-use community that features energy
conservation, comfort and design innovation. The project has a GFA
of 251,833 sg.m. and the area sold amounts to 200,047 sg.m.
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NIHEFEMOMA :
Jiujiang Man Ting Chun MO M A:

NI mEZEMOMAR NI — 8 S &
ENEEERIAE - ABFAETIAENLILT
EHEE - ERARI - ATHENINEE
RIE AR ENBMAMRERAR - XE
REEST A EMENRERIT - ZTBEEBEEEA
241,193 5Kk - EEMIE102,900F 5K o

Jiujiang Man Ting Chun MOMA, the only high-end residential and
commercial development in Jiujiang, is located at Xunyang District,
Jiujiang City, Jiangxi Province and will face the Changjiang River. The
community will utilise a ground source geothermal heat pump, ceiling
radiation and other energy-saving technologies to improve the living
environment of Jiujiang. The project has a GFA of 241,193 sg.m. and
the area sold amounts to 102,900 sg.m.

HkmEEMOMA :
Xiantao Man Ting Chun MO M A

WHkHEFEMO M A 2 — E{E = M 7 S 3
RER ERBEETHRERAE - BE &
FTAERR: o AL Adb BBk = & K BEH
Al - 5278 B #EMIE A852,473F XK B
EEIE39,862F K o

Xiantao Man Ting Chun MOMA is a residential and commercial
development project which contains a serviced apartment, hotel,
clubhouse and school. It is located at the south side of Huangjin
Boulevard, Xiantao, Hubei Province. The project has a GFA of 852,473
sq.m. and the area sold amounts to 39,862 sq.m.
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RYPBABREEMOMA :
Changsha Kaifu Man Ting Chun MOM A:

EAHBMEEMOMA : ZIheErdtE -
BREAEEMRTERE LERBEEE
W MR B BT IEE R P A 1SR AR i A
HITIBER - BIEE A IR A /R IR B R
e BRETENFTHGTENIRE - ZEAZ
ST FE A8529,620F 5K - B &M 1E99,766

24

Changsha Kaifu Man Ting Chun MOM A is a mixed use community
consisting of residential units and retail shops located at Changsha,
Hunan Province. It is located at Changsha, Hunan Province
and within walking distance of the No. 1 Line subway which is
under construction. The project was designed according to local
geographical and climate conditions, and provides a comfortable
environment during all four seasons. The project has a GFA of
529,620 sg.m. and the area sold amounts to 99,766 sq.m.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately 76.5% to
approximately RMB3,469.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2013 from approximately RMB1,965.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012. Such increase was mainly attributable to sales
revenue from the projects, such as Modern MOMA, Wan Guo
Cheng MOMA (Taiyuan), Nanchang Man Ting Chun MOMA and
Jiujiang Man Ting Chun MOM A. The related property delivered GFA
of the Group increased from approximately 182,086 sq.m. for the
year ended December 31, 2012 to approximately 367,098 sq.m. for
the year ended December 31, 2013.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales increased by approximately 92.1% to
RMB2,099.0 million in 2013 from 2012. Such increase was mainly
due to an increase in sales area with higher cost of sales in 2013.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s gross profit increased by
approximately 57.0% to RMB1,370.0 million in 2013 from 2012 and
the Group’s gross profit margin in 2013 was 39.5%, which decreased
by approximately 4.9 percentage points as compared to 2012.

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSS

Other income, gains and loss for the year ended December 31, 2013
decreased by approximately 95.0% to approximately RMB8.7 million
from approximately RMB173.6 million for the year ended December
31, 2012. This decrease was primarily due to the recognition of
resettlement compensation with respect to the Water Metre Plant
Area Project (details of which are set out in the Prospectus) of
approximately RMB146.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2012.
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EEN2013F RBEN - SIBAEEHE KD
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CHANGE OF FAIR VALUES

Change of fair value includes change in fair value of held for
trading investment, fair value gain of completed properties for sale
upon transfer to investment properties and changes in fair value of
investment properties. The changes in fair values for the year ended
December 31, 2013 dropped from RMB137.7 million in 2012 to
RMB76.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately 44.5%,
which was mainly attributable to a decrease in fair value gain of
completed properties for sale upon their transfer to investment
properties.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2013 increased by approximately 40.4% to
approximately RMB170.8 million from approximately RMB121.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2012, primarily due to a
substantial increase in the pre-sales volume of the Group’s properties
in 2013, resulting in corresponding increase in the related selling and
distribution expenses.
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The administrative expenses of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2013 increased by approximately 36.0% to
approximately RMB204.1 million from approximately RMB150.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2012, primarily due to
the increase of day-to-day management expenses arising from
commencement of various projects at the same time.

FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs of the Group amounted to approximately RMB35.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2013, representing a
significant decrease of approximately 63.7% from approximately
RMB98.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. This
decrease was primarily attributable to a significant decrease in
average balances of other loans for 2013 as compared to 2012.

For detail breakdown of interest capitalisation, please refer to note 7
of the financial statements.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

The profit before taxation of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2013 increased by approximately 28.2% to approximately
RMB1,022.6 million from approximately RMB797.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2012 for the above reasons.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The income tax expense of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2013 increased by approximately 54.7% to approximately
RMB494.2 million from approximately RMB319.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012, primarily due to an increase in revenue.

Tk
=
Vag
o
i
B
il
|
Pl
>
all
<
o
o
()
=
=
=
Q
=
o
o
3.
=
e
Q)
o
L
3
=
0]
o

27



il
-
>
=
=
(=
>
—
=
m
-
=)
=
|
N
o
—
w

28

BEEENWE DN

Management Discussion and Analysis
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PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

As a result of the foregoing, the profit of the Group for the period
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2013 increased by approximately 12.2% to approximately
RMB528.9 million from approximately RMB471.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012. The income from the land resettlement
project (Water Metre Plant Area Project) amounted to approximately
RMB146.9 million in the profit for 2012. Profit for the period
attributable to owners of the Company would record an increase of
approximately 45.6% from 2012 if the income and respective tax
expenses, calculated based on 25% effective tax rate, was excluded
and not accounted for as other income in 2012 given its non-
recurrent nature.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash position

As at December 31, 2013, the Group had cash, restricted cash and
bank balances of approximately RMB2,869.5 million (December 31,
2012: RMB872.9 million), representing an increase of approximately
228.7% as compared with that as at December 31, 2012. As at
December 31, 2013, some of the Group’s cash was deposited with
certain banks as guarantee deposits for mortgage financing loans
granted to purchasers of the Group's properties. As at December
31, 2013, the above guarantee deposits amounted to approximately
RMB112.4 million in total.

Borrowings and pledge of the Group’s assets

As at December 31, 2013, the Group had total borrowings of
approximately RMB2,158.9 million, including bank and other loans of
approximately RMB1,254.1 million and senior notes of approximately
RMB904.8 million (senior debt included). As at December 31, 2013,
certain banking and other facilities granted to the Group were
secured by the Group’s assets, such as investment properties, prepaid
lease payment, properties under development, properties held for
sale, property, plant and equipment, which had a carrying amount of
approximately RMB1,800.3 million. Majority of the carrying value of
all the Group’s bank loans was denominated in RMB. Domestic bank
loans of the Group bore interests at variable rates pegged with the
benchmark loan interest rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China.
The Group was exposed to interest rate risk which mainly related to
variable interest rates of the domestic bank loans.
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Breakdown of indebtedness

By type of borrowings and maturity

2013%F 20124
12A31H 12H31H
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
ARBFT AE®F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Onshore bank loans
Within one year 237,400 109,000
Over one year and within two years 437,200 351,900
Over two years and within three years 20,000 179,000
Over three years and within four years 20,000 20,000
Over four years and within five years 20,000 20,000
Over five years 110,000 130,000
Subtotal 844,600 809,900
Onshore trust and other loans
Over one year and within two years 390,000 300,000
Offshore bank loans
Within one year 19,510 -
Offshore senior notes
Over four years and within five years 904,753 -
TOTAL 2,158,863 1,109,900
Less:
Cash and restricted cash 2,869,509 872,937
Net cash/(debt) 710,646 (236,963)
Total equity 2,470,993 1,500,749
Net cash
Net debt to equity BEE 15.8%
Total debt/total equity 87.4% 74.0%
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BEEEEE By currency denomination
2013F 20124
12A31H 12A31H
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
AR¥FT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RERERRIBERLE D By type of borrowings and maturity
— UAREE — Denominated in RMB 1,234,600 1,109,900
— AZEITEHE — Denominated in USD 924,263 -
2,158,863 1,109,900
BE Leverage

R2013F12A31H » AEESRESFREHOA
R¥7106BE8T - AEBFRBDEE (ORB
BEMREEAE) m2012F12A31BH4 A
R#298 1B &L EF41327.7%=2013F12
A31EMHARE1, 27498 BT - Mgt
K (REEE,/REAE) BIHAE2012F12A8
31HAI49105.1% EFAE2013F12A318 4
49119.2% -

SN LB

REBEMINEEEAARE  KZHR 5
NARESE - AEBESIHINEBNZ S (10
BESERBRERN ) RETODELN
FZ I AINEETE - 201361283180 » K
EEDRIBEAENETRB LA ENEENA
RIE2799EE T RHNARKE320EETL &
NETFENBEHARKIZL0EETT ° #%
SREHEAZINERK o AEE B A&
SNSRI R - BE IR EEEAMNERE - IF
BREEEE R PERINERR

As at December 31, 2013, the Group recorded net cash of
approximately RMB710.6 million. The Group’s net current assets
(being current assets less current liabilities) increased by approximately
327.7% to approximately RMB1,274.9 million as at December
31, 2013 from approximately RMB298.1 million as at December
31, 2012. Its current ratio (being current assets/current liabilities)
increased from approximately 105.1% as at December 31, 2012 to
approximately 119.2% as at December 31, 2013.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s functional currency is RMB. Most of the transactions are
denominated in RMB. Transactions of the Group’s foreign operations
(such as the purchase of land held for future development) and
certain expenses incurred are denominated in foreign currencies. As
at December 31, 2013, the Group had assets which are denominated
in US dollars and HK dollars of approximately RMB279.9 million and
approximately RMB32.0 million, respectively and liabilities which
are denominated in US dollars of approximately RMB934.0 million.
Those amounts were exposed to foreign currency risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in place
but the management will monitor foreign exchange exposure and will
consider to hedge against any significant foreign currency exposure
when necessary.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at December 31, 2013, the Group had contingent liabilities
amounting to approximately RMB2,128.4 million (December 31,
2012: approximately RMB1,434.7 million) in relation to guarantees
provided to the domestic banks for their mortgage bank loans
granted to the Group’s customer. Under the terms of the guarantees,
if a purchaser has defaulted on mortgage payments, the Group will
be liable for the payment of outstanding mortgage principals plus
accrued interest and penalties as owed by the defaulted purchasers
to banks, and, in such circumstances, the Group will be entitled to
take over the legal title and ownership of the relevant property. These
guarantees will be released upon the earlier of: (i) the satisfaction
of the mortgage loan by the purchaser of the property; and (ii) the
issuance of the property ownership certificate for the mortgaged
property and cancellation of mortgage registration.

Employees and Compensation Policy

As at December 31, 2013, the Group had 725 employees (December
31, 2012: 495). Employee’s remuneration is determined based on the
employee’s performance, skills, knowledge, experience and market
trends. The Group regularly reviews compensation policies and
programs, and will make any necessary adjustment in order to be in
line with the remuneration levels in the industry norm. In addition to
basic salaries, employees may be granted with discretionary bonus
and cash awards based on individual performance.

FUND AND TREASURY POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES

The Board holds meeting with finance and operation teams in
the first week of every month to discuss the cash situation and
indebtedness situation. In addition, board office circulates weekly
capital market reports to board members so that the Board can assess
equity/bond financing opportunities. At project level, all projects are
expected to reach over 15%-20% Internal Rate of Return, depending
on the location and categories of the projects.

MATERIAL INVESTMENT ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

During 2013, the Group had no material acquisition and disposal
of assets, save the disposal of its entire interests in Beijing Modern
MOMA Investment Management Co., Ltd. and Suizhong Xian
Changlong Property Development Co., Ltd. as disclosed in detail in
the Prospectus.
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Since the listing of the Company’s shares in mid 2013, the Group
has attached great importance to communications with investors, the
media and other stakeholders. The investor relations department has
released the latest news of the Group to the market promptly and
accurately through various channels such as interim report, results
briefing, press release, corporate monthly and announcement, as
well as the website of the Group in compliance with the principle
of "accurate, timely, and transparent” information disclosure. The
Group strives to make the market have a deep understanding of the
Group and maintain high corporate transparency in order to create
maximum value for shareholders and other stakeholders.

During the year, the website of the Group also had a comprehensive
revamp with brand new and more user-friendly interface, as well as
more information related to the Group. The Group also expanded
new investor relations though multi channels such as one-to-one
meetings, telephone and e-mail exchange, roadshows and seminars.
Those not only ensured direct communication with investors but
also actively sought suggestions and feedbacks for the Group from
investors, thereby improving the corporate governance of the Group
and continuously creating value for shareholders, investors and the
society.

In October 2013, US$150 million senior notes due 2018 were
issued by the Group. The bonds of the Group were well-received
by investors, who also kept a close eye on the information of
the Company even after the transactions. The demand for timely
disclosure of the Group’s business progress grew in the market.
The Group will definitely keep on offering accurate and transparent
information of high quality on a timely basis.
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2013F6 A24HE30H

June 24 - 30, 2013

201346 H25H8
June 25, 2013
2013F6H25H
June 25, 2013
20136 H27H
June 27, 2013
201357H1HZE3H
July 1 -3, 2013
2013F7H12H
July 12, 2013
2013F7RH12H
July 12, 2013
2013%F7H12H
July 12, 2013
201348 H28H
August 28, 2013
201348 H28H
August 28, 2013

2013F9H24HE26H

September 24
- 26,2013

20134 12H2H
December 2, 2013

REEBERE

Investor Relations Report

INVESTOR RELATIONS EVENTS

EE
EVENT

R
Listing roadshow

REETES

Investor Luncheon

R RBE

Dinner with stock commentators
rFHEEE RS

Listing press conference

FTEE

Listing roadshow

B Em B ER

Listing Ceremony at HKEX
EREXAZMPIES

Modern Land & Pearl Lam Galleries Cocktail Party
FHERKRE

Listing celebration dinner
2013F R ERRAEEM

2013 interim results announcement
REBERDENENT &

Investor and analyst briefings
BEZBRZRE

Senior notes transaction roadshow

PEIABEHERS11VBFE
CRECC 11th Anniversary

EMEN
ORGANIZER

EREHE
Modern Land

BREX
Modern Land
EREZE
Modern Land
EREE
Modern Land
EREXE
Modern Land
EREXE
Modern Land
EREXE
Modern Land
EREXE
Modern Land
EREX
Modern Land
BEREXE
Modern Land
BEREXE
Modern Land

ECTS)
FHERS

China Real Estate

Chamber of
Commerce

Key investor relations events of the Group in 2013

25
LOCATION

S|
Hong Kong/
Shenzhen
BB
Hong Kong
HB
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
(G
London
B
Hong Kong
58
Hong Kong
5B
Hong Kong
5B
Hong Kong
5B
Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong
FAN

Singapore

5B
Hong Kong
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BUILDING A HOMELAND OF GREEN + COMFORT
+ ENERGY-SAVING + FULL LIFE CIRCLE

As economic grows and Chinese residents’ greater demand for
better life quality, energy-saving and green products will gradually
dominate the market. Meanwhile, as the government has made clear
that green and energy-saving architecture will become the inevitable
development direction. The Company started earlier than other
enterprises in the research and development on green and energy-
saving real estate, and therefore owns the competitive advantage of
leading in this sub-market.

Modern Land has always been adhering to the development
philosophy of “Technology Buildings and Quality Life”, sticking to
the development philosophy of “Natural Simplicity, Harmonious
Health, Simple Focus, and Endless Vitality” and focusing on the
theme of “Action of Loving My Homeland” to provide consumers
with the comfortable and energy-saving products, not only improving
the quality of occupiers’ living environment, but also caring for the
nature and focusing on energy-saving and environmental protection,
thus bringing occupiers the sincere and real life experience.

In 2002, the Company created the MOM A concept that integrates
large development, advanced construction techniques, original
construction design, modern urban lifestyle and humane care, and
such series of MOM A products built with great efforts have become
the iconic brands of China’s energy-saving real estate industry. The
capabilities of MOMA in the integration of applied sustainable
development technologies and high-quality living environment
design, coupled with the Company’s excellent performance in the
development and sale of related properties, allow it to stand out
among numerous Chinese property developers. Modern Land has
established three product lines of Wan Guo Cheng MOM A, Shang
Pin Ge MOMA and Man Ting Chun MOMA in a number of cities
and provinces such as Beijing, Shanxi, Hunan, Hubei and lJiangxi,
especially in cold winter and hot summer areas and areas vulnerable
to severe air pollution, to offer comfortable, health and energy-saving
technical residential buildings.
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WORKING TOGETHER AND FIGHTING AGAINST
YA'AN EARTHQUAKE

Beijing time at 8:02 on the April 20, 2013, a magnitude 7.0
earthquake struck Lushan country, Ya'an City, Sichuan province and
caused 196 people killed, 21 missing and 13,484 injured and more
than 2 million affected. As soon as the news of earthquakes was
released, Modern Land issued a proposal of “love our homeland and
care for disaster area”. In a short week, employees of every center
and company under the Group raised a total of RMB219,200 for the
special account of “the Ya'an earthquake rescue operations” initiated
by One Foundation., such acts expressed their cares and universal
love for disaster areas.

START FROM OURSELVES IN ENERGY-SAVING
AND ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

“Earth Hour” is held annually across the world at 20:30 (local time)
on the last Saturday of March, aiming to save energy by encouraging
households and business users to turn off non-essential lights and
electrical appliances for an hour. As a green energy-saving enterprise,
Modern Land responds positively to the call of “Earth Hour” and calls
its every employee to save power and energy.

Tree planting activities. Trees help regulate climate, sustain the
ecological balance, keep air clean and fresh through breathing in
carbon dioxide and exhaling oxygen during photosynthesis, break
wind and fix sands, conserve water and soil as well as absorb dust.
Each March, Modern Land organizes tree planting activities for staffs
from the Group and project companies and contributes to the blue
sky of cities where they were.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance. It is the belief of the Board that effective
corporate governance and disclosure practices are not only crucial
in enhancing the Company’s accountability and transparency and, in
turn, investors’ confidence but also important to the Group’s long-
term success.

The Board is of opinion that the Company had complied with the
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) since the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange until December 31,
2013, except for the code provision C.1.2:

Code provision C.1.2 — This code provision stipulates that
management should provide all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient details
to enable the Board as a whole and each director to discharge their
duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company did not provide the monthly updates to all members of
the Board by omission since its listing until January 2014, when the
Company rectified by circulation of the monthly updates.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for
dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. All Directors
have confirmed that they complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the year under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board, which is chaired by Mr. Zhang Lei, consists of five
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of Group
and the issuance of independent opinion.



REARBEAREAHL  RENE=E
EE

BITES

RERE (EFE)

ERMESE (BEHTTE)

REEEA (720141 B27BEERT)
PR S

BAFHTES

RAELE
EfETE
ARG E

FIBERTESRBEYFATEFHDEAR
AR R =FMRBELH - REARAW
AEER ([RAER])  EF@ARIWET
MALTEMESZRAFSMBEST -EF
EMERNRARBREREANER X6
M BERNAKREITEE - $RRHIE
BBoEEH K/ IREEE® (EERT
X)) BB (1A)

BIE LR AIE310R310AKRKHTE - A
RABRE=MBIFATES (RRES
E=NZ—HWAR)  ER (I AAHEENSE
AR HEENERER - (B IFTT
EEHERBEARARBNELIE - AR
AIARYE BT AR RIS 31316 P 7 8 7 1 AT 1k
ol BRBFHABIME - Z(IBZIFH
TEFHREARRTLASH=FNZLE -

REARER  ELE=02— (AT
EZWEE ARRRI=02 AR
MEFRB=FRARAKRRBEFAE L@
BRENRBEET R - REQATDZEAA
E8AGR . REBSLLE  BRELLE  RIBXL
£RESRE  BEREELELE  REBRSLL
R A RFF RIS E RN 2014F RIRIAF
RELRE BENAERBEEYREERE
T AERMESKEERETES -

N
ERER/RE

Corporate Governance Report

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report include:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Lei (Chairman)

Mr. Zhong Tianxiang (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Zhang Peng (appointed on January 27, 2014)
Mr. Chen Yin

Mr. Fan Qingguo

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Qin Youguo
Mr. Cui Jian
Mr. Hui Chun Ho, Eric

All executive Directors and Independent non-executive Directors have
entered into service contracts with the Company for a specific term
of three years. Under the articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles of Association”), the Board is empowered to appoint
any person as a Director to fill the casual vacancy on or as an
additional Director. The Board considers a candidate’s experience,
skill and knowledge and competency and ability to fulfill duty of
care and diligence and fiduciary duty and/or recommendation by the
Nomination Committee (as defined below) (if any).

In compliance with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors
(representing one-third of the Board), one of whom possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting and financial
management. Each of the three independent non-executive Directors
has confirmed his independence of the Company and the Company
considers each of them to be independent in accordance with the
guidelines of assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Each of the three independent non-executive Directors
has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of three years.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, at least one-third or, if the
number is not a multiple of three, the nearest to one-third, of the
Directors are subject to retirement from office by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company once
every three years. In accordance with Article 84 of the Article of
Association, Mr. Zhang Lei, Mr. Zhong Tianjiang, Mr. Zhang Peng, Mr.
Chen Yin, Mr. Fan Qingguo, Mr. Qin Youguo, Mr. Cui Jian and Mr.
Hui Chun Ho, Eric will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the 2014 AGM. All other Directors will continue in
office.
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All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group and in particular, the independent non-executive
Directors have provided the Board with their diversified expertise and
professional advices. The Board is of the view that there is a balanced
composition of executive and independent non-executive Directors
in the Board and the independent non-executive Directors are able
to provide sufficient checks and balances to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and the
Group. The participation of the independent non-executive Directors
in the Board and committee meetings also provides independent
judgment on the issues relating to strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, conflict of interest and standards of conduct.

The Board members have access to timely information relating to
the Group’s business and will be provided with further documents
and information upon request to enable them to make informed
decisions. Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board
committees are kept by the company secretary and is open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
director. Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board
committees are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by directors or
dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes are
sent to all directors for their comment and records respectively, within
a reasonable time after the board meeting is held. All directors are
entitled to have access to board papers and related materials. These
papers and related materials are in a form and quality sufficient to
enable the board to make informed decisions on matters placed
before it. Queries raised by directors are received a prompt and full
response.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence across the
Board.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken
against Directors arising out of corporate activities.
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RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD

The Board is in charge of leadership and control of the Group and
is responsible for maximizing the Group’s financial performance
and making decisions in the best interests of the Group and its
Shareholders. Under the leadership of Mr. Zhang Lei, the chairman
of the Board (the “Chairman”), the Board is also responsible for
formulating and overseeing the business strategies and policies of
the Group, approving and monitoring annual budgets and business
plans, reviewing operational and financial performance, reviewing
and monitoring the Group’s financial control and risk management
systems. The Board has delegated the daily operation and day-to-
day management of the Group as well as the implementation of
the Board’s policies and strategies to executive Directors and the
management of the Group.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETING

The Board holds meetings regularly and meets at other times as and
when required to review financial, internal and compliance controls,
risk management, company strategy and operating performance of
the Group. In addition, the Board holds general meetings to maintain
an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders. For the period from July
11, 2013 to December 31, 2013, the Board held 2 regular meetings.
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BEEMN2013FE7A11HE2013F12A31H
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The number of Board meetings and general meetings attended by
each Director from July 11, 2013 to December 31, 2013 is set out in
the following table:

R BREEE FMEES REZEE

Exges 23 23 23

Regular Audit Remuneration Nomination BRAE
=1 Board Committee Committee Committee General
Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BIIEHENE
Number of meetings held 2 1 - - 1
RESTE
Mr. Zhang Lei 2 - - -
BRE T4
Mr. Chen Yin 2 -
Mr. Fan Qingguo 2 1
ERELAE
Mr. Zhong Tianxiang 2 -
REBEEE
Mr. Qin Youguo 2 1 - -
ERet
Mr. Cui Jian 2 1 - - -
RIS RE
Mr. Hui Chun Ho, Eric 2 1 - 1

*  HARRBAAR2014F1A27HEZ T AN
NEVNINITEE - MU IR bt R A
TEEFNHETRNESTEZLBRERT -

ARBEAZBEFTRHHETHEZTS AN
RPUBHBASREREFTSEE (WA)
MAELRMDARERNES  LEROEFYS
BEREHESE  (REHARSHARS
EZER R(NEAZ2BEFMEBREZRRER
BHONEEEXH KEFEQRE EFTT
ASKBYEXER  MEBEERAALQT
A - EEEFEEANERERE ARF5S
RERERSRAESREMEEEAREE
BEABRUEHNER -

* As Mr. Zhang Peng was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on January 27, 2014, he did not attend any Board meetings
and general meetings as an executive director during the above period.

Notice of at least 14 days for regular Board meetings and sufficient
notice of reasonable days for ad hoc Board meetings (if any) were
given to all Directors so as to ensure that (i) each of them had
an opportunity to attend the meetings, (ii) each of them had an
opportunity to include matters in the agenda and (iii) agenda and
accompanying Board papers were given to all Directors in a timely
manner. As agreed by the Board, Directors may also seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense. During the intervals
between Board meetings, the senior management of the Company
provides the Directors with information on a timely basis regarding all
major developments or changes in the Group’s businesses.
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Should a Director have a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the Board meeting, he or she will abstain from
voting in respect of the relevant resolution. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at
meetings dealing with such issues.

Full Board or committee papers will be sent to all Directors at least
three days before the intended date of a Board meeting or committee
meeting.

Management has supplied the Board and its committees with
adequate information and explanations so as to enable them to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other information
put before the Board and its committees for approval. Management
is also invited to join the Board or committee meetings where
appropriate.

All the Directors are also entitled to have access to timely information
such as monthly updates in relation to our businesses and have
separate and independent access to senior management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

During the year, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on applicable legal and regulatory requirements. A training on
memorandum on statutory obligations of a listed issuer in Hong Kong
was given to all Directors as part of their continuous professional
development plan of the Company and the Company confirmed that
all Directors attended the seminar.

In addition, every newly appointed Director will receive an induction
on the first occasion of his appointment, so as to ensure that he
has a proper understanding of the operations and business of
the Company, and his or her responsibilities under the laws and
regulations and especially the governance policies of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are currently two
separate positions held by Mr. Zhang Lei and Mr. Zhong Tianxiang
respectively with clear distinction in responsibilities.
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Mr. Zhang Lei, being the Chairman, is responsible for the
management and leadership of the Board to formulate overall
strategies and business development directions for the Group, to
ensure that adequate, complete and reliable information is provided
to all Directors in a timely manner, and to ensure that the issues
raised at the Board meetings are explained appropriately.

One of the important roles of the chairman is to provide leadership
for the board. The chairman is responsible to ensure that the board
works effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner. The
chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving
the agenda for each board meeting. He takes into account, where
appropriate, any matters proposed by the other directors for inclusion
in the agenda. The chairman may delegate this responsibility to a
designated director or the company secretary. The chairman also takes
primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established. The chairman encourages
all directors to make a full and active contribution to the board’s
affairs and take the lead to ensure that it acts in the best interests
of the issuer. The chairman encourages directors with different views
to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time for discussion of issues
and ensures that board decisions fairly reflect board consensus. The
chairman at least annually holds meetings with the independent non-
executive directors without the executive directors present.

Mr. Zhong Tianxiang, being the Chief Executive Officer, is responsible
for the daily operations of the Group and the implementation of
business policies, objectives and plans as formulated and adopted by
the Board, and is accountable to the Board for the overall operation
of the Group.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to present a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of the Group's performance,
position and prospects in the consolidated financial statements of the
annual and interim reports in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. Pursuant to Code Provision
C.1.1 of the CG Code, management would provide such explanation
and information to the Board as will enable the Board to make an
informal assessment of the financial and other information put before
the Board for approval. The Directors confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge, information and relief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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In preparing the financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2013, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, and have made judgments and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its interim results in a timely manner
within the limits of two months after the end of the relevant financial
periods, as laid down in the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective internal
control system in order to safeguard the interest of the Group and
Shareholders, review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems on a regular basis to ensure
that the systems in place are adequate.

The Group’s internal control system comprises, among others, the
relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management procedures, a well-established organizational structure
with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority. Each
department is accountable for its daily operations and is required to
implement the business strategies and policies adopted by the Board
from time to time.

The Board conducted a review and assessment of the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system and procedures during the
financial year ended December 31, 2013 by way of discussions with
the management of the Group, members of the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) and external independent auditors. The Board
believes that the existing internal control system is adequate and
effective. The Board also reviewed the resources, qualification and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programs and budget and was satisfied
with their adequacy.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are published in a timely manner.

The reporting responsibilities of our Company’s external auditor on
the financial statements of the Group are set out on page 81 of the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) to oversee the relevant aspects of the Company’s
affairs. The three Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Audit
Committee was established on June 14, 2013. The Audit Committee
comprises three members, namely Mr. Hui Chun Ho, Eric (the
chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Cui Jian and Mr. Qin Youguo
during the year ended December 31, 2013. None of them is a
member of the former or existing auditor of the Company. The
Board is of the view that the members of the Audit Committee
have sufficient accounting and financial management expertise and
experience to discharge their duties. However, the Audit Committee is
authorized to obtain external legal or other independent professional
advice if it considers necessary.

The Audit Committee has written terms of reference in accordance
with the CG Code. The principal functions of the Audit Committee
include:

e To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external independent auditors
and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor, and any questions of resignation or
dismissal of that auditor;

e To review and monitor the independence and objectivity of
the external independent auditors and effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards, and to
discuss the nature and scope of the audit and related reporting
responsibilities with the external auditor before the audit
commences;

e To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
the Company’s annual report and accounts, half-year report
and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;
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e  To oversee the Company’s financial reporting system and internal
control procedures;

e To discuss with the management the system of internal control
and ensure that management has discharged its duty to have
an effective internal control system including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the issuer’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programs and budget;

The Audit Committee also performs corporate governance procedures
of the Company, including:

e To develop and review the Company’s policies and practice on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

e To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the
Company;

e To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors of the Company; and

e To review the Company's compliance with the code provision
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the

Company.

The Audit Committee held one meeting in 2013 and conducted the
following activities:

(i) reviewed the Group’s interim results for the six months ended
June 30, 2013;

(i) reviewed the audit plans and findings of the external auditor;

(iii) reviewed the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee
for the Board'’s approval,

(iv) reviewed the internal control and financial matters pursuant to
its terms of reference; and

(v) made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of
the external auditor and their remuneration.
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The Audit Committee also met with the auditor annually in the
absence of management to discuss matters relating to any issues
arising from audit and any other matters the auditor may wish to
raise.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the external independent
auditors’ remuneration in respect of audit services provided to the
Group amounted to approximately RMB2 million. During the year, the
non-audit service fee to external independent auditor amounted to
RMB250,000.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on June 14, 2013 with
written terms of reference as suggested under the code provision
in the CG Code. The Nomination Committee comprises two
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director,
namely Mr. Cui Jian (the chairman of the Nomination Committee),
Mr. Hui Chun Ho, Eric and Mr. Zhang Lei.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include: (i)
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least once a year and
to make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the Board for conforming to the strategy of the Company;
(ii) identifying and nominating qualified individuals to act as Directors
and to make recommendations to the Board regarding such matters;
(iii) assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and (iv) making recommendations to the Board regarding
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for the Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee shall attend the annual
general meeting of the Company to answer the questions raised by
the Shareholders on Director's nomination and other nomination
policy matters.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year (or in
accordance with the regulations of regulatory authorities applicable
to the Company from time to time) at the time as required to
discharge its duties. The meeting shall be convened and chaired by
the Chairman. During the year under review, no meeting was held
by the Nomination Committee. However, subsequent to the end of
2013 and up to the date of this report, a meeting of Nomination
Committee was held on March 24, 2014 to assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors and review the reappointment
of Directors at the 2014 AGM.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy” in relation to the
nomination and appointment of new directors, which sets out: the
selection of board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model and
specific needs, including but not limited to gender, age, race,
language, cultural background, educational background, industry
experience and professional experience.

The above measurements were also reviewed and adopted when
the Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the Board.
After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and experience to
the Company’s business, the Nomination Committee confirmed that
the existing Board was appropriately structured and no change was
required.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on June 14, 2013 with
written terms of reference as suggested under the code provision
in the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Qin Youguo (the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Cui Jian, and an
executive Director, Mr. Zhang Lei, during the year ended December
31, 2013.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but
not limited to) (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policies and structures for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Company and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration; (ii) making recommendations to the
Board for executive directors’ remuneration; and (iii) considering
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The amount of the executive Directors’ remuneration is determined
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of the relevant
executive Directors’ experience, responsibility, workload and the time
devoted to the Group. The entire Directors’ remuneration is reviewed
by the Remuneration Committee from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee may also consult the Chairman
on proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive
Directors and has access to professional advice if necessary. The first
Remuneration Committee meeting was held on March 24, 2014 and
conduct the following activities:
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reviewed the remuneration policy of the Group and Directors’
remunerations;

(i) reviewed and approved the remuneration package of individual
executive Directors and senior management; and

(iii) reviewed the revised terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included 3 directors for the year
ended December 31, 2013 (2012: 1 director). The emoluments of the
remaining 2 highest paid individuals for the year ended December
31, 2013 (2012: remaining 4 highest paid individuals) are as follows:

2013 20124
AR¥FT AREFIT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’'000
== Employees

- EARF & KRR — Basic salaries and allowances 670 1,331
- JEAT - Bonus 4,559 283
— LARR1R 3R — Share-based payment 4,423 4,104
— R RE RN — Retirement benefit contributions 37 95

- Hiv B WEF — Other benefit-in-kind
- PRtz — Properties provided - 1,378
9,689 7,191

AEE AEEYEINAEZRSFMAL
EATHBE RS B DA AR SR B 1% ) 288
BYSRAE BB (E

RNEWE

HZE2013F12A31HILFE » KRR EERHE
SNEEXENRWERBERERZERBEER
DA BAEEREAREEZEANARWE
AR LA Bh AN B FE A NEN S & 2 BEE IR
BRAOETRAMNEERK - RaIMENFE
FLMAREES A EEEREN—F -

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged external professional company secretarial
services provider, Tricor Services Limited, to provide compliance and
full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to
assist the Group to cope with the changing regulatory environment
and to suit different commercial needs for the year ended December
31, 2013. Details of the Company secretary are set out at profiles of
directors and senior management of this report.
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For the financial year ended December 31, 2013, the Company
Secretary has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year
and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE
AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND
TO PUT FORWARD PROPOSALS THEREAT

The following procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are prepared in accordance with Article
58 of the Articles of Association:

(1) One or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition.

(2) The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must
be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
those Shareholders.

(3) The requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary via mail to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Flat 505, ICBC Tower, No. 3 Garden
Road, Central, Hong Kong.

(4) The extraordinary general meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of the requisition.

(5) If the Directors fail to proceed to convene the extraordinary
general meeting within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of
such requisition, the Shareholder(s) himself or themselves may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by him/her/them as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the Company.
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PROPOSALS FOR PROPOSING A PERSON FOR
ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association as amended from time to time, the Company may
from time to time in a general meeting by ordinary resolution elect
any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Director.

A Shareholder may propose a person (the “Person”) for election as a
Director by lodging the following documents at the Company’s place
of business in Flat 505, ICBC Tower, No. 3 Garden Road, Central,
Hong Kong:

(1) a notice in writing signed by the Shareholder concerned of
his/her/its intention to propose the Person as a Director with
full particulars of the Person including his/her full name and
biographical details as required under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules; and

(2) a notice in writing signed by the Person of his/her willingness to
be elected as a Director.

Such notices shall be lodged at least seven (7) days prior to the date
of the general meeting and the period for lodgment of such notices
shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and shall
be at least seven (7) days in length.

PROCEDURES FOR RAISING ENQUIRIES

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy:

(1) Shareholders may direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.

(2) Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary or the
Chief Financial Officer whose contact details are as follows:

Modern Land (China) Co., Limited
Flat 505, ICBC Tower,

No. 3 Garden Road,

Central, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2187 3611

Fax:(852) 2187 3619

Email: moma@pordahavas.com
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(3) Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at general
meetings of the Company.

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

There had been no significant changes in the constitutional
documents of the Company during the year ended December 31,
2013.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATION AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The major task and objective of the Group’s investor relations is
to clearly introduce the Group, including the business positioning,
existing operations and future development of the Group, to the
media, Shareholders, investors, analysts and investment banks
through different communication channels. In future, the Group
shall further enhance communication with the media, Shareholders,
investors, analysts and investment banks on various aspects such
as development strategies, operation and management, financial
prospects and business operation through meetings, senior
management’s participation in investor forums, conferences and
roadshows. The Group is confident in establishing and maintaining a
good relationship with the international capital institutions through
the continued enhancement of information transparency.

The Group emphasizes the importance of maintaining good
communication with the Shareholders, so as to increase the
Company’s transparency and understanding by the Shareholders. To
enable that the Shareholders are effectively informed of the Group’s
status and developments, the Group issues announcements, circulars,
notices, interim and annual reports in a timely manner. To enhance
the Company’s transparency, other information about the Company is
published at the Company’s website.

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the Directors to meet
and communicate with the Shareholders and to answer any queries
that the Shareholders may have. An external independent auditor
is also present at the annual general meetings. The Chairman will
propose separate resolutions for each issue to be considered at
the annual general meetings. A notice of annual general meeting
is delivered to all Shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior
to the date of the meeting, setting out details of each proposed
resolution and other information. Voting results are posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Lei (5R&E%£4), aged 51, is an executive Director and
our founder and chairman. He is responsible for strategic planning,
board management and overall management of our Group. He is
also a director of Great Trade, Jiu Yun Development, Modern Moma
Project Management, Modern Green Industrial, Beijing Green Project,
Modern Green Development, Beijing Modern, Beijing Dongjun, Ao
Xinjiyuan, Beijing New Power, Modern Moma Hotel Management,
Hunan Modern Green, Shanxi Modern Green Real Estate
Development, Shanxi Modern Green Development, AMG Commercial,
AMG Development, AMG Development Houston, AMG Development
Texas, AMG Holding, AMG Holding Houston, AMG Senior, and AMG
Washington DC.

Mr. Zhang has over 15 years of experience in the real estate
business in the PRC. From July 1985 to February 1995, he worked
as a department manager in the aspect of talents information
management and exchange at China International Talent Exchange
Center (BB A 7Ly, which is a State-owned enterprise.
From February 1995 to July 2000, he worked for his controlled entity,
Zhongji Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (FEEMEMRZEBREA
A]), as the general manager. Mr. Zhang founded our Group in 2000.
In January 2005, Mr. Zhang received an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from Tsinghua University (& K £2).

Mr. Chen Yin (BR& % 4), aged 58, is an executive Director and our
chief technology officer and general engineer. Mr. Chen is responsible
for R&D and project management in our Group. He is also a director
of Modern Green Development and Beijing New Power.

Mr. Chen graduated from Beijing University of Civil Engineering and
Architecture (b R T2 EB7) in July 1982 with a bachelor's degree
in Heat Energy Engineering. In January 2007, Mr. Chen received a
Master of Business Administration degree from Renmin University of

China (FEIARKE).
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From 1982 to 1987, Mr. Chen worked for Beijing University of Civil
Engineering and Architecture (Jt REZZE T 25). From July 1987 to
May 2001, Mr. Chen worked for Sinotrans Limited (FREISMNEE])
as a deputy general manager of Sinotrans Real Estate Development
Company, whereby he was mainly responsible for the management
of the infrastructure projects and the development of real estate
projects. Meanwhile, Mr. Chen served as a member of the expert
committee at the Center for Housing Industrialization of the Ministry
of Housing and Urban-Rural Development, a member of China Green
Building Council at Chinese Society for Urban Studies and a member
of the expert committee on Real Estate Technology Policy of China
Property Association. Mr. Chen joined us in May 2001. Mr. Chen Yin
is a well-known expert in the architectural energy-saving field. He is
a member of the Committee on Green Architectures of Architectural
Society of China and Renewable Energy Resource Society of China.
Mr. Chen has over 25 years of experience in the real estate business
in the PRC.

Mr. Fan Qingguo (CEEB%4), aged 42, is an executive Director
and our chief financial officer. Mr. Fan is responsible for finance
management of our Group. He is also a director of Great Trade, Jiu
Yun Development, Beijing Green Project, Modern Green Industrial,
Modern Green Development, Beijing Modern, Ao Xinjiyuan, Modern
Moma Hotel Management, Beijing Green Power, Hunan Modern
Green, Shanxi Modern Green Real Estate Development and Shanxi
Modern Green Development.

Mr. Fan graduated from Renmin University of China (FFEI A RKE)
in July 1998 with a graduation certificate in Accounting. In January
1999, Mr. Fan received a bachelor’s degree in Accounting from
Renmin University of China (FBIARAXE). In June 2006, Mr. Fan
graduated from Renmin University of China (FBIARKE) with a
graduate equivalency course-completion certificate in Finance.

Mr. Fan joined the Company since our inception in December 2000.
Before joining us, Mr. Fan used to work for Beijing Huayuan Property
Company (Jt RERFHE R A]), Beijing Fazheng Group (At F A EE
&), a large comprehensive enterprise including real estate business,
and Beijing KFC Limited Company Jt R 5@ E AR 2 7)) as an
accountant, respectively. Mr. Fan has 15 years of experience in the
real estate business in the PRC.
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Mr. Zhong Tianxiang (8 X f#& % %), aged 39, is an executive
Director and our chief executive officer. Mr. Zhong is responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting and operations of our Group. He is
also a director of Great Trade, Jiu Yun Development, Modern Moma
Project management, Modern O+, Beijing Green Project, Modern
Green Industrial, Modern Green Development, Beijing Modern,
Beijing New Power, Beijing Green Power, Hunan Modern Green,
Shanxi Modern Green Real Estate Development, Shanxi Modern
Green Development, Jiangxi Modern Green, Jiujiang Moma, Hubei
Modern, Hubei Moma and Hubei Wanxing.

Mr. Zhong graduated from China Correspondence University of Logic
and Language (P EIZE#EEGE S KK AE) in January 2006 with a
graduation certificate in Accounting. Mr. Zhong has nine years of
experience in the real estate business in the PRC. Mr. Zhong joined
us in January 2002. From June 1992 to December 2001, he was
the finance manager of Shenzhen Overseas Decoration Engineering
Company (X Y /8 4) % #5 T 72 2 &) Beijing Representative Office
whose principal business is in construction and intensive decoration.

Mr. Zhang Peng (FRfE%E4), aged 38, is an executive Director and
president. Mr. Zhang is the director and president of Modern Green
Development Co., Ltd, and the director of the Group R&D and design
team. He is also the director of Modern Land (Hong Kong) Co.,
Limited and Beijing Green Power Commercial Operation Management
Co., Ltd., and the supervisor of Hunan Modern Green Development
Co., Ltd.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Beifang University of Nationalities (1t75
RiERE - REEILE ZREZEW) in 1997 with a bachelor's degree in
Law. From October 1997 to September 1998, Mr. Zhang worked for
the police in Yinchuan. From September 1998 to September 1999,
he worked for Coastline Times ({f/883R)) as a journalist and
editor. From September 1999 to October 2000, Mr. Zhang worked
for Langluo E-commerce Co., Ltd. (BA4RE TSGR AF]) as the
assistant to the director and was responsible for brand promotion.
From October 2000 to November 2001, he worked for Qiantong
Technology Group (F2@FI# % E), an E-commerce company, and
he was the deputy manager in brand creation. Mr. Zhang joined the
Company in November 2001. He has been the chief human resources
officer, vice president and chief operating officer of Modern Green
Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Qin Youguo (FE{HEI%4E), aged 70, is an independent non-
executive Director and was appointed to our Board on June 14,
2013. He had been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Modern Green Development to provide independent
advice to the board of directors of Modern Green Development since
March 2008 but he was and is not an employee of Modern Green
Development. Mr. Qin is currently a professor of architecture at
Tsinghua University (B2 KZ). Mr. Qin completed his undergraduate
study in Architecture (6-year-mode) at Tsinghua University in July
1967, and completed his postgraduate study in Building Science,
School of Architecture, Tsinghua University and received a master's
degree in Engineering in April 1981, and thereafter taught in
Tsinghua university. From March 1990 to November 1997, Mr. Qin
was the vice-dean of School of Architecture, Tsinghua University,
and he was the dean of School of Architecture, Tsinghua University
from December 1997 to December 2004. He was a visiting scholar at
Harvard University from September 1996 to March 1997.

Mr. Qin has won several awards, including the Second Prize for
Technology Improvement (BHE P8 =5 8%) issued by The Chinese
People’s Liberation Army Headquarters of the Central Staff (FE AR
RPN E 48 2258 2F) in 1990, the First Prize for Outstanding Design ({85
Rt —= %) issued by Ministry of Education of the PRC (& A RN
Bl A 26) in 1995, the First Prize for Outstanding Design (8%t —
£ 49) issued by PLA General Armament Department of the PRC (FF &
AR BRI @25 56) in 2000, the Gold Prize of Technology for High-
end Residential Building (&I BRI 2K 7884 #2) issued by China
Real Estate Chamber of Commerce (ZETHBEZEERES) in
2004, the First Prize for Technology (£ #&—%51%) issued by Beijing
municipal government (At XM EAT) in 2005, Outstanding Contributor
of Green Buildings (3% @EEETHBTREALAY) by International House
Association (BEIBR{E=E1E) in 2007. He was awarded with a special
subsidy by the State Council for his contributions in the tertiary
education of the PRC.
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Mr. Cui Jian (B#8% %), aged 43, is an independent non-executive
Director and was appointed to our Board on June 14, 2013. Mr. Cui
is currently the chairman of Beijing Zhixing Chuangxin Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (At RATTRIFTIEEBRAF]). From January
2008 to December 2011, Mr. Cui worked as the CEO of Navi Capital
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. ((EMELBIREZEAILR)BR A F). Before that, Mr.
Cui used to work for China Mobile Communications Corporation (F
E#e@E=Z5EE /A7) as a manager in the department of products
and marketing from March 1997 to December 2007 and China
International Telecommunication Construction Corporation (F
BEERAAR]) as an engineer from July 1992 to March 1997. In
December 2002, Mr. Cui obtained the senior engineer qualification
certificate from China Mobile Communications Corporation (F
B #% B @5 E 2 A). Mr. Cui received his bachelor’s degree in
Communications Engineering from Changchun Institute of Posts and
Telecommunications (K&F#EEET) in July 1992. In April 2001, he
received his master’s degree in International Management from The
Australian National University. He also received an Executive Master
of Business Administration degree from Peking University (1t AE)
in July 2006.

Mr. Hui Chun Ho, Eric (FFB#5%4), aged 39, is an independent
non-executive Director and was appointed to our Board on June
14, 2013. In addition, Mr. Hui is currently the financial controller
and company secretary of Hong Kong Finance Group Limited (stock
code: 1273). Mr. Hui worked at Embry Holdings Limited (stock code:
1388), as the group accounting manager and company secretary,
and was the group financial controller of Win Hanverky Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3322). Before joining the above companies, Mr.
Hui worked for Ernst & Young as a manager in the department of
assurance and advisory business services. Mr. Hui is a fellow member
of both Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and an associate
member of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. In 1998, Mr. Hui
received his bachelor’s degree in accountancy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and was awarded a master's degree in business
administration with distinction by The University of Manchester,
United Kingdom in 2013. Mr. Hui has over 15 years of professional
working experience in auditing, financial accounting and reporting,
company secretarial matters and corporate finance.
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Except as disclosed in this section and in Appendix V to this
prospectus, each of our Directors confirms with respect to him that:
(i) he has not held any directorships during the three years preceding
the date of this prospectus in any public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas;
(ii) he does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders
of our Company; (iii) he does not hold any other positions in our
Company or other members of our Group; (iv) he does not have
any interests in our Shares within the meaning of Part XV of SFO;
(v) there is no other information that should be disclosed for him
pursuant to the requirements under Rules 13.51(2)(h) to 13.51(2)(v)
of the Listing Rules; and (vi) there are no other matters that need to
be brought to the attention of holders of securities of our Company
as of the Latest Practicable Date.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy (H % & & £) (resigned on April 1, 2014),
aged 46, joined us on June 14, 2013, is a director of Corporate
Services Division at Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”). Prior to joining
Tricor, Ms. Kam served as manager of the company secretarial
department of Tengis Limited and Ernst & Young in Hong Kong. She
has experience in a diversified range of corporate services and has
been providing professional secretarial services for over 20 years.
Apart from the Company, Ms. Kam is currently named company
secretary to six Hong Kong listed companies and holds a Practitioner’s
Endorsement Certificate from The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Ms. Kam is a Chartered Secretary and a fellow member
of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in The United
Kingdom. She graduated from City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now
City University of Hong Kong).

Mr. Wong Tak Chun (Z£&) (appointed on April 1, 2014), aged
32, has 9 years of experience in the capital market, accounting,
corporate governance and corporate finance. Mr. Wong joined the
Company in February 2014. He is Deputy Chief Financial Officer and
qualified accountant of the Company, and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor degree in Economics from the
University of British Columbia. He worked in KPMG from August
2005 to May 2010. He served as the company secretary and finance
manager of Central China Real Estate Limited during the period from
May 2010 to June 2013.
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The Board presents the annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended
December 31, 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding, and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property development,
property investments, REIT and other investments.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries at December 31, 2013 are set out
in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating results for the
year from principal activities is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended December 31, 2013 and its
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31,
2013, are set out in the financial statements on pages 83 to 86.

The Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend of HK 10.8
cents (2012: HK Nil) per share for the year ended December 31,
2013. Subject to the approval of the proposed final dividend by the
Shareholders at the 2014 AGM, it is expected that the final dividend
will be paid on or around June 6, 2014 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on May
28, 2014.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(a) For determining the entitlement to attend and
vote at the 2014 AGM

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2014
AGM. The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, May 20, 2014 to Wednesday, May 21, 2014 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to determine the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the 2014 AGM,
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 22nd
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, May
19, 2014.

(b) For determining the entitlement to the
proposed final dividend (subject to
Shareholders’ approval at the 2014 AGM)

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend
(subject to shareholders’ approval at the 2014 AGM). The
register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, May 27, 2014 to Wednesday, May 28, 2014 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 22nd
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, May
26, 2014.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year under review are
set out in notes 14 and 13 respectively to the financial statements.
The Group’s investment properties were revalued at the year end
date. The revaluation resulted in a net increase in fair value of
RMB85,139,000 which has been charged directly to the consolidated
income statement.
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PROPERTY INTEREST

For the purpose of the Listing, a valuation was conducted on the
property interests (including inventories) held by the Group. However,
those property interests were still carried at historical costs less
accumulated depreciation or impairment, if any, on the Group's
financial statements. With reference to the property valuation set
out in Appendix IlIA and Appendix IlIB to the Prospectus, the market
value of our property interest as at June 28, 2013 for the purpose of
incorporation into the Prospectus was RMB10,121 million (including
investment properties of RMB712 million, inventories of RMB8&,729
million, and properties, plant and equipment of RMB680 million).
Were the property (excluding inventories and investment properties,
in which no depreciation was incurred) stated at that valuation, the
depreciation charge per year would have increased by approximately
RMB10 million.

SENIOR NOTES

On January 16, 2014, the Company together with some of
its subsidiaries entered into a purchase agreement (the “CNY
1,100 million Purchase Agreement”) with Morgan Stanley & Co.
International plc, J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited, Guotai
Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and CLSA Limited in connection
with the Company’s issuance of secured senior notes due 2017 with
principal amount of CNY 1,100 million at a coupon rate of 11% per
annum (the “CNY1,100 million Senior Notes”). The proceeds from
the issue of the CNY1,100 million Senior Notes shall be used to
fund existing and new property projects and for general corporate
purposes. Details of the issue of the CNY1,100 million Senior Notes
are disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated January
14 and 16, 2014.

On October 29, 2013, the Company together with some of its
subsidiaries entered into a purchase agreement (the “US$150 million
Purchase Agreement”) with Citigroup Global Markets Limited, BOCI
Asia Limited, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
and Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc in connection with the
Company’s issuance of secured senior notes due 2018 with principal
amount of US$150 million at a coupon rate of 13.875% per annum
(the “US$150 million Senior Notes”). The proceeds from the issue of
the US$150 million Senior Notes shall be used to fund existing and
new property projects and for general corporate purposes. Details
of the issue of the US$150 million Senior Notes are disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated September 23, and October
29, 2013.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 30 to the financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2013, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Law in the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
RMB297,911,000 (as at December 31, 2012: Nil).

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended December 31, 2013 are set out in note
41 to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2013, purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers (excluding purchases of land) accounted for less
than 25% of the Group’s total purchases. Sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for less than 25% of the Group’s total
turnover.

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company or any Shareholder owning more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital or their respective associates, has any
interest in the Group's five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company in office during the year ended
December 31, 2013 and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Lei (Chairman)

Mr. Zhong Tianxiang (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Zhang Peng (appointed on January 27, 2014)
Mr. Chen Yin

Mr. Fan Qingguo
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Qin Youguo (appointed on June 14, 2013)
Mr. Cui Jian (appointed on June 14, 2013)
Mr. Hui Chun Ho, Eric (appointed on June 14, 2013)

In accordance with Article 83 and Article 84 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Zhang Lei, Mr. Zhong Tianjiang, Mr.
Zhang Peng, Mr. Chen Yin, Mr. Fan Qingguo, Mr. Qin Youguo, Mr.
Cui Jian and Mr. Hui Chun Ho, Eric will retire from office by rotation
at the 2014 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on
such information, the Company considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on profile of directors
and senior management of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Zhang Lei, Mr. Chen Yin, Mr. Fan Qingguo and Mr. Zhong
Tianxiang has entered into a service contract with the Company,
pursuant to which he agreed to act as executive Director for a term
of three years with effect from June 14, 2013. Mr. Zhang Peng has
entered into a service contract with the Company to act as executive
Director for a term of three years with effect from January 27, 2014.

Each of Mr. Qin Youguo, Mr. Cui Jian and Mr. Hui Chun Ho, Eric has
entered into a service contract with the Company, pursuant to which
he agreed to act as independent non-executive Director for a term of
three years with effect from June 14, 2013.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save for the relevant transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements, none of the Directors had a
significant beneficial interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended
December 31, 2013, nor any contract of significance had been
entered into during the year ended December 31, 2013 between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholders
or any of its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No management contracts in force during the year for the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the Group’s business subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives in the share capital and underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model
Code, were as follows or as disclosed under the section headed
“Share Option Schemes” below:
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iRz (FR)

INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY (LONG POSITION)

AR QFER

BHAEDL

BR#HBEE  Approximate %

EEHA B4 Rl Number of Interest in

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest of Shares the Company

REFE EEXmA (K1) 1,777,176,000 73.57%

Mr. Zhang Lei Beneficiary of a trust (Note 1)

PRESE Rt EE s (Hat2) 5,712,000 0.36%
Mr. Chen Yin Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2)

SBEBILE REtEE 2 #w (Hat3) 4,944,000 0.31%
Mr. Fan Qingguo Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3)

sRIE e RiEHEE 2 s (Bfat4) 4,944,000 0.31%

Mr. Zhang Peng

Kraxt

Kiet2 -

a3 -

Kist4 -

%%1,777,176,000/% i% 15 8 1 3t 12 AR B
RABNBLZREANTOIEE - &
TRRA R A B2 EE BT A fFantastic
Energy Ltd.Z= & # A ' iMFantastic
Energy Ltd. 202 24T RIACititrust
Private Trust (Cayman) LimitedbA R ik
BRENZRAFOHEZERE - RIREFT
AMSalum Zheng Leefktk (EX#m AR
Salum Zheng Leet £ REKE * &
FERE L E) ALK 2 {Z 5 © Salum
Zheng Leeft £ RKRBEFREMBE K
BREHSABNAQBHEA AR ER

MELEFEEANEARARZHE
BIIRA - MESBEBRABRAR
AIE BT AR #EHS5,712,0000% 8% - i
BRE AW R ARA R R A HRERS -

CEEEERBEEERER QA EE
BEITRA - MAEERBRQANAK
NaE B EITIR AN ¥ H 4,944,000 8%
HEBBEEEWRANAAREEHER
TEZS o

RETEREEHERBRATNZHE
BOIRA - MEAZRRBRABNRAR
BB BT AN B 4,944,0000% 8% - &5
SRMS e R AR AR R A HR RS o

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 4)

These 1,777,176,000 Shares are held by Super Land Holdings Limited
as a registered holder. The entire issued share capital of Super Land
Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Fantastic Energy Ltd., the entire
issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by Cititrust
Private Trust (Cayman) Limited as the trustee of the Family Trust.
The Family Trust is a discretionary trust established by Mr. Salum
Zheng Lee, the beneficiaries of whom are family members of Mr.
Salum Zheng Lee, including Mr. Zhang Lei. Mr. Salum Zheng Lee is
the younger brother of Mr. Zhang Lei. Therefore, Mr. Zhang Lei is
deemed to have the same interest in the Company.

Mr. Chen Yin holds 100% of the issued share capital of Dragon
Shing Technology Ltd., which owns 5,712,000 Shares out of the
issued share capital of the Company. Therefore, Mr. Chen Yin is
deemed to have the same interest in the Company.

Mr. Fan Qingguo holds 100% of the issued share capital of Create
Success Development Ltd., which owns 4,944,000 Shares out of the
issued share capital of the Company. Therefore, Mr. Fan Qingguo is
deemed to have the same interest in the Company.

Mr. Zhang Peng holds 100% of the issued share capital of Zhou
Ming Development Ltd., which owns 4,944,000 Shares out of the
issued share capital of the Company. Therefore, Mr. Zhang Peng is
deemed to have the same interest in the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on June 14, 2013. No options were granted under the
Share Option Scheme from the date of its adoption to the date of
this report. A summary of the principal terms and conditions of the
Share Option Scheme is set out as the follows:

The purpose of the scheme is to motivate the Eligible Participants to
optimize their performance efficiency for the benefit of our Group
and to attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the long-term growth of our Group.

The participants of the scheme include:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of our
Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(ii) any Directors (including independent non-executive directors) of
our Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iii) any advisors, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to our
Company or any of its subsidiaries

The total number of securities available for issue under the scheme
together with the percentage of the issued share capital that it
represents as at the date of the annual report is 10% of outstanding
shares, representing 160,000,000 Shares as of December 31, 2013.
The maximum entitlement of each participant under the scheme in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue as of the date of grant. Any further grant of
options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to:

(i) the issue of a circular by our Company which shall comply with
Rules 17.03(4) and 17.06 of the Listing Rules containing the
identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers of and terms of
the options to be granted (and options previously granted to such
participant) the information as required under Rules 17.02(2)(d)
and the disclaimer required under 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules;
and
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(ii) the approval of our Shareholders in general meeting and/or other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time
with such Eligible Participant and his associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting. The numbers and terms
(including the exercise price) of options to be granted to such
participant must be fixed before the Shareholders’ approval and
the date of the Board meeting at which our Board proposes to
grant the options to such Eligible Participant shall be taken as the
date of grant for the purpose of calculating the subscription price
of the Shares. The Board shall forward to such Eligible Participant
an offer document in such form as the Board may from time to
time determine.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
Option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of 10 years from that date. The minimum period, if any, for which an
option must be held before it may be exercised will be determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion. Upon acceptance of the
option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to our Company by way of
consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the
Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
will not be less than the highest of:

(i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities;

(ii) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.
Subject to earlier termination by our Company in general meeting or

by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years up to June 13, 2023.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at December 31, 2013, other than the interests and
short positions of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares or Underlying Shares” and
“Share Option Schemes” above, the following persons had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

LERNUNEIE - £

BHABE D

B#EE  Approximate %

EEHS B HEEME Number of Interest in

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest of Shares the Company

B AR B BR 2 A BB A (Fit1) 1,177,176,000 73.57%

Super Land Holdings Limited Registered holder (Note 1)
Fantastic Energy Ltd. RYEHEE 2w (MaET) 1,177,176,000 73.57%
Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1)
Cititrust Private Trust XFEA (Hat1) 1,177,176,000 73.57%
(Cayman) Limited Trustee (Note 1)

Salum Zheng Lee%t 4 2REFEMBISZA (K1) 1,177,176,000 73.57%
Mr. Salum Zheng Lee Settlor of a discretionary trust (Note 1)

RIBHER L foiBEs (fat2) 1,177,176,000 73.57%

Ms. Zhang Degui

BtaET -

Mtz -

#%%1,177,176,000/% i 15 £ 18 3t 12 AR B
RARIAERFAEANTORE &
TRABR AT 2B B ITIRANEFantastic
Energy Ltd. 2= & # A ' iMFantastic
Energy Ltd. 2302 2T AIH Cititrust
Private Trust (Cayman) LimitedbA R ik
BRENZRATOHEZERE - RIRET
AHSalum Zheng Leeftik (EX#m AR
Salum Zheng Lee/t £ REKE - &
FER B L E) ALK 2 {E 5T © Salum
Zheng Leeft EH R AR KIKIETAHA
£91,177,176,0000% & 15 R #E A #E 2

5k # # Z L ABSalum Zheng Lee’t
EWMEE HEREELZTHEEABR
1,177,176,000 % & fn B 2s o

Interest of a spouse (Note 2)

Note 1. These 1,177,176,000 Shares are held by Super Land Holdings Limited
as a registered holder. The entire issued share capital of Super Land
Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Fantastic Energy Ltd., the entire
issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by Cititrust
Private Trust (Cayman) Limited as the trustee of the Family Trust. The
Family Trust is a discretionary trust established by Mr. Salum Zheng
Lee, the beneficiaries of whom are family members of Mr. Salum
Zheng Lee, including Mr. Zhang Lei. Mr. Salum Zheng Lee is deemed
to be interested in 1,177,176,000 Shares held by the Family Trust.

Note 2: Ms. Zhang Degui is the spouse of Mr. Salum Zheng Lee. Therefore,
Ms. Zhang Degui is deemed to be interested in 1,177,176,000
Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2013, there was no
other person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS

Each of Mr. Zhang Lei and Mr. Salum Zheng Lee, the ultimate
Controlling Shareholders, has confirmed that save for the Modern
Building Business Hotel project, none of them is engaged in, or is
interested in any business (other than our Group) which, directly
or indirectly, competes or may compete with our businesses. To
protect our Group from any potential competition, our Controlling
Shareholders have entered into an irrevocable Non-competition Deed
in our favor on June 14, 2013 pursuant to which each of them has,
among other matters, irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken
with us on a joint and several basis that at any time during the
Relevant Period (Note 1), each of them shall, and shall procure that
his/its respective associates (other than our Group) shall:

(i) save for other Business (Note 2), not, directly or indirectly,
participate in, carry on, invest in or be engaged in any business
including without limitation any property development business
in the PRC and the U.S. which will or may compete with the
business currently and from time to time engaged by our Group
(“Restricted Business”);

(i) not solicit any existing or then existing employee of our Group
for employment by them or their respective associates (excluding
our Group);
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(iii) not, without our consent, make use of any information
pertaining to the business of our Group which may have
come to their knowledge in their capacity as our Controlling
Shareholders and/or Directors for the purpose of competing with
the Restricted Business; and

(iv) in respect of unsolicited enquiries or business opportunities
coming to their knowledge, unconditionally use reasonable
endeavors to procure that such potential customers appoint or
contact directly with any member of our Group.

In order to properly manage any potential or actual conflict of
interests between us and our Controlling Shareholders in relation to
the compliance and enforcement of the Non-competition Deed, we
have adopted the following corporate governance measures:

(i) the independent non-executive Directors will review, at least
on an annual basis, the compliance with and enforcement of
the terms of the Non-competition Deed by the Controlling
Shareholders;

(i)  we will disclose in the corporate governance report of our
annual report, our compliance measures and enforcement
measures relating to the Non-competition Deed;

Our Directors consider that the above corporate governance measures
are sufficient to manage any potential conflict of interests between
our Controlling Shareholders and their respective associates and our
Group and to protect the interests of our Shareholders, in particular,
our minority Shareholders.

Our Independent Non-executive Directors, upon their review,
confirmed that effective compliance with and enforcement of terms
of the above non-competition undertakings had been conducted by
Controlling Shareholders.

Note 1: the “Relevant Period” means the period commencing from the
Listing Date and shall expire upon the earliest date of occurrence of
the events below:

(@) the date on which Mr. Zhang Lei, Mr. Salum Zheng Lee, Super
Land, Fantastic Energy and Cititrust Cayman (individually or
taken as a whole) ceases to be controlling shareholders for the
purpose of the Listing Rules;
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- (b) B AIEI AR (D T B IER 2 AT sk (i@ (b) the date on which our Shares cease to be listed on the Stock
Q;E ) EMESR S ETMHBEHE Exchange or (if applicable) other stock exchange;

=

S HiiF2 © [EAhZER] 45 Note 2: the “Other Business” refers to:

-

3 (@) 5K & %t 4 - Salum Zheng Lee’t (@) any direct or indirect investments of Mr. Zhang Lei, Mr. Salum
5 A - fRIZERR - Fantastic Energy & Zheng Lee, Super Land, Fantastic Energy and Cititrust Cayman
K Cititrust Caymank sk £ & & and/or their respective associates (excluding our Group) in any
- RIBHEEA CREERS) HiE SRR member of our Group;

BRERREBERKE QT

(b) & & & & : Salum Zheng Lee’t (b) any direct or indirect investment of Mr. Zhang Lei, Mr. Salum
A - fRIZERR - Fantastic Energy & Zheng Lee, Super Land, Fantastic Energy and Cititrust Cayman
Cititrust Caymank /s 5 & & and/or their respective associates (excluding our Group) in
B A REBERSIN) EESHE shares of a publicly listed company (other than any member of
FERAREM AR (RNEEEM our Group) whereby:

B ARSI Bt -

() ER/SKEBEAZHHE (i) the aggregate interests held by him/it and/or his/its
RAREENBIBZ AR B associates shall not exceed 5% of the entire issued share
FTIRAEI5% : capital of that company;

Gy HRE SKHEBEA (AR (i)  none of him/it and/or his/its associates (individually or
B) WIFZ A RIME — R AR taken as a whole) will be the single largest shareholder or
REERFEA R equity holder of that company; and

(i) HE/SHEBEABTE2 (iii) none of him/it and/or his/its associates will be involved in
BZARRHEWE DA the operation and management of that company and/or
MEERER & its subsidiaries; and

(0 ERXREEMBEEER - () the Modern Building Business Hotel project.
EENBRIREBDINER DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

BRAREFTHEEIN - R20135E12HA31H + Save as disclosed in this report, as at December 31, 2013, none of
MEmEESEE G BB ANEEMERE  the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had any
BEBmFremF 2 EB N ETREEA  interest in any business which competes or may compete with the
s o businesses of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected transaction

On December 8, 2013, the Group exercised its repurchase option
under the Non-competition Deed and entered into the Sale and
Purchase Agreement with Modern Construction Investment
Management Co., Ltd.. The Group acquired Beijing Modern Moma
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (being a controlling shareholder
owns 60% equity interest in Suizhong Changlong Property
Development Co., Ltd.) for a consideration of RMB10.0 million and
outstanding shareholder loan of approximately RMB127.42 million.
Upon the completion of the transaction, the Group will assume
the obligation to provide shareholder loan to Suizhong Changlong
Property Development Co., Ltd. As at the date of transaction, Mr.
Zhang Lei, the Chairman and an executive Director of the Company,
and his daughter, Zhang Xinyu, are the ultimate beneficial owners
of the entire equity interest in Beijing Modern Moma Investment
Management Co., Ltd. Therefore, the transaction constitutes a
connected transaction under the Listing Rules, details of which were
disclosed in the announcement and circular of the Company dated
December 9, 2013 and January 9, 2014, respectively.

Continuing connected transactions
(i)  Property Management Services

During the year ended December 31, 2013, certain subsidiaries
of First Moma Asset Operation (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“First Moma
Asset Group”) had provided property management services to
the Group. First Moma Asset Group is owned indirectly by Mr.
Zhang Lei, the Director and a controlling shareholder, hence
a connected person of the Company. Transactions between
First Moma Asset Group on the one hand and the Group on
the other constitute continuing connected transactions. The
basis of calculation of the aforesaid transactions is mainly
based on (i) costs of labor for the management; (ii) the
property management fees; (iii) costs incurred as a result of
reduced purchasers’ property management fees; (iv) property
management fees in respect of the management and leasing
of vacant properties and car parks; and (v) fees regarding
other services provision.
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On June 14, 2013, First Moma Asset Group and the Company
entered into a master agreement for the provision of property
management services to the Group commencing on the
Listing Date and ending on December 31, 2015 (the “Master
Property Management Agreement”). It is envisaged that
from time to time and as required, members of the Group
will enter into individual property management services
agreement with members of the First Moma Asset Group.
Such individual property management services agreements are
expected to set out the detailed terms and provisions of the
property management services which may include the binding
principles, guidelines, terms and conditions in the Master
Property Management Agreement.

It is expected that, based on prevailing market rates, the
aggregate annual property management fees payable by us
to First Moma Asset Group in relation to the Master Property
Management Agreement for the three years ending December
31, 2015 will not exceed RMB56 million, RMB59 million
and RMB62 million, respectively. The aggregate amounts
of the property management fees paid by the Group was
approximately RMB54 million for the year ended December
31, 2013. As property management fees are chargeable by
First Moma Asset Group in respect of properties which are
expected to be completed, the above caps were determined
by the Directors with reference to the costs associated with
the expected area of the projects to be completed, including
the property management fees payable by us in respect of the
clubhouses, office districts, sales offices and vacant car parks
and properties, costs of labor for the provision of cleaning,
maintenance and security services, costs for setting up show
flats, costs of heating, fresh air displacement ventilation fees,
costs incurred as a result of reduced small owners’ property
management fees, costs of installation and maintenance
services of elevators, costs of operation and provision of
catering services for staff. In addition to the management
of properties of completed projects, property management
services provided by the connected parties include, among
others, the setting up and management of sales offices and
the management and maintenance of vacant properties prior
to sale in respect of the projects which are under development.
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Real Estate Agency Services

During the year ended December 31, 2013, First Moma
Real Estate Brokerage (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“First Moma
Real Estate Brokerage”) and First Moma Commercial
Operation Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“First Moma
Asset Operation”) provided real estate agency and related
consultation and management services in relation to
commercial properties to the Group. Each of First Moma
Real Estate Brokerage and First Moma Asset Operation is
a subsidiary of First Moma Asset Group, which is owned
indirectly by Mr. Zhang Lei, a Director and a Controlling
Shareholder, hence a connected person of the Company.
Transactions between each of First Moma Real Estate
Brokerage and First Moma Asset Operation on the one hand
and the Group on the other constitute continuing connected
transactions. The basis of calculation of the aforesaid
transactions is based on commission fees payable in respect
of the property agency services in relation to commercial
properties.

On June 14, 2013, First Moma Asset Group and the Company
entered into a master agreement for the provision of real
estate agency and related consultation and management
services in relation to commercial properties by First Moma
Asset Group to the Company commencing on the Listing
Date and ending on December 31, 2015 (the “Master Real
Estate Agency Agreement”). It is envisaged that, from time
to time and as required, members of the Group will enter into
individual real estate services agreement with members of the
First Moma Asset Group. Such individual real estate service
agreements are expected to set out the detailed terms and
provisions of the real estate agency services which may include
the binding principles, guidelines, terms and conditions in the
Master Real Estate Agency Agreement.
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It is expected that, based on prevailing market rates, the
aggregate annual real estate agency services fees and
commissions for the provision of real estate agency and
related consultation and management services in relation
to commercial properties payable by us to First Moma Asset
Group under the Master Real Estate Agency Agreement for the
three years ending December 31, 2015 will not exceed RMB5.2
million, RMB5.5 million and RMB5.8 million, respectively. The
above caps were determined by the Directors with reference
to the commission fees payable in respect of the property
agency services in relation to the commercial properties. For
the year ended December 31, 2013, the aggregate amounts
of the real estate agency service fees paid by the Group was
approximately RMB5 million.

Lease of Properties

The Company had entered into the following leases (the
“Leases”) relating to the leasing of the properties to certain
connected persons of the Company:

Lease of certain portion of 3rd floor, Block 8, Wan Guo Cheng
MOMA, Beijing

Beijing First Estate is owned indirectly by Mr. Zhang Lei and
hence a connected person of the Company. Modern Green
Development had entered into a tenancy agreement with
Beijing First Estate on March 28, 2013, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to let the property at 3rd floor, Block 8, Wan
Guo Cheng MOMA, Beijing, the PRC with a leased area of
approximately 457.52 sgq.m. to Beijing First Estate for a term
of three years commencing from March 28, 2013 to March 27,
2016 at a rental of RMB66,722 per month.
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Lease of Shop Nos. 106-109, 1/F, Complex Building at
iIMOMA, Anningzhuang West Road, Qinghe, Haidian District,
Beijing

Beijing Moma Preschool is owned indirectly by Mr. Zhang
Lei and hence a connected person of the Company. Beijing
Modern had entered into a tenancy agreement with Beijing
Moma Preschool on April 12, 2011 (the “iMOMA Preschool
Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company agreed
to let the property at Shop Nos. 106-109, 1/F., Complex
Building at iIMOMA, Anningzhuang West Road, Qinghe,
Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC with a leased area of
approximately 580.18 sg.m. to Beijing Moma Preschool for a
term of five years commencing from April 1, 2011 to March
31, 2016 at a rental of RMB21,176.57 per month with a
three-month rent free period from April 1, 2011 to June 30,
2011. The property is used for the operation of a preschool.

Lease of Block 4, Shangdi MOMA, South Ku, Qinghe, Haidian
District, Beijing (“Shangdi MOMA Beijing Premises”)

Beijing Moma Preschool is owned indirectly by Mr. Zhang
Lei and hence a connected person of the Company. Beijing
Modern had entered into a tenancy agreement with Beijing
Moma Preschool on May 30, 2013 (the “Shangdi MOMA
Preschool Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Company agreed to let the property at Block 4, Shangdi
MOMA, South Ku, Qinghe, Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC
with a leased area of approximately 2,120.10 sg.m. to Beijing
Moma Preschool for a term of 15 years commencing from
June 1, 2013 to August 31, 2029. The property is used for the
operation of a preschool. The Shangdi MOMA Beijing Lease
Agreement provided for a rent free period of 821 days, ending
on August 31, 2015 and at such rental fee to be determined
based on the prevailing market rates as of September 1, 2015.
The rental fee of the Shangdi MOMA Preschool Premises will
be subject to the applicable provisions, including Chapter 14A,
of the Listing Rules.
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The IMOMA Preschool Lease Agreement and Shangdi MOMA
Preschool Lease Agreement provided for a rent free period
of three months and 821 days, respectively. The Directors
consider that it would be commercially beneficial to us to have
preschools within the properties as part of the comprehensive
ancillary facilities for residents at the properties and
accordingly, it is necessary for us to offer a rent free period in
order to attract Beijing Moma Preschool to operate preschools
in the properties.

On June 14, 2013, First Moma Asset Group and the Company
entered into a master agreement for the leasing of certain
properties of the Group to members of the First Moma
Asset Group commencing on the Listing Date and ending on
December 31, 2015 (the “Master Lease Agreement”). It is
envisaged that, from time to time and as required, members
of the Group will enter into individual lease agreements with
members of the First Moma Asset Group, which are expected
to set out the detailed terms and provisions of the leases
which may include the binding principles, guidelines, terms
and conditions in the Master Lease Agreement.

It is expected that, based on prevailing market rates, the
aggregate annual rental fees payable to us under the Master
Lease Agreement for the three years ending December 31,
2015 will not exceed RMB2 million, RMB2.1 million and
RMB2.3 million, respectively, which have been determined
by reference to prevailing market rates. The increase in the
estimated annual caps for the three years ending December
31, 2013, 2014 and 2015 as compared to the historical
amounts during the Year ended December 31, 2013 have
taken into consideration among others (i) the new tenancy
agreement in relation to the leasing of certain portion of 3rd
floor of Block 8 of Wan Guo Cheng MOMA to Beijing First
Estate in March 2013; and (ii) the expected leasing of certain
properties of Wan Guo Cheng MOMA (Changsha), Nanchang
Mantingchun MOMA and lJiujiang Mantingchun MOMA for
the operation of preschool in the respective projects which
will commence in the second half of 2013. The aggregate fee
received by the Company was approximately RMB1.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2013.
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Annual review and confirmation in pursuance of
Rule 14A.37 and 14A.38 of the Listing Rules

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed and
confirmed in pursuance of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules that the
continuing connected transactions contemplated above were carried
out (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
on normal commercial terms at which the transactions are either on
an arm’s length basis or on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

To comply with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company's
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has provided a letter to confirm that the continuing connected
transactions set out above:

(i)  has been approved by the Board,

(i) has been entered into in accordance with the relevant terms of
the agreement governing the transaction; and

(iii) has not exceeded the total cap amount as disclosed in the
Prospectus.
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(BERETHRBFEI4AE) ©

EFEERABAAFEULREIZHHFHEN
BEXSNEBENTE LMRRIMER -

BE BEIHEARRFT LHRES

HE2013F12A31HILFE » AARISET
AMBARIREHERTH TEMEREE - &
O HEARRARME EHES -

BrBEERE

ARERHANKFASHESRRATERRE
STREENMRT -

RIS

AEBARMETERESERGIERTEDE
2 ([REeFE)) - BESF B ERIERS
HEREEEBIGH (FBADIFEA85E) MR
HIEREEAEEERER - BERFTEIM
BEREEESDARIBIUIAAEE -
BEREEHBEREARESEIFARBE
MER  BRERBESHEARE - A2
AR B A SZ BV B A Bl E B A i B
LENEZRASFENKE - ZFHEAR
A 7B 4 B BN A AR B — RE L R R ROR RET B
Ko REBERB TS TR —RE/RE
R R E R -

Others

The continuing connected transactions disclosed above also constitute
related party transaction under the International Financial Reporting
Standards. A summary of significant related party transactions made
during the year was disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements.
Iltem (c) therein also constitute connected/continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Board confirms that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements as required by the Listing Rules in relation to
the aforementioned connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended December 31, 2013, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries and its jointly controlled entities has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group had joined a mandatory Hong Kong provident fund
scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at specified rates. The employees
of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed amount of public float during the year and
up to the date of this report as required under the Listing Rules.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The Company raised net proceeds of approximately HK$545.4
million (based on HK$1.49 per Offer Share less underwriting fee and
commissions and other relevant expenses, equivalent to approximately
RMB457.2 million) in aggregate under its initial public offering
at the Stock Exchange in July 2013. During the Relevant Period,
approximately RMB400,000,000 of such amount was used to acquire
a parcel of land at Nanchang as proposed in the section headed “Use
of Proceeds” of the prospectus (detailed information is set out in the
voluntary announcement of the Company dated August 14, 2013).
Included in the total balance of the proceeds unutilised, amounting
to RMB45.7 million, will be used as general working capital as
disclosed in the prospectus.

BANK LOANS, OTHER LOANS AND SENIOR
NOTES

Particulars of bank loans and other loans, and senior notes of the
Group as at December 31, 2013 are set out in notes 28 and 29 to
the financial statements respectively. During the year, no convertible
bonds were converted into ordinary shares of the Company and no
warrants were exercised.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review of
the internal controls and consolidated financial statements of the
Group. The members of the Audit Committee are satisfied with the
Company’s internal control procedures and the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2013.
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20143 H248

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Details of a non-adjusting post-balance sheet event are set out in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2013 AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Zhang Lei
Chairman

March 24, 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MODERN LAND (CHINA) CO., LIMITED
ERBE(TR)ERADF
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Modern
Land (China) Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 191,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at December
31, 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flow for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
March 24, 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, gain and loss

Change in fair value of held for trading
investments

Fair value gain of completed properties
for sale upon transfer to investment
properties

Changes in fair value of investment
properties

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Listing expenses

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

20135 20124

k=3 ARMFT ARKEFIT
2013 2012

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
5 3,469,029 1,965,226
(2,099,066) (1,092,415)

1,369,963 872,811

6 8,680 173,622
= 1,573

13 30,186 99,154
13 46,273 37,000
(170,797) (121,675)
(204,136) (150,106)
7 (35,570) (98,098)
(22,024) (16,518)

1,022,575 797,763
8 (494,230) (319,399)
9 528,345 478,364
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HZE2013F 12 A31HLLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

ﬁ 20135 20124
> KtaF AR®TFT ARKFT
E 2013 2012
= Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=
o
= Ht2EBA Other comprehensive income
=
N
5 RETAEFHEZ Items that will not be reclassified to profit
EmhEE - or loss:
XFERYEERE Gain on revaluation of owner-occupied
KEYENE GBS properties upon transfer to investment
properties - 1,027
HEFRAMESR Deferred tax relating to gain on revaluation
Wz B R IRER IR of owner-occupied properties - (257)
HIEABFFHEE Items that may be reclassified subsequently
BammIEE - to profit or loss:
HMEIRINETS PE & Exchange differences on translating foreign
RORE H =58 operations (3,740) 252
FEEMEEmEA Other comprehensive income for the year,
(F0BREREIE) net of income tax (3,740) 1,022
FEXTEMP AL Total comprehensive income for the year 524,605 479,386
THIATHEIGEREEF] ©  Profit for the year attributable to:
KARER A Owners of the Company 528,934 471,488
SRR HE Non-controlling interests (589) 6,876
528,345 478,364
THATEEEEWK A Total comprehensive income
4azm - attributable to:
PN/NGIE7 2N Owners of the Company 525,194 472,496
FEPE IR i = Non-controlling interests (589) 6,890
524,605 479,386
FR&EF (ANR®5 ) Earnings per share, in Renminbi cents:
BN Basic 12 38.1 39.3
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Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Prepaid lease payments

Freehold land held for future
development

Available-for-sale investments

Deposits paid for acquisition of
land use rights

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Properties under development for sale

Properties held for sale

Trade and other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Amounts due from related parties

Restricted cash

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables, deposits
received and accrued charges
Amounts due to related parties
Taxation payable
Bank and other borrowings
— due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

B OF R B R R R

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

720134128318 At December 31, 2013

ft et

Notes

13
14
15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22
23

24
38(a)
25
25

26
38(b)
27

28

20135 20124
ARMFT ARKEFIT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
825,660 717,000
518,803 933,078
1,229 1,337
916,137 279,192
27,742 28,600
34,336 12,056
465,000 =
338,488 250,207
3,127,395 2,221,470
3,350 879
2,936,051 3,570,940
1,649,366 1,276,697
467,690 446,241

= 2,305

125,930 85,225
2,743,579 787,712
7,925,966 6,169,999
4,926,654 4,547,405
13,990 17,144
1,453,506 1,198,397
256,910 109,000
6,651,060 5,871,946
1,274,906 298,053
4,402,301 2,519,523
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A20139F12A31H At December 31, 2013

g 20135 20124
> Mt AR¥FT AREFIT
E 2013 2012
,:E Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
=
v
= 7R % i s Capital and reserves
S AR Share capital 30 98,610 342
o s Reserves 2,373,702 1,501,137
NN TR AFE(GREZS  Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 2,472,312 1,501,479
AR = Non-controlling interests (1,319) (730)
et ER Total equity 2,470,993 1,500,749
EmBIEE Non-current liabilities
RITREMEE Bank and other borrowings
(R—F1&E2H) — due after one year 28 997,200 1,000,900
BRER Senior notes 29 904,753 —
FEEFIEA A Deferred tax liabilities 20 29,355 17,874
1,931,308 1,018,774
4,402,301 2,519,523

FIEFINEMEH U B MEKRLESET The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 191 were

201453 H24 Bt RIXRERETT - approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on March
24, 2014.
EF EF
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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EHEREER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

At January 1, 2012

Gain on revaluation of owner-
occupied properties

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Other comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Share-based payment

Contribution from a company
controlled by a shareholder (note e)

Acquisition of additional interest
in subsidiaries

Appropriations to reserves

Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests (Note 11)

At December 31, 2012
Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Other comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Capitalisation issue of shares
(Note 30)

Issuance of shares in connection with
listing (Note 30)

Share issue expenses

Share-based payment

Contribution from a company
controlled by a shareholder (note e)

Disposal of subsidiaries
Appropriations to reserves
Transfer (note f)

Dividend (Note 11)

At December 31, 2013

HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

YNSIE 2N T
Attributable to equity owners of the Company
ETE SNE
BA  RIVEE  HRIEE  EREE HEhRE BRRE  AHRE Ehyiol] At HERER  BReE
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
(Hiita) (Hitb) (Hitc) (Hiitd)
Foreign
Statutory currency Non-
Share Special  Revaluation Other surplus  translation  Accumulated controlling
Share capital premium reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests  Total equity
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(note a) (note b) (note ¢) (note d)
342 - 323,334 70,710 (13,639 190,723 - 475,261 1,046,731 27,931 1,074,662
- - - 756 - - - - 756 14 770
- - - - - - 252 - 252 - 252
- - - 756 - - 252 - 1,008 14 1,022
= = = = = = = 471,488 471,488 6,876 478,364
- - - 756 - - 252 471,488 472,496 6,890 479,386
- - - - 6,294 - - - 6,294 - 6,294
- - 393 - - - - - 393 14 407
- - (24,435) - - - - - (24,435) (28,845) (53,280)
_ - - = - 79,506 = (79,506) - - -
_ _ _ - - = = - - (6,720) (6,720)
342 - 299,292 71,466 (7,345) 270,229 252 867,243 1,501,479 (730) 1,500,749
- - - - - - (3.,740) - (3,740) - (3,740)
- - - - - - (3.,740) - (3,740) - (3,740)
- - - - - - - 528,934 528,934 (589) 528,345
- - - = - - (3,740) 528,934 525,194 (589) 524,605
73,615 (73,615) - - 5 = = - - - -
24,653 448,698 - - - - - - 473,351 - 473,351
= (16,105) = = = = = = (16,105) = (16,105)
- - - - 6,613 - - - 6,613 - 6,613
= = 407 = = = = = 407 = 407
- - 358 - - - - - 358 - 358
- - - - - 23,512 - (23,512) - - -
- - - (38,095) - - - 38,095 - - -
- (18,985) - - - - - - (18,985) - (18,985)
98,610 339,993 300,057 33,371 (732) 293,741 (3.488) 1,410,760 2,472,312 (1,319) 2,470,993
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2013F 12 A31HLLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

st

BREANBERAMAE 1341 - AR A
EEARMRERBEMNRAKE -

Rl MBI B A B BRI E
7 RRRBE-XHBAR - HERH
BREM D s MR B — R R PTE
B A AR HERK o

RE Z2008F12A31B IEEE - K
HEEXAERAR (AIBERGZBESE
BRAR) ([ER&E])) EHEZNRET
REBEXERMAERAR (AIBILRERSE
BERMWELERBERAF) ([ERE
BE1) 5.8% MMz - MAEN S EEE A
B ([EE]) BERNERZEHI.924%
EmBHAREBENED - TIER AN
B&AD I 3R © 20084F [E ¥ 1A 18 A TE =R
B LARR D 15 R 42 85 A& A R #557,704,000
T HlEEBRERBNASFEAESN
Bro B L NEBERE E20135F12A
318 IEFERRERNE R G AE
RS2 4 A R #6,613,0007T (2012
£ AR#6,294,0007T) - Pl ZIES
e B E AR -

M2013F38 + B —fi{E 88 R - 8D
FEEIWARIRER T FRARE - AR
EREERETERSENREEZNE
Rz - Bit - 812201341248
BTHIEFERBZESNG T ARG
FKAER#319,0007T (5t A Lt A R
6,613,000t ) BEEAHIER R EAM
2EURART A0 -

REEPEAREHLME ([HE]) K
YMASEREE TS TERBNAGE
RAR ZFERARZEZEERFHES
BE (BRETFEAREARAUEEHN)
BMREMNN10%  BEEZFREDEH
EREMELRNS0% R IE - BEARH
BEFAADIRKKEZAEL - AEA
BREGUANBHEAEFEMNEE 1B
ARANBEXBRERBEBNREI

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to article 134 of the Company’s Article of Association, the
Company is permitted to pay out final dividend from share premium
account.

Special reserve relates to acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries,
deemed acquisition of a subsidiary, disposals of partial interest
in subsidiaries and contribution from a company controlled by a
shareholder.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, Modern Green Industrial
Co., Ltd. ERGZEEEXER2AAF (formerly known as Modern Green
Property Co., Ltd. ER&ZEBEXARAA]) (“Modern Green Industrial”)
disposed of 5.8% interests in Modern Green Development Co., Ltd. E1X
Epe B E M AER QA (formerly known as Beijing Modern Hongyun Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. It R ERIBESHELEFAEGR A A)
(“Modern Green Development”). The excess of the fair value of 1.924%
interest in Modern Green Industrial transferred to certain senior level
management individuals (the “Employees”) is considered as a share-
based payment. The total share based payment initially recognised in the
reserve in 2008 amounted to RMB57,704,000 and is charged to profit or
loss over 6 years of service to be provided by the Employees. Accordingly,
the Group recognised an expense of approximately RMB6,613,000
(2012: RMB6,294,000) for year ended December 31, 2013 in relation to
share-based payment of the Group. The amount was released from other

reserve.

In March 2013, one of the Employees resigned, the management of the
Company agreed not to obtain the interest in Modern Green Industrial
previously transferred to him even though he has not yet provided the
required number of years of services, as such, the remaining share-based
payment relating to him amounted to RMB319,000, which included in
RMB6,613,000 mentioned above, was fully charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the
year ended December 31, 2013.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of certain entities
established in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") now comprising
the Group, these entities are required to transfer 10% of the profit after
taxation, prepared in accordance with PRC generally accepted accounting
principles, to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital of respective entities. Transfer to this
reserve must be made before distributing dividends to equity holders.
The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous year's
losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital
of the entities.
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

Pursuant to the agreement dated November 29, 2010 entered into
between Modern Green Development and an employee of Modern
Green Development, the employee can use the property developed by
Beijing Modern City Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. dtREKE T
FEHERIE AR AR (“Beijing Modern City Real Estate”), a company
controlled by a shareholder of the Company. The title of the property
will be transferred to the employee upon his completion of service with
Modern Green Development for 10 years commencing from October
30, 2010. As at November 29, 2010, the market value of the property is
RMB4,071,000. The Group recognised this transaction as staff cost and
contribution from a company controlled by the shareholder amounted
to RMB407,000 (2012: RMB407,000) for the year ended December 31,
2013.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group disposed of
certain investment properties which were transferred from property,
plant and equipment in prior years, as such the revaluation gain
previously recognised in the revaluation reserve has been transferred to

accumulated profits upon disposal.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2013F 12 A31HLLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

SN
758 B i A
AT SIBELRHE
BB A
A EWA
AHHERERS
YA
ME - BE R
R e
BB EEH
PABR A2 15 35K
FEHEMFRERE
BREMEN
DA EEKRS
REMELAEE

A
=

FEEERE
RABEEZS

R P 8% R 5 B
HEWE - BE K
R R W

KB — BRI
RAEWEF - B
HERAE TRA

FEHE WX (BE)
OB

REEIE W as

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Interest income

Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Share-based payment

Fair value gain upon transfer from
properties held for sale to investment
properties

Changes in fair value of investment
properties

Changes in fair value of investments
held for trading

Allowance for doubtful debts

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Contribution from a company controlled

by a shareholder, recognised as staff cost

(Reversal of) write-down on properties
held for sale
Unrealised exchange gain

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

2013%F 20124
AR¥FT AREFIT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
1,022,575 797,763
35,570 98,098
(7,140) (4,503)
(6,146) (1,412)
19,695 19,220
180 201
6,613 6,294
(30,186) (99,154)
(46,273) (37,000)
= (1,573)
610 11
(496) (5,323)
407 407
(11,510) 15,643
(6,955) =
976,944 788,672
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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2013% 20124 "
ARMTT  AREFT i
2013 2012 i
RMB000 RMB’000
s . . . Bt
ZBESEE) Movements in working capital: =
FEE Increase in inventories (2,471) (630) E”
BRPEEYENIFIE  Decrease in properties under development
SHEMER D for sale and properties held for sale 645,624 109,960 §_
B 5 R E A WK - Decrease in trade and other receivables, o)
& R IBA RO A deposits and prepayments 25,874 438,873 :'T
JfE Uk BA B 7 FR IR R D Decrease in amounts due from related parties 186 2,333 3
B ALTHERBEDN  Increase in deposits paid for acquisition of =
(3RS R FAR S AN land use right (465,000) - =
AR E T IE N Increase in prepaid lease payments (783,597) (81,000) %
FBIERRRERD Increase in freehold land held for future o
KA ZEHE + 3 3 AN development - (28,600) c
o NEMERR Increase in trade and other payables, deposits %
Bl e kETER received and accrued charges o
il 517,926 766,050
JE 1<) B St 75 SR IB A AN Increase in amounts due to related parties 162 4,206
K EBBHRE Cash generated from operating activities 915,648 1,999,864
2P 1EHL Income tax paid (359,695) (137,328)
FEEFATSIREFE  Net cash generated from operating activities 555,953 1,862,536
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E 20135 20124
> KtaF AREFT ARBTF T
é 2013 2012
= Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
E
= KEES Investing activities
g B Interest received 7,140 4,503
o BIEEEREFUEL  Dividend received from held-for-trading
f% & investments - 1,573
BAEHEREYEL  Dividend received from available-for-sale
B B investment 6,146 1,412
BAMEHERE Purchase of available-for-sale investments (229,280) =
BAWE - MENEZME  Purchase of property, plant and equipment (112,377) (116,165)
BAELEE Purchase of intangible assets (72) (136)
HERHEERERE  Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale
Q] investments 207,000 =
HEWE  BHEK Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
RIEPTS IR equipment 2,834 11,847
HEMRB ARSI Net cash flow on disposals of subsidiaries
=558 33 9,783 -
A Ry =PNE] Acquisition of subsidiaries 32 (4,159) =
EE F—FEWEHE  Settlement of consideration payable for
NEERRE acquisition of subsidiaries in prior year - (67,361)
[l BB 77 R AR Advances to related parties (4,114) (5,816)
B ER Repayment from related parties 106,657 5,639
HEREYEFTSZIE  Proceeds on disposal of investment properties 84,573 -
FHERRE Placement of deposit for loans - (52,565)
BEEZRE Withdrawal of deposit for loans = 52,565
IR &35 £ 3% 0 Increase in restricted cash (40,705) (30,835)
WEEHAE (FTH) Net cash generated from (used in) investing
He ¥R activities 33,426 (195,339)
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2013% 20124 "
Hfat ARMFT  ARETT i
2013 2012 i
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BB ED Financing activities =
B4 F . Interest paid (102,013) (209,520) E”
ERRE Dividend paid (18,715) (6,720)
UG BE B B A B 9 RSN Acquisition of additional interests §_
g in subsidiaries - (33,280) o
BERITEE Repayments of bank borrowings (419,757) (323,500) :'T
EBEEHEMEE Repayments of other borrowings (300,000) (1,390,000) =
HIBRITER New bank loans raised 473,967 500,000 A
g H A &K New other loans raised 390,000 300,000 =
1838 B8 5 R Repayment to related parties (3,286) (47) %
a B 7 2R Advances from related parties (20) 188 o
BITERZEFTSIE  Net proceeds from issue of senior notes .
et 29 891,952 _ =
NEIBER T EITARY  Net proceeds from issuance of shares under o
FriS 3R %58 the public offering 457,246 =
mMEETHE (FTH) Net cash generated from (used in) financing
IReFE activities 1,369,374 (1,162,879)
RERRESEEY Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
HEHNFER 1,958,753 504,318
FUReMREEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year 787,712 283,142
BE SR S B LASMNEREBH) Effects of exchange rate changes on the
ReEBRN 2 balance of cash held in foreign currencies (2,886) 252
FRBLEMRKRIRS S Cash balance and cash equivalents at the end
B of the year 2,743,579 787,712
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RARR2006F6 A28 A RIBEFAEHS
RNEEERESHSEMK L A —RER
RBERAA - HE R AR REB R R
SR ERER QA ([
#]) REREZER AR ARIBEERSE
BB B A S A Fantastic Energy Ltd.
([Fantastic Energyl) o ZNA &) A sE %
E A Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket
Square, P.O. Box 2804, Grand Cayman
KY1-1112, Cayman Islands » HEE &
EER A AP E AR ([HRE])
Jb R F A BB 1 5% o

ARRABHEEROREFHERS
FraBR AR ([BRAT]) EREM ([E
ml) o R2011FETTEBEM - E—
F BN AR F2013F6H28H T3
RERE - AR A E1&MR2013F7H12H
B P 7 o

KARAREER AR - BERETEE
ErE i E42 ©

BHMBHRERRAARE [ARK]) 2
5 NARETISREBERKEMETE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on June
28, 2006 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Its parent is Super
Land Holdings (“Super Land”), a company incorporated in the
BVI and its ultimate holding company is Fantastic Energy Ltd.,
a company incorporated under the laws of Commonwealth of
the Bahamas. Both of them are controlled by Mr. Zhang Lei and
Mr. Salum Zheng Lee. The registered office of the Company is
located at Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 2804,
Grand Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman Islands, and its principal
place of business is located at No. 1, Xiangheyuan Road,
Dongcheng District, Beijing, People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

In preparation for the listing of its shares on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing”), the Company underwent a group
reorganisation in 2011. Further details of which are set out in
the Company’s prospectus dated June 28, 2013. The Company’s
shares were then listed on the Stock Exchange on July 12, 2013.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of
the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 42.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB"), the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the group entities operate (the functional currency of
group entities).
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) has applied for the first time in
the current year the following new and revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and International
Accounting Standards (”IAS") issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other

Entities

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 11 and IFRS 12

[FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements

IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009

— 2011 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 7
Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IFRSs

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine

Except as described below, the application of the above new
and revised IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to “IAS 1 Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income”

The amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income” introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income. Under the amendments
to IAS 1, the Group's “statement of comprehensive income”
is renamed as a “statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income”. The amendments to IAS 1 require
items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into two
categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on
items of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated
on the same basis — the amendments do not change the
option to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been applied
retrospectively, and hence the presentation of items of other
comprehensive income has been modified to reflect the changes.
Other than the above mentioned presentation changes, the
application of the amendments to IAS 1 does not result in any
impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.

IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements” that deal with consolidated financial
statements and SIC — Int 12 “Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities”. IFRS 10 changes the definition of control such that
an investor has control over an investee when a) it has power
over the investee, b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and c) has the
ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of these
criteria must be met for an investor to have control over an
investee. Previously, control was defined as the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. Additional guidance has been
included in IFRS 10 to explain when an investor has control over
an investee.
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) made an
assessment as at the date of initial application of IFRS 10 as
to whether or not the Group has control over the investees in
accordance with the new definition of control and the related
guidance set out in IFRS 10, and concluded that the application
of IFRS10 does not change any of the control conclusions
reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with other
entities as at January 1, 2013.

IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

The Group has applied IFRS 13 for the first time in the current
year. IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for, and
disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope of
IFRS 13 is broad; the fair value measurement requirements
of IFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other IFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2 “Share based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value (e.g.net realisable value for the purposes of
measuring inventories or value in use for impairment assessment
purposes).

IFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would
be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the
case of determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market
at the measurement date under current market conditions.
Fair value under IFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. Also, IFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure
requirements.
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il 2. BRAFTREETERIMBEIER 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

ﬁg HER (#) INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

g STANDARDS (Continued)

>

r;ﬁ Bl B B 7% R S 2E RSB 1358 E SRR AT IE IFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance with the

§ - IRIERER YRS AR F 1357 EE transitional provisions of IFRS 13, the Group has not made any

g B REBARETE2012F LB AR new disclosures required by IFRS 13 for the 2012 comparative

@ HEB I IRE R F135 T ERNE period (see Note 13 for the 2013 disclosures). Other than the
AT E (FEEEBFL2HMWE13) additional disclosures, the application of IFRS 13 has not had any
BrREESNEEEESN - IR B BT IF RS ER material impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
FBIFAREEHYBRRPAERN S financial statements.

BEREMNEATE -

CEGENRERWTHTREBLT New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
BRIRETWT :
028 0 (B 1 o8 A S B 5T R RIS ST B The following new and revised standards and amendments have
RISETIT been issued which are not yet effective:
BB S ME LR RS Em Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities’
£10% - BE IFRS 12 and IAS 27
TG R
6125% R BIER
FEOEBIE 275 _
BIpR & st g FEEH R Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
195 (BRIA) EEHFR Contributions
BB FR R Bl EE B SR S| Amendments to IFRS 9 and Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9
Ho5 L EEEE  HoYEMR | IFRS 7 and Transition Disclosures?
HEEAETHR LA M FER M
(E&TA) R Ee o
B ]| NS mEERLSR Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
38k B &S Financial Liabilities®
A Pl SR EER T ULE Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amounts Disclosures
=365 S EEI TR for Non-Financial Assets'
4% g =t | FTETANEER Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
3988 Yihe st E Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’
BB BA TSR R BB FE iR A Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
({EETA) 20105 220125 2010-2012 Cycle*
B ERE & R s
BRI FEIRAEXER] BRI TS RE %R Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
(ERTA) 20114F 220135 2011-2013 Cycle?
B 0 B2 -
BB EmE LR ST A IFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
F9%
IR Bf FERAE 0| EEEEEEE B S IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
F145% _
B8 (BRMH®RE HE IFRIC 21 Levies'
REZEE)
— REE215
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phases of IFRS 9 are finalised

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions

g Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements beginning on or
after 1 January 2016

The Directors anticipate that the application of the above new or
revised IFRSs have been issued but are not yet effective will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for the investment properties
which are measured at fair value, and in accordance with
accounting policies set out below which are in conformity with
IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. In addition,
a fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in
use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of the other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Change in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in a Company’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests will be adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the construction of respective
properties have been completed and the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the properties are transferred to the
customers, that is when the customers completed the necessary
procedures to acknowledge receipts of delivery of properties in
accordance with the terms under respective sales and purchases
agreements.

Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to the
date of revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Revenue from hotel accommodation, food and beverage sales
and other ancillary services is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Other service income is recognised when the services are
provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are initially
measured at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve
will be transferred directly to retained profits.

Where properties held for sale transferred to investment
properties when there is a change of intention to hold the
property to earn rentals or/and capital appreciation, which
is evidenced by the commencement of an operating lease to
another party, any difference between the carrying amount and
fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in
profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any recognised impairment loss.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purpose are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives after taking into
account of their estimated residual values, using the straight-line
method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or retirement of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.

Prepaid lease payments

The prepaid lease payments represent upfront payments for
land use rights for the purpose of development of properties for
sale and are initially recognised at cost and released to profit
or loss over the lease term on a straight-line basis. They would
be transferred to properties under development for sale upon
commencement of the related construction work in property
development project.
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3. XESTHE 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FIFA AR KAEREL M Freehold land held for future development

The freehold land held for future development represents parcels
of land owned by the Group for the purpose of development
of properties for sale. The freehold land is initially recognised at
cost and not depreciated. It would be transferred to properties
under development for sale upon commencement of the related
construction work in property development project.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development which are intended to be sold in
the ordinary course of business upon completion of development
are classified as current assets, and carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Costs include the related land cost,
development expenditure incurred and, where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
properties held for sale upon completion.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
property, plant and equipment when there is a change of
intention to hold the properties under development for own use.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes the costs of land, development
expenditure incurred and, where appropriate, borrowing costs
capitalised. Net realised value is determined based on prevailing
market conditions.

Properties held for sale are transferred to property, plant and
equipment when there is a change of intention to hold the
properties held for sale for own use.
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwiill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belong. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the small group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transactions costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loan and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and held-for-
trading financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments, of which interest income is included in other
income.
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Loan and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade receivables, other receivables, amounts due
from related parties, restricted cash, bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting period
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Held-for-trading financial assets
A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

e itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-making; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Held-for-trading financial assets (Continued)

Held-for-trading financial assets are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from re-measurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than held-for-trading financial assets
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment for loan and receivables could
include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable and other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings, senior
notes, trade payables, other payables and amounts due to
related parties are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the group entities are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire, or when the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the Group’s obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expenses
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases, in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into Renminbi using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
of the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in accordance with IAS 40 Investment
Property, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model of
the Group whose business objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption
is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for
such investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principle set out in IAS 12 (i.e. based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits scheme
under the state-managed retirement benefit scheme in PRC are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
with employees

The fair value of services received determined with reference to
the fair value of shares transferred less consideration received
from employees is recognised in other reserve at the date of
transfer and expensed on a straight-line basis over the service
period as specified in the equity transfer agreement. The impact
of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment
to other reserve.

When the employees leave the Group before the completion
of service period as specified in the equity transfer agreement
and the Group does not purchase back the shares from the
employees, the remaining share-based payment is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, management is required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair values based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers.
In determining the fair values, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates of market
condition. In relying on the valuation report, the Directors have
exercised their judgment and are satisfied that the assumptions
used in the valuation are reflective of the current market
conditions. Changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group’s investment properties
and the corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or
loss reported in profit or loss.

Income tax expense

Deferred tax assets of approximately RMB338,488,000 (2012:
RMB250,207,000) mainly in relation to tax losses, land
appreciation tax provisions, allowance for bad and doubtful
debts, write-down of properties held for sale, advertising
expenses, temporary differences on property sales and cost of
sales and others have been recognised at December 31, 2013,
after offsetting certain deferred tax liabilities as set out in Note
20. The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. The Directors determine the
deferred tax assets based on the enacted or substantially
enacted tax rates and the best knowledge of profit projections
of the Group for coming years during which the deferred tax
assets are expected to be utilised. The Directors will review the
assumptions and profit projections by the end of the reporting
period. In cases where the actual future profits generated
are more or less than expected, an additional recognition or
a reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in the profit or loss for the period in which such a
recognition or reversal takes place.
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of the tax varies
amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC
and certain property development projects of the Group have not
finalised their land appreciation tax calculations and payments
with local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant
judgment is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related income tax provisions. The Group
recognised the land appreciation tax based on management’s
best estimates. The final tax outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and these differences
will impact the income tax expense and the related income tax
provisions in the periods in which such tax is finalised with local
tax authorities.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in IAS 40, the Directors have reviewed
the Group’s investment property portfolios together with certain
properties characteristics. For investment properties amounting
to RMB50,000,000 (2012: RMB56,000,000) as at December 31,
2013, the Directors concluded that they are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the
Group's deferred taxation on investment properties, the Directors
have determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value model
are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. The Group
has estimated the deferred tax taking into account both the land
appreciation tax and enterprise income tax on disposal of these
investment properties.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (Continued)

For other investment properties amounting to RMB775,660,000
(2012: RMB661,000,000) as at December 31, 2013, the
Directors have reassessed and concluded that they are held with
a business model to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. For these investment properties, the
presumption that investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered through sale is rebutted and the
Group has estimated the deferred tax taking into account of
enterprise income tax.

Guaranteed return and bonus service fee of project
management service contract

The Group has entered into a project management service
contract in relation to a property development project with
an independent third party in June 2011. Pursuant to the
project management service contract, the Group has provided
a guarantee of minimum rate of return of investment of the
project. And the Group would entitle to receive variable bonus
service fee if the rate of return of investment of the project is
above certain levels. The management has conducted a review
of the estimates of both future revenue and budgeted costs
of the project and concluded that the possibility of failure to
achieve the minimum rate of return is remote and therefore no
liability has been recognised at December 31, 2012 and 2013.
Pursuant to a supplementary agreement entered between the
Group and the independent third party dated March 21, 2014,
both parties agreed to amend the terms of the agreement,
including the alteration of the scope of work to be performed
upon the cancellation of the clause of the minimum rate of
return of investment of the project (see Note 35 for details).
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Dividend policy

The Group recognised the withholding tax for undistributed
profits of PRC subsidiaries with intention to distribute around
20% of profit after tax for the years since January 1, 2008. If
there is any material fluctuation to the distributable profits, as
a result of the changes in business or financial conditions, the
Director will consider adjusting the dividend distribution ratio.
Nevertheless, there is no assurance that dividends of any amount
will be declared or distributed each year or in any given year.
The Director will re-evaluate the dividend policy from time to
time.

Write-down of completed properties held for sale

Management performs a regular review on the carrying amount
of completed properties held for sale. Based on management’s
review, write-down of completed properties held for sale will
be made when the estimated net realisable value has declined
below the carrying amount.

In determining the net realisable value of completed properties
held for sale, management refers to prevailing market data such
as recent sales transactions as base for evaluation.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating activities are attributable to a single
reportable and operating segment focusing on (a) property
development, (b) property investment and (c) hotel operation
which commenced operation in second half of 2013. The
operating segment has been identified on the basis of internal
management reports reviewed by chief decision maker of the
Group. The chief operating decision maker mainly reviews
revenue from sales of properties from property development,
leasing properties from property investment and hotel operation
from hotel operation report which are measured in accordance
with accounting policies similar to those of IFRS. However,
other than revenue information, no operating results and other
discrete financial information is available for the assessment
of performance of the respective type of revenue. The chief
operating decision maker, Mr. Zhong Tianxiang, who is the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group, reviews the overall results and
organisation structure of the Group as a whole to make decision
about resources allocation. Accordingly, no analysis of this single
reportable and operating segment is presented.

Turnover represents the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for goods sold and services provided to customers
during the year.

Entity-wide information

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by type is as follow:

2013%F 20124

AR®TF ARBT T

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

MEEE Sale of properties 3,427,613 1,945,557
YIERE Leasing of properties 34,560 19,669
B JE 4 Hotel operation 6,856 =
3,469,029 1,965,226

M2013%F12A318 ' EEEAARK
2,726,541,0007T (20124 : A R ¥
1,930,390,0007T) HIZERBEE (T8
FEeMTARECERBEE) DR
B - mMR2013%F12H31H © REE A
AR #28,030,0007T (20124 : AR
28,817,0007T) MY E 82 3R BV & B TH L
RER ([ER]) -

Non-current assets (excluding financial instruments and deferred
tax assets) with carrying amount of RMB2,726,541,000 (2012:
RMB1,930,390,000) as at December 31, 2013 are situated in
the PRC, the remaining non-current assets with carrying amount
of RMB28,030,000 (2012: RMB28,817,000) as at December 31,
2013 are situated in the United States (“US").
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the Group’s
revenue from external customers by geographical location. The
geographical location of customers is based on the location at
which the services were provided or the goods and properties
were delivered.

REIIBEF KU
Revenues from external
customers

20135 20124
AR T AR FT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
= Northern, China 1,881,321 1,337,419
H B g Middle south, China 1,587,708 627,807
3,469,029 1,965,226

MEREE —INEREEITR SR W EEE
AEBERARFERUZT10%K A E -

No revenue from transaction with single external customer is
amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue during the
year.
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il 6. HWA » Kz REE 6. OTHER INCOME, GAIN AND LOSS
>
£ 20134 20124
= ARBFTT ARBFT
= 2013 2012
S RMB*000 RMB’000
5
5 FEWA Interest income 7,140 4,503
Dividend income from available-for-sale
AR ERER WA investments 6,146 1,412
SR A Penalty income 516 414
BT E) (Krita) Government grant (note a) 1,659 8,804
HEW%  KERBHEHUWZ  Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 496 5,323
B /KRR 2 18 B WS A B R Excess compensation received for Water Metre
w18 (KraEb) Plant area project (note b) = 146,876
18 B BB ARG IA Project management service income 2,322 6,000
fE 5185 %5 Net exchange loss (9,710) -
HAh Others 111 290
8,680 173,622
Kt - Notes:

126

(a)

T 468 Bh 5 2 B A B4 T AP P A
HHB - BT ERAHPISENZE
B BT AN T R AR SR 1

ANEBR2002F HER T FERAES
R2BEKEREEENZETIE B
201265R 158 « "EE B HKERKE
BEHBRBYE=HFI L MERZE &
I AEBEBRBLE=FBBARE
573,862,000 (BIEAEE X THTE
FGE A R#400,449,0007T) > HE
2012F12A3MBIEFE - ZEBEIK
BXER 3 ;IH A R #545,169,0007T
g A R%146,876,0007T (30
BREER%R) BREZE2012F12 7831
HIEFERERAEABRA -

(a)

Government grants represent incentive subsidies from various PRC
governmental authorities. There are no conditions or limitations
attached to these subsidies by the respective PRC governmental
authorities.

The Group first involved in the resettlement of Water Metre Plant
area project in 2002 for the purpose of obtaining the land use
right. On May 15, 2012, the Group entered into a compensation
agreement for the Water Metre Plant area project with an
independent third party, in which the Group would receive an
amount of RMB573,862,000 (including refund of prepayment of
RMB400,449,000 paid by the Group) from the independent third
party. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Group has
received part of the payment amounted to RMB545,169,000, with
net gain of RMB146,876,000 (net of business tax) was recognised
as other income during the year ended December 31, 2012.
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7. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank and other borrowings

- wholly repayable within five years

— not wholly repayable within five years
Interest expense on senior notes

Less: Amount capitalised in properties under
development

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current Tax
PRC enterprise income tax
Hong Kong profits tax
US corporate tax
Land appreciation tax (“LAT")
Over provision in prior year
Hong Kong profits tax
Deferred tax (Note 20)
PRC enterprise income tax
LAT

Income tax expense

B Ot B 75 R 3k M =
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

20135 20124
ARMFT ARKEFIT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
(83,874) (193,640)
(14,072) (15,880)
(20,425) =
(118,371) (209,520)
82,801 111,422
(35,570) (98,098)
20135 20124
AR T T ARBFT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
(297,472) (174,603)
= (276)

- (2)
(273,564) (198,257)
6 —

77,916 61,261
(1,116) (7,522)
(494,230) (319,399)
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BEXBELHS (HBEKHS])
RHERENMBIRAN - AEEBE
BELESRHS S ®ANN AR
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BREE2013F12A31B IEFEZSE
ARV AR BEBELEIIGEHRA - B
REBEBEBFSH - 8 2£2012F12 8
31HIEFE - HEFEH IR ER
FREAME16.5%:TE -

BIE R BE L - EESERER
15%=35%M 2 EHEH U #H =
2012F12A31BIEFE - ZBBER
Th¥E (b 5t FE SR A% A1) 15 % HY Bk FOOR E A
KT LABE - B E2013F12A8318 1k
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law promulgated
on March 16, 2007, the PRC enterprise income tax for both
domestic and foreign-invested enterprises has been unified at
the enterprise income tax rate of 25% effective from January 1,
2008 onwards.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has
been provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation
value, with certain allowable exemptions and deductions.

Pursuant to the rules and regulation of the British Virgin Islands
("BVI") and the Cayman Islands, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the BVI and the Cayman Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
companies comprising the Group neither arises in, nor is derived
from, Hong Kong for the year ended December 31, 2013.
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Pursuant to the US Federal tax law, the US corporate tax shall
be taxed at progressive rates ranging from 15% to 35%. US
corporate tax is provided at federal statutory rate of 15% based
on the estimated assessable profits during the year ended
December 31, 2012. No provision for US corporate income tax
has been made as the companies comprising the Group have no
assessable income during the year ended December 31, 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

income as follows:

Profit before tax

PRC enterprise income tax
at 25%
LAT
Tax effect of LAT
Tax effect on:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose
Effect of tax losses not recognised as
deferred tax assets
Utilisation of tax loss previously not
recognised
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions
Withholding tax on retained profits to be
distributed (note a)
Reversal of deferred tax relating to
withholding tax provided in prior years
(note b)

Tax charge

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per consolidated statements of comprehensive

BOFB BRI
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20135 20124 s>>|
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ARMTFT  AREFT -

2013 2012 s

RMB’000 RMB’000 3

=}

o

1,022,575 797,763 5

D

>

=

o

(255,644) (199,441) o

(274,680) (205,779) o

68,670 51,445 3

=

o
(22,478) (7,390)
2,780 1,275
(1,531) (3,334)
89 335
45 154
(11,481) (5,632)
= 48,968
(494,230) (319,399)
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8. MBHHEX &)

et -

(a)

R HE N 2008F 1 H1H £ 2/ & B
T i ek (BIFR Er[2008] 1125%) -
FREB10% M F BB ATE B #E
ARENIEERIEESE (HE
AR I 4 R SRS S G FT) 1Y
RE - ZBEERTRENB AR A
200841 A1 H LA 2K BT Bt BX &9 7] F3
YES IR B AR 2 R i ) T 48 8 A0 TR 40
Fr8%i o

R2012F THF  EFE R
BBUR - WIREARRFEN B A
AW AR BBRRTE DR EL & - $Emh
20081 H1H & & F K % 4920%
BE RN - Bt - RIBEEEEL
A 52 35 B 36 AT 78 B R R A% T 0 IR
FIBOLL BIVE R HREE - TR B #E
REEFRIIEE 7R201 2 #E D -

8.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

In accordance with PRC tax circular (Guoshuihan [2008] 112)
effective from January 1, 2008, PRC withholding income tax at the
rate of 10% is applicable to dividends to “non-resident” investors
who do not have an establishment or place of business in the PRC.
The amount represents the withholding income tax provided on the
undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries earned since January 1,
2008, which are available for distribution.

In the second half of 2012, the Directors reviewed the dividend
policy and determined that the distribution ratio based on the
dividend policy set out for the Company’s subsidiaries situated in
the PRC, with intention to distribute around 20% of profit after
tax for the respective years since January 1, 2008. Thus, a reversal
of deferred tax relating to withholding tax was made in 2012
based on the management’s previous and current decisions on the
proportion of profits to be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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FE A 9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR B
i
2013 20124 iy
AR¥TFr ARKFT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000 %
>
EE M T4 (Bt A) T3] Profit for the year has been arrived at after i
HRRETE charging (crediting): s
R8N ERNYE - BEK  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %
BB E recognised in profit and loss 19,695 19,220 >
NERAPYEIE NEAR (LR Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5
M - MENMREBTE capitalised in properties under development 273 94 %
g
FENMEML A Total depreciation charged for the year 19,968 19,314 %
)
B EEH Amortisation of intangible assets 180 201 5
KEHERS Operating lease rentals 3,713 3,584 =
ZE BN Auditors’ remuneration 2,150 640 &
RERBHE Allowance for doubtful debts 610 11
RS Y (BE) MU - (Reversal of) write-down of properties held for
sFABEE KA sale included in cost of sales (11,510) 15,643
HRARZMFEKAR Cost of inventories recognised as expense 2,090,027 1,065,670
BEEBEREANBEEZE Changes in fair value of investments held-for-
trading - (1,573)
BTN (BIERREARIA) « Staff costs (including retirement benefit cost):
BEEHM (AE10) Directors’ emoluments (Note 10) 19,116 4,823
e R HAERL Salaries and other allowances 109,534 102,088
VAR 193 15 3% Share-based payment 4,423 4,104
RRAE T KA Retirement benefit costs 7,615 7,875
HEMEMREA Other benefit-in-kind:
RETETEEMFBNYE Properties provided for the use by certain
employees 7,284 5,932
#BE TR Total staff costs 147,972 124,822
B ERPEEVEIETRN Less: Amount capitalised to properties under
BRI &5 development for sale (40,211) (46,741)
107,761 78,081
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10. EEREEHE
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Year ended December 31, 2013

Name of director
Executive Directors
Zhang Lei
Chen Yin
Fan Qingguo
Zhong Tianxiang
Independent Directors
CuiJian
Hui Chun Ho, Eric
Qin Youguo

Year ended December 31, 2012

Name of director
Executive Directors
Zhang Lei
Chen Yin
Fan Qingguo
Zhong Tianxiang
Independent Directors
CuiJian
Hui Chun Ho, Eric
Qin Youguo

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

Directors
EXEER
EZhe 28 T BRBAET  URGAR ZeENEF &it
ARBFT  AREFr AREFT ARETT AREfT AREFT AREFL
Basic Retirement Other
Directors' salaries and benefit Share-based  benefit-in-
fee  allowance Bonus contribution payment kind Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
- 655 4,559 37 - - 5,251
- 706 198 37 - - L]
- 665 4,559 37 2,190 - 7,451
- 655 4,559 37 - - 5,251
74 - - - - - 74
74 - - - - - 74
74 - - - - - 74
222 2,681 13,875 148 2,190 - 19,116
- 446 124 32 - - 602
- 671 30 32 - - 733
- 446 154 32 2,190 - 2,822
- 435 124 32 - 75 666
- 1,998 432 128 2,190 75 4,823
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10. EEREEFHFHN &)

B (#)

REAERARAITHRAS - AR EX
BEAREME HERBREEEITRER
ERERBNZHME -

ATHEREL2EAEEKLERE
A BARBRBRITHRRETE -

REZE2013F12A31BLEFE - HE
EEWEEAME

TEREHFMAL

hEmEaFMATBEEZ2013F12A
BMALEFERZZRESE (20129 - 1R/E
£) - HE2013F12A31BILFENH
B2EESH AL (2012F « H&4%
A L) EBHOT

HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Directors (Continued)

Mr. Zhang Lei is the Chief Executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chief Executive.

The bonus is determined by the management with reference
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
prevailing market conditions.

No directors waived any emoluments during the year ended
December 31, 2013.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included 3 directors for the year
ended December 31, 2013 (2012: 1 director). The emoluments
of the remaining 2 highest paid individuals for the year ended
December 31, 2013 (2012: remaining 4 highest paid individuals)
are as follows:

20134 20124
AR¥ T AREFIT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(== Employees

— AR KRR — Basic salaries and allowances 670 1,331
— fE4L - Bonus 4,559 283
— AR5k — Share-based payment 4,423 4,104
— RORAE FI 3K — Retirement benefit contributions 37 95

— EMEWRET — Other benefit-in-kind
— FTi (it 3 — Properties provided - 1,378
9,689 7,191

REF - NEEWES B R RS FH N
AT EAHMEREB A IMARE
B2 IR A R BERL A (E -

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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134

HZE2013F12A31B L FEFRER
B ThREE E2013F12 318 I 4
FEAA B RAERRE A A FE(R % F 49 A
R #528,934,0007T (20124 : AR ®
471,488,0007T) M B 17X B A M
#E S 5 #01,389,589,0000% (20124F :
1,200,000,0000%) MaTE » & P ERa&HT
FF30FT & & AN ML B 201291 A1H =
ﬁjz o

#H 22013%F K2012F12 8318 IEF &
FREABINSBEITERAE BAR
SEMTFRHYESBEBEYENTA
fi% o

il 10. EEREEHM » 10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

- EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

=

E hERSHFMAL (B) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

=

E HepmmHA T EHBAR T The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals are

% within the following bands:

g

= 2013% 20124

2013 2012
1,500,001 522,000,000 HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 - 2
2,000,0017%7c22,500,000%8 7 HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 1
2,500,001 723,000,000t HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 -
3,000,001t 23,500,000/ HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 - 1
9,000,001/ 29,500,000/  HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 1 -
11. KRB 11. DIVIDEND
WEHE EEFREETIREE2013F Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
12A318 I E KRB E Ei%10.8741L in respect of the year ended December 31, 2013 of HK10.8
(BERNARESSY) (20124 : &) - cents (equivalent to RMBS8.5 cents) (2012: Nil) per share
& #£172,800,0007% 7t (FHE K A R & amounting to HK$172,800,000 (equivalent to RMB136,870,000)
136,870,0007T) = Ik 78 1 IR B2 A JE fE A% in aggregate has been proposed by the Directors and is subject
RASHER - HAEE - to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general
meeting.
HZE2013F12A31B L FEA R A FER Dividend recognised as distribution by the Company during the
BRI EE £ A ARE24,000,000 year ended December 31, 2013 amounted to HK$24,000,000
7T (FE& M AR ®18,985,0007T) * HHE (equivalent to RMB18,985,000) in aggregate, representing HK1.5
FOTRAS A% 1578 11U 37 BA R & (A AN 2 &) % cents per share declared and paid in cash to the shareholders
Rt e B 220126128318 IEFE - of the Company. During the year ended December 31, 2012,
SRR E AR 6,720,000 M7 B — & B dividends of RMB6,720,000 were declared and paid in cash by a
BRARAIR S A A H IR R S A+ o subsidiary to its non-controlling shareholder.
12. 3R &R 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year
ended December 31, 2013 is based on the profit for the year
attributable to equity owners of the Company of approximately
RMB528,934,000 (2012: RMB471,488,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year ended December 31, 2013 of 1,389,589,000 (2012:
1,200,000,000) on the assumption that the capitalisation issue
set out in Note 30 had been completed on January 1, 2012.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amount presented for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012 as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during both years.
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AEBEFMARKENERFEURNES
MMERBER AL EBEENE
YD BR/RARINEREME - AR
BEWMEAMRNTE - REVMEMEL
MTHEB40%F -

AEBR2013F12A3MHEEBAR
#195,194,0007C (20124 : A R #
139,059,0007T) W& B W % + LAER
AEEERN—RBITEE (KT
34) o

iR iE & £2013%128318 &20124F
NRANBLEFEEEBAETNGE
HE2013F12A31BLFE #A%
FE (HEMBALTRITHNELHAERH
IRFTEERR) 18 - BB FEHEWEN
CHEFPEBRREBIEHEMENKEA
K #116,774,0007T (201245 : AR
83,546,0007T) * KEA R BEWELD
AR #30,186,0007T (20124 : AR
99,154,0007T) °

HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

13. REW= 13.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
20134 20124
ARETFT ARBTF T
AREE FAIR VALUE 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’'000
R1A1H At January 1 717,000 493,000
HE O EEEE Transfer from properties held for sale 146,960 182,700
HEAE - BEMERE Transfer from property, plant and equipment - 4,300
HeE Disposals (84,573) =
RERERN DA EBEED Net change in fair value recognised in profit
TR or loss 46,273 37,000
M®12A831H At December 31 825,660 717,000
STABR 2 WES GRS Unrealised gain on property revaluation
(FGFAREMERAREE) included in profit or loss
(included in changes in fair value
of investment properties) 41,251 37,000

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals are measured using the fair value model and
are classified and accounted for as investment properties. The
investment properties are all situated in the PRC. The lease term
of land on which the investment properties are situated on is 40
years.

The Group had pledged investment properties of
RMB195,194,000 (2012: RMB139,059,000) at December 31,
2013 to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
as set out in Note 34.

The amount transferred from properties held for sale upon
change in use as evidenced by commencement of operating
lease with outsiders included the cost of the properties held for
sale amounted to RMB116,774,000 (2012: RMB83,546,000)
with fair value gain of approximately RMB30,186,000 (2012:
RMB99,154,000) for the year ended December 31, 2013, based
on valuation performed at dates of transfer during the years
ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.
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13.REWE ©) 13.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
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HZE20129F12831H L F & - £ B
MALRITNEEZHERZARERE
BEEME BMERRENSERER
EME - BMERZXENEEHEARKE
3,273,0007T - MR EH s & UL A P FE
RO AR BEEZE L AKR1,027,000

JC ©

AEBEERTIREYENSERBHU
K iR2013%F &2012%F 12 A30B B A A
FTE ERBHERZITERAR (&2

217]) KRR BEH MG EMER - &iE
R2OR—RARNSE W EBENE LS
BEREEMGEN  BESENER - M
BE:R B A s At B B U E 5

BEDRAEEEBRAEHEREE
ENESWANFRBIEER  UHZE
MENAESKAE NIEREER - B
FEMEREVESE - XEEGEEY
ERNREBEE  REARNESSER
ER®Z -

ERFEERRENRIABEE - A%
BUEERMSABRERE - £LE

BAE—RBENERT  AEREZRE

F=NHERBERETHRE-

WEMEN2013F12ANFBERAAE
EVEEYCONNE

The amount transferred from property, plant and equipment
upon commencing of operating lease agreements with outsiders
included the carrying value of the property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB3,273,000 with fair value change recognised
to other comprehensive income of approximately RMB1,027,000
during the year ended December 31, 2012.

The fair value of the Group’s completed investment properties
at the respective dates of transfer and as at December, 31 2013
and 2012 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation on
those dates carried out by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited
(“DTZ"), independent qualified professional valuers not
connected to the Group, who have appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in
the relevant locations.

The valuations were arrived at with adoption of investment
approach by capitalisation of the net rental income derived
from the existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary
income potential of the properties. There has been no change
from the valuation technique used in the prior year. In estimating
the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at December 2013 are as
follow:

A2013F

12A31H

E=E AREE

ARKFT ARMFT

Fair value as

at December

Level 3 31, 2013

RMB’000 RMB’'000

R REEIEEME Investment properties located in PRC 825,660 825,660
F R =B th B AR RN AR o There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.
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13. REWE (@)

TRBEEERSRENE AL BED
EH (BRIRMEERABLK) - B
RIRBLHM A BERRE S BH AR B
HER (F1EZE3E) -

GEPBRRRP LR

REME MREEER
Investment properties held by

the Group in the consolidated

statements of financial Fair value
position hierarchy

RIRARBILR « &Y BE - NI £3E
RISk EME (FERTE)
Investment properties located Level 3
at Beijing, Changsha,
Nanchang, Jiujiang and,
Xiantao, PRC
(mainly retails)

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

HEFTEREESH

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

REWE

Investment approach

EXED &
1. BRMEE
2. ERIEMMENTRS
The key inputs are:
1. Capitalisation rate;
2. Unit rent of individual
unit

FTUBRSURDAEE
ERNFIEESR HWER

Relationship of
Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to

input(s) fair value

ERMElX - 1 F45%E BERELXER - JAEE

6.5% I
Capitalisation rate, from The higher the capitalisation
4.5% t0 6.5% rate, the lower the fair
value.

BUe NTEAGTAX BUleHs AnBEER
ARE2BTZBRAGTAR
AR®27TL

Unit rent, from RMB23/ The higher the unit rent, the
sg.m./month to RMB277/  higher the fair value
sg.m./month
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ﬁ 14. 9% - BERR®E 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
>
= HE+
= RigF RE EERERZA 3 1ES &t
= ARETFT ARETFT ARBTFT AREFr ARETFT
§ Electronic Properties
~ Leasehold land equipment & under
§ and buildings  Motor vehicles furniture construction Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Hiita)
(note a)
R cosT
201261718 At January 1, 2012 215,585 27,526 11,619 611,822 866,552
NE Additions — 3,711 1,792 110,662 116,165
BEATRHENE Transfer from properties under
development for sale 16,116 - - 3,658 19,774
ERABEHENE (Bfb) Transfer from properties held for
sale (note b) 4,076 - - - 4,076
HE Disposals (9,624) (2,598) (2,211) - (14,433)
ERTRENE Transfer to investment properties (4,135) = = = (4,135)
120128128318 At December 31, 2012 222,018 28,639 11,200 726,142 987,999
EXER Exchange differences - (6) - - (6)
NE Additions - 4,100 2,560 105,717 112,377
ERATRHENE Transfer from properties under
development for sale 25,408 - - 8,448 33,856
ERABIEHENE (F#b) Transfer from properties held for
sale (note b) 34,217 - - = 34,217
HE Disposals (1,081) (3,684) (651) - (5,416)
ERTHIEBENE (Hfztc) Transfer to properties held for sale
(note ¢) - - - (572,413) (572,413)
B Transfer 169,611 - - (169,611) -
R2013F12A318 At December 31, 2013 450,173 29,049 13,109 98,283 590,614
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14. 9% ~ BERRE &) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) B

i

HETHRET RE  EERBERFA TRNE Rt iy

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT AREFT &

Electronic Properties

Leasehold land equipment & under %

and buildings  Motor vehicles furniture construction Total ]

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 2l

(Hista) s

(note a) %

>

e ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION %'T

®2012%1R418 At January 1, 2012 27,275 10,486 6,617 - 44,378 %

AEEHR Charge for the year 12,903 4,308 2,103 - 19,314 =2

HEREKH Eliminated on disposals (4,368) (1,483) (2,058) - (7,909) g

BRI EMEREH Eliminated upon transfer to _6‘

investment properties (862) - - - (862) -

%.

120124124318 At December 31, 2012 34,948 13,311 6,662 - 54,921 =
REEMR Charge for the year 14,086 3,895 1,987 - 19,968
HERTE Eliminated on disposals (825) (1,723) (530) - (3,078)
12013612318 At December 31, 2013 48,209 15,483 8,119 - 71,811

REE CARRYING AMOUNT

12013%12A31H At December 31, 2013 401,964 13,566 4,990 98,283 518,803
120126124318 At December 31, 2012 187,070 15,328 4,538 726,142 933,078
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14. 9% - BERRZE ©)

s :

(a)

AEBERASEMBENDERS
EXEBEI Lz ([518l)) - RIS
2 AEREEERZEDE  HER
REBMIRG FHAERFEN T1.5F
B15F c ZEMENERB R TR
EIET AT RIS FHR R T ERE
8 - }A2013%F12A318 - A &% EE
EREEMEAMAE i REFHER
HEAARAL4,527,0007T (20124 :
AER#®51,611,0007T) °

EARAEREHRRDAZFWERTH
BOEEX(@F & AEK HERA
MAER - BREBTHEREHENE
REL -

HE2013F 128318 ILFE - BAE
EEHERSROMELEREREABER
IR EE A A R¥572,413,0007T # fEH
EWE -  ERIBBEABELEERIA
SBHARBAFER  BEREEETHE
FAHEZEREAEmETAHE RT
SHEEES - EASEMNRHELEYE
L& REBMEIRERBZEERE
A B AR SRR A ELE o

AEBER2013F12A31MBEEBAR
#117,355,0007C (2012F : A R
657,328,0007T) MIEF (BELEEYD
%) MERASEERN— KRR
B (FAKIEE34) -

tamE  BmERREBERE (TEEE
BYE) st MR ENGAFBREERR
NERERA T FEXRAEFE

HETHWEREF HLRERHBES

E30F R IEREE

STEIBTAEE 1.5F 154
T RAEF

RE 19%

BRERBEEREA 19%%31.67%

PRBERT RERYEME L IGUNT
- BRHEE -

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes:

(@) The Group had entered agreement with the eligible employees
in connection with the properties developed by the Group (the
“Scheme”). Under the Scheme, the eligible employees can use
the properties while remain with the Group for a service period
ranging from 1.5 to 15 years, the title of the properties will be
transferred to the eligible employees upon the completion of the
service period as stated under the Scheme. As at December 31,
2013, the carrying amount of leasehold land and buildings which
have been occupied by the eligible employees under the Scheme is
RMB44,527,000 (2012: RMB51,611,000).

(b) Buildings were transferred from properties held for sale when
the management of the Company decided to use some of those
properties for the Scheme as mentioned in (a) above and/or as
offices for own use.

(c) During the year ended December 31, 2013, 2 blocks of service
apartments under construction with original intention for leasing
purpose were transferred to properties held for sale at carrying
amount of RMB572,413,000. Taking into account that the service
apartments were still under construction and not yet put in use by
the Group, together with the same selling and marketing activities
being carried out for sales of those service apartments compared
to the Group’s properties held for sale, the management of the
Group considered that such transfer can better reflect the Group’s
operation to the users of the financial statements.

(d) The Group had pledged buildings, including properties under
construction, of RMB117,355,000 (2012: RMB657,328,000) at
December 31, 2013 to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group as set out in Note 34.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other
than properties under construction, are depreciated using the
straight-line method after taking into account of their estimated
residual values at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of unexpired
lease term of land and 30 years
1.5 to 15 years

Leasehold land and buildings

Leasehold land and buildings
under the Scheme

Motor vehicles 19%

Electronic equipment and 19%-31.67%
furniture

The buildings and properties under construction are all situated
on land in the PRC under medium-term leases.
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RETEESE
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

COST
At January 1, 2012
Additions

At December 31, 2012
Additions
Disposals

At December 31, 2013

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At January 1, 2012
Charge for the year

At December 31, 2012
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals

At December 31, 2013

CARRYING AMOUNT
At December 31, 2013

At December 31, 2012

BRHMA
ARKFT
Computer
software
RMB’000

1,703
136

1,229

1,337

The computer software has definite useful life and is amortised
on a straight-line basis over 5 years.
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16.

17.

RANEERER

B EIE A i) T (E RER B TE
NEEFERNEEEIFTAT

5
=31

AEBNFEMBERIBE AEFTBERG
NFA40F=70F FHEIR L b F AAEFT
EVFE ©

2013128310 » REBB K A
R #777,923,0007T (20124 : AR ¥
42,559,0007T) B0 fF A #E - LAFER
AEBMERN—MRTHE (R E
34) °

FIFRRRBIKAREL

KAFERLHIERNEB BB EFIEHEE
WS R E T E AT M AR — B KA
XL W20135F12A831H » ity
BT EI RaRETFE B - TEEIN2014F &)
TH#RE-

16.

Medium term
Long term

17.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The carrying amount of prepaid lease payments in respect of
land use rights for the lands situated in the PRC is analysed as
follows:

20135 20124
AR¥TT ARBFT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
102,638 28,731
813,499 250,461
916,137 279,192

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent payments for
obtaining the land use rights in the PRC with lease terms
ranging from 40 to 70 years.

At December 31, 2013, the Group had pledged the land use
rights of RMB777,923,000 (2012: RMB42,559,000) to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group as set out in
Note 34.

FREEHOLD LAND HELD FOR FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

The Group's freehold land represent a parcel of freehold land in
Taxas, US for the purpose of development of properties for sale.
As at December 31, 2013, the land is under planning and design
stages and expected to commence development in 2014.
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18. A HERE 18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS B
i

2013 20124 i

AR®EFT AE®F T

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’'000 %

>

EETIRE - EBER Unlisted investment at cost: 2l
Cura Investment Management  Cura Investment Management (Shanghai) §
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. ("Cura Investment”) (note a) %
([ Cura Investment|) (Kfzta) 33,350 11,070 >
O+ Design International O + Design International Corporation %’_
Corporation ([ O+ Design]) ("O+ Design”) (note b) =
(K&EDb) 986 986 =2

Q

a

34,336 12,056 o

=

3.

Kt - Notes: o

(a)

HEZ2013F12A31BLEE - &R
BREA BB/ ARBE1.11470 W B&Cura
InvestmentZE520,000,000% & i f% -
Cura Investment&fE R B AKX 2 Y 1L =
EEEMALLER - N20135F12A
31H » % & HCura Investmentf¥ #
1.833% (20124 : 2.245%) ° 2013
F AEEREMBEERTEFSER
B TEs -

2013412 A318 &2012412A31H8 -
EHREREIE B0+ Design 376,4500 &
f%0.4ZETTHIB AR - O+ Design B
SREFAMAIHAE - HEBEK A
IR BN AL ISR RS -

BRI EHERENSE AR BEM
HBEEK EFRR/TEEAEFEER
ABE  WENRHREH ARG AK AL
RERE -

(a)

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Modern Green
Development acquired additional 20,000,000 ordinary shares at
RMB1.114 each in Cura Investment, a private entity established in
the PRC which is involved in fund management. At December 31,
2013, the investment represents a 1.833% (2012: 2.245%) equity
interest Cura Investment. In 2013, the Group’s interest was diluted

after capital injection by the Group and other investors.

At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 Modern Green
Development held 376,450 preferred shares at US$0.4 each in O+
Design, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Its principal
activity is provision of energy-saving building design services.

The available-for-sale investments are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of both reporting periods because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors
are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be reliably measured.
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19.

20.

MEBALTHERAES{RIESEL 19. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND

M2013F12A318 A& B E 5 K
B & %8 A& A R #445,000,000T 2 =
ERERTFERBRNSES &L
{5 A AE 72013512 A31B A 2 ;A AR
SEKINIERF HEEEAREARK
1,029,000,0007T & 5F A 3 7 B 5E35#
?Eo

BT 4% ARM20,000,000EAER
HER2014F1 AR B KESE R
AR #263,229,0007T 2 + 3 {5 FH #E M
MR 27 REe -

USE RIGHTS

At December 31, 2013, the Group has paid deposits to PRC
government for auction in relation to acquisition of land use
rights amounted to RMB445,000,000, the land use rights
have been successfully bided by the Group before December
31, 2013, the relevant capital commitment amounted to
RMB1,029,000,000 have been included and disclosed in Note
35.

The remaining amount of RMB20,000,000 relates to deposit
paid to PRC government for auction in relation to acquisition of
land use rights amounted to RMB263,229,000 which have been
successfully bided by the Group in January 2014.

EERIE 20. DEFERRED TAXATION

T AEFERRNEBREHELE
(BfE) REED -

REEAN
b
NEETFR
Withholding
tax on
retained
profits
RMB'000

At January 1, 2012 (61,210)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (Note 8) 43336
Charge to other comprehensive income for the year

R2012512/318 At December 31, 2012 (17,874)
WS (FR) A (His) (Charge) credit to profit o loss (Note 8) (11,481)
#20135128318 At December 31, 2013 (29,355)

BREHMBRARNBRANER  ETE
EHEBEEENRBED TEE - U TER
s EmET = AEERBEHRON

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon during the years:

pES EES
RENE THEER BhEE ERANER ETARNE
LhEERD HEEE BE  EREE  NRBE REER £8 B Af &t
ANRETT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
Temporary
Fair value Land Write- differences  Revaluation
change on appreciation  Allowance down of on property  on owner
investment tax forbad debt properties  Advertising sales and occupied
properties Tax loss provision provision  held for sale expenses cost of sales  properties Others Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(61,446) 6,642 171,364 3,649 6,226 2,908 133,740 (25,124) 2,102 178,851
(41,088) 10,233 38,303 3 2,619 1874 (3,081) - 1,540 53,739
- - - - - - - (257) - (257)
(102,534) 16,875 209,667 3,652 8,845 4,782 130,659 (25,381) 3,642 232333
(21,559) (12,467) 39,761 152 (2.87) (4,782) 70,497 12,698 6,858 76,800
(124,093) 4,408 249428 3,804 5,968 - 201,156 (12,683) 10,500 309,133
— — — — — — — — — —

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statements
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purpose:

20135 20124

AR¥FT AREFIT

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

IR I A B Deferred tax assets 338,488 250,207
RIEFHIEE F Deferred tax liabilities (29,355) (17,874)
309,133 232,333
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20. EFERIE ()

21.

A 1A A AT BRI R 20 M AR - B3 8 5L
THRBARBBERERELERAE
E- AERTBEBEBRBRNATFEER
5

1§ LAT B BRZ Hf -
2015512 H31H
201612 A31H
2017512 H31H
2018512 H31H

HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

20. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
following unutilised tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses will expire in
the following years:

20135 20124
AR¥ETFT AREFIT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000

To be expired on:
December 31, 2015 5 5
December 31, 2016
December 31, 2017
December 31, 2018

W ARBRBELHIBEERAE Total unused tax losses not recognised as

RIRE R AR

BEF B ESHE - BH20085F1A8
1B P ENEB AR RIUGANE
KE AR B AN BT o 12013512
RA31B A EHPBEHRERFPIHF
BB AR 2 afEGRREEEAR
#1,174,203,0007C (20124 : A R #&
714,943,0007T) {EH RER BB -
AN S (B RE 7 I B (B BR By = RE AV B A
R ESA IR EERNT B RE
@ o

3

FEREMEL - R REAM

deferred tax assets

21.

13,205 13,205
12,981 13,337

6,125 -
32,316 26,547

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from January 1, 2008 onwards. Deferred tax has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB1,174,203,000
(2012: RMB714,943,000) as at December 31, 2013, as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

INVENTORIES

The inventories are raw materials, consumables and others.
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22.

23.

BRPEGEYE 22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE
2013%F 20124
ARM T ARBTF T
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
[DEN COST
F7) At the beginning of the year 3,570,940 2,615,635
B Additions 1,527,477 1,077,789
RERTIZE) T 128 Transfer from prepaid lease payment upon
BiEfNHAERE commencement of construction work - 290,446
BT REREREHEEYSE Transfer to properties held for sale upon
completion (2,029,764) (393,156)
HEEYE WENMEEG Transfer to property, plant and equipment (33,856) (19,774)
HE—XWBAA (K:£33) Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 33) (98,746) -
FRR At the end of the year 2,936,051 3,570,940

RPN AR E - BN F405F
Z2T70FZMH

BR2013%F 128318 AEEB H#E A
R #390,675,0007T (20124 : A R ¥&
996,635,0007T) MERAFEDE - LA
ERAEEERN—RETHRE (FER
Bi3E34) °

MR2013%F12A831H EEHEAARK
1,571,790,0007C (20124 : A R #
1,507,314,0007T) RIE R AP AFEYHETR
HAS R ER R+ A B RRT -

HEHEEMR

AEBOFEHEMELURATIRA
BUuRFE -

2013128310 » REB B K A
K #319,197,0007T (20124 : AR ®
97,313,0007T) W EHEME - LUE
RAEEERN—RBTEE (FRH
F£34) o

23.

The properties under development are located in the PRC with
lease terms ranging from 40 to 70 years.

The Group had pledged properties under development for sales
of RMB390,675,000 (2012: RMB996,635,000) at December 31,
2013 to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
as set out in Note 34.

As at December 31, 2013, properties under development
for sale with carrying value of RMB1,571,790,000 (2012:
RMB1,507,314,000) are expected to be completed after twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The Group's properties held for sale are stated at cost and
situated in the PRC.

As at December 31, 2013, properties held for sale of
RMB319,197,000 (2012: RMB97,313,000) are pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group as set out in
Note 34.
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2. BEEREMEWRS - € K%FE 24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

ES AND PREPAYMENTS

EoRWFBEaHEKES - RIERE Trade receivables comprise of overdue rental receivables.
Ehz - HPBETeREREER M Pursuant to the lease agreements, rental payment is required to
AIEEETHE - BRACEMENRE be settled in advance with no credit period being granted to the
DIRBEREEEER R GRS BER tenants. Considerations in respect of properties sold are paid
B BEET45 B A AT o in accordance with the terms of the related sales and purchase

agreements, normally within 45 days from the agreement date.
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20135 20124

ARMF ARMFT

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’'000

B SR - MR EE Trade receivables, net of allowance 15,892 15,133
AIREM P ERE 3K Advances to suppliers of construction

materials 65,262 81,167

HAub el zrTE - BB Other receivables, net of allowance 77,205 55,367

B LI (AR R Prepaid LAT and business tax 304,556 260,782

KRR IE B Mf(E (Afita) Compensation for Water Metre Plant area

project (note a) - 28,693

REEREIEAES Guarantee deposits for housing provident

ERERTR (Ka3b) fund loans provided to customers (note b) 4,775 5,099
467,690 446,241

Btat - Notes:

(@) 2012512 A31H AT = H BKE K (a) Balance as at December 31, 2012 represented the compensation in
RIERLETENRE - RELZE2013 relation to resettlement of Water Metre Plant area project. During
F12A318IEFE  REBEE - the year ended December 31, 2013, the compensation was fully

settled.

(b) EFPERHEIEABESERMERTRK (b) Guarantee deposits for housing provident fund loans provided to
EBEERRERAESERTL (AEL customers represent amounts placed with Housing Provident Fund
ERERAFARSNBEAEKE) e Management Center, a state-owned organisation responsible for
B UEREFMEREEIEAEEE the operation and management of housing provident fund, to
7 EERPEEMEBAMBESDE secure the housing provident fund loans provided to customers
BHRETAER - and will be refunded to the Group upon customers obtaining the

property individual ownership certificate.
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2 ESREHMERK - #EKkFE
NEZNE )

AT RRE&EREHRZERESHNE B

B(EESEAMERERBHESE) I
B8 B RUGRE AR DAT

1EAR

RBERR  2HEZRUFEREH
EWAEE  HILERE AEELER
RSB A TR R -

B R RBGRREREESNT ¢

Less than 1 year

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables based
on due date for rental receivables, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of each of the
reporting period:

20135 20124
AR¥FT AREFIT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
15,892 15,133

All of the above trade receivables are overdue rental receivables
but not impaired at the end of the reporting period. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade
receivables are set out as follows:

2013%F 20124

ARETFT ARBT T

2013 2012

RMB’'000 RMB’000

F1) At the beginning of the year 8,045 8,034
EE A HE Provided during the year - 11
F AR At the end of the year 8,045 8,045
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2. BEEREMEWRS - € K%FE 24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

N @) AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
Hip kIR RERIEHEE BT ¢ Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on other

receivables are set out as follows:

2013%F 20124

AR¥TFr ARBT T

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

F 1) At the beginning of the year 14,190 14,190
RE RN Provided during the year 610 -
FIR At the end of the year 14,800 14,190
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25.ZR&IRE RIT4E KT 25.RESTRICTED CASH/BANK BALANCES AND
%

CASH
20134 20124
AREFT AREFT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
RRFPREZBEERT Guarantee deposits for mortgage loans

BRFR (K ita) provided to customers (note a) 112,381 74,026

BERBEMENERER Guarantee deposits for construction of pre-
(Ki7Eb) sold properties (note b) 13,549 11,199
TR &35 £ 4565 Balance of restricted cash 125,930 85,225
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5. ¥REBES BITEHBREE
€ (B)

25. RESTRICTED CASH/BANK BALANCES AND
CASH (Continued)

Bt - Notes:
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(@) MEPRHZBERNERFEREFTHR
RIRITORBEHIRS - AEREHR TR
FRZBRARLERTFESYEMEAMR
BB R

(b) RIEHETEELEREERBRM
MERXMt  AEENETYERERA
AAGFEHE THRENRENEMER
B ERERMENERER - ZFK
ZAIAE ST EN T RE L ERE R
RA/ERANRNEREENERER
FEEREMHNER - ZERTRS
RIZEHEBEMRN TR R T AR
B o

(a)

Guarantee deposits for mortgage loans provided to customers
represent restricted cash placed with the banks to secure the
mortgage guarantees provided to customers and will be released
upon customers obtaining the property individual ownership
certificate.

In accordance with relevant documents issued by the PRC
local State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place the
proceeds received from pre-sale of properties as guarantee deposits
for construction of properties. The deposits can only be used to pay
for construction fees and purchase of construction materials of the
relevant projects when approvals are obtained from the PRC local
State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau. Such guarantee deposits
will be released according to the completion stage of the related
pre-sold properties.

20134 20124

AR%TFT AR FT

2013 2012

RMB’'000 RMB’000

RITEARRFHERE : Cash at bank and in hand 2,869,509 872,937
B RIS Less: Restricted cash (125,930) (85,225)
2,743,579 787,712

RITEHREACERASERENES
MIRBHHR A=A T EEF

Eo
N

R2013%F12 8318 » % B 17 K 8 F 7
R 50.35% (20124F : 0.35%)

R2013F12A31EMETEHR LIRS
FEUAREGE  ARBRBEEMS
TR EBRABREE ARBHEXRHS
BERNEE  #ESELDPBESFE
XA B 1 2 SN B Il 1R B AT AR ©

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term deposits
held by the Group with an original maturity of three months or

less.

The deposits carry variable rates of 0.35% (2012: 0.35%) per
annum as at December 31, 2013.

Bank balances and cash at December 31, 2013 were mainly
denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency
in the international market. The exchange rate of RMB is
determined by the government of the PRC and the remittance
of these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the government of the PRC.
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B U #H<E 26.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS

RETEHR RECEIVED AND ACCRUED CHARGES
2013%F 20124
ARMTFT AE®F T
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
Z S5 EMR Trade payables 338,660 449,589
EETER S Accrued expenditure on construction 581,338 409,674
H b e 508 Other payables 163,078 326,820
HE bR Other tax payables 216,281 183,365
ERTIE Accrued payroll 48,807 23,466
B e R HE TR Deposits received and receipt in advance from
property sales 3,570,342 3,143,215
H b & A Other accrued charges 7,878 11,276
FEAT AR B, Dividend payable 270 -
4,926,654 4,547,405
B F RN R R BT 2R BB K Trade payables and accrued expenditure on construction
AREMIBEEBERS - DERBERAEE comprise construction costs and other project-related expenses
STEMIEREERN o AEEE HIERM which are payable based on project progress measured by the
BRERERER - LERATA BN RIE Group. The Group has financial risk management policies in
MMEEARAERE (F) - place to ensure that all payables within the credit timeframe, if
any.
INTARBERR  BHRMNFIRER The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on
H B BRER D4 - invoice date at the end of reporting period:
2013%F 20124
AR¥MFT AR®F T
2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB’000
15 AR Less than 1 year 220,248 330,793
1224 1-2 years 51,598 86,108
2E3%F 2-3 years 47,245 18,949
3F L E Over 3 years 19,569 13,739
338,660 449,589
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g 27. EHIE 27.TAXATION PAYABLE

>

= 20134 20124

E ARMTFTE  ARKTT

= 2013 2012

§ RMB’000 RMB’000
-

§ FE{S T b3 (B B LAT payable 1,113,423 921,002

ST Income tax payable 340,083 277,395

1,453,506 1,198,397

28. BITREMEE 28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

20135 20124

AR¥Fx ARBFT

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

WITER - HIEHE Bank loans, secured 864,110 809,900

HEuEZ - M Other loans, secured 390,000 300,000

1,254,110 1,109,900
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28. RITREMEBEE (@) 28.BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) =
BEARNUTHRAERE The borrowings are repayable: gfijﬁi
B
20134 20124
ARMFT  ARMTT ot
2013 2012 3
RMB’000 RMB’000 pl]
<
1A IR B Within one year or on demand 256,910 109,000 %
Z1E - BEREBIE2F More than one year, but not exceeding =
two years 827,200 651,900 &
ZH25F - BT EBIESE More than two years, but not exceeding 2
five years 60,000 219,000 2
HRIB5E More than five years 110,000 130,000 >
5
1,254,110 1,109,900 "_
B REBARETFRA Less: Amount due within one year shown 3
B HARIR under current liabilities (256,910) (109,000) E
1 E1% B HAFRIE Amount due after one year 997,200 1,000,900
2013% 20124
AR¥Frx AREFT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
BED T HEEEID) Analysis of borrowings by currency
—UARKEHE - Denominated in RMB 1,234,600 1,109,900
— AZEITEHE — Denominated in US$ 19,510 =
1,254,110 1,109,900
RIpERRNE TRITREMEZRTIA Certain bank and other loans as at the end of the reporting
MIFE34FTE MK B EVEELR - period were secured by the pledge of assets as set out in Note
34.
MR2013F12A31BMEERBIEZEE Borrowings include RMB864,110,000 (2012: RMB809,900,000)
B A R %864,110,0007T (20124 : variable rate borrowings which carry interest ranging from
A R #809,900,0007T) © F F| E 7 F 2.84% to 9.53% (2012: 5.4% to 9.84%) per annum at
2.84%%9.53% (20124 : 5.4% =% December 31, 2013, and exposed the Group to cash flow
9.84%) AEEREMAXR & MEFN interest rate risk. The remaining borrowings are arranged at
RE - EREEATELEMEE 72013 fixed rate, the effective interest rate ranged from 10% to 12.8%
FNRAMENEREFNEN F10%E (2012: 16%) per annum at December 31, 2013, and exposed
12.8% (20124 : 16%) * &A& i the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

AR BENERER
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28.

29.

BITREMEBE &)

MR2013%F12831H AEBEZ M — K
EEE 2R A B3R AR200,000,000
UL ZEAREEYEER  BEFF
&12.8% * PA2015F3 AEE o

M2013F12831H  AEBE R — K
E5EE ¢ 2 Al fE 5k AR ¥190,000,000
TL R EHEYE - BE MEEEE
BEEFEMEI10% * M2015F10AEE -

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

At December 31, 2013, the Group has borrowed a loan
amounting to RMB200,000,000 from a trust fund company, the
loan is secured by properties under construction, carries fixed
interest rate at 12.8% per annum and repayable in March 2015.

At December 31, 2013, the Group has borrowed a loan
amounting to RMB190,000,000 from a trust fund company, the
loan is secured by property, plant and equipment, carries fixed
interest rate at 10% per annum and repayable in October 2015.

BERE 29. SENIOR NOTES
20134 20124
AR®TF T ARBTF T
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
BITAMSHIEFE Net proceeds on the date of issue 891,952 =
G Exchange gain (6,955) =
FERAX Interest expenses 20,425 _
ETHE Interest paid (669) =
R12 A31BHERMEE Carrying amount at December 31 904,753 =

M2013F11 A48 A A & & K
& %899.561%M A R B 17 £ ™|
f8150,000,000% 7t (H) A R *
921,705,00070) B ERE LT B EE
([EE]) - BEFHNEAE13.875% * A
FXEL - B2018F11 4B ERE
BEEBEE -

SRR ESFIBABRAE] ([F
Rl L BERER (FE) AR
RAWNERES  AARRREETH
B A (RIEHBIARKILRARIN)
ER- MABEBEER/ER  AEH
EROBITRAFER E A RESERAR
HigFHEMRTEE

On November 4, 2013, the Company issued guaranteed senior
fixed rate notes to the public with aggregate nominal value
of US$150,000,000 (approximately RMB921,705,000) (the
“Notes”), at 99.561% of the principal amount of the Notes,
which carry fixed interest of 13.875% per annum (interest
payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully repayable at
par by November 4, 2018.

The Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (the “Singapore Stock Exchange”), are senior
obligations of Modern Land (China) Co., Limited, guaranteed
by certain of the Company’s existing subsidiaries other than
those organised under the laws of the PRC. The guarantees
are effectively subordinated to the other secured obligations of
each guarantor, to the extent of the value of assets serving as
security.
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29. B EE (&)

2016511 H4B A1 - N2 &) Al BE A8
BEOD2I (MIERDD) B BRE
HER %Fﬂxi%moo%jjj]uL)ﬂmF
(aﬂimi% NZEBAEBARSEN%

K(2) *EﬁﬁAZS%%E&%iﬁizomim
R4BMMEEFE (RHEENEHEAE
FIEMM100MEESEITHE) HBARSENS
Hemmda) HEREZE (BTERE) B
Bl HHE ) 25 RARMFIE o

R20165E11 84 H Al Z'SZ\\jTBfHT
ElEZAEEEIS%ERE - BREAZE
N4 XE113.875% N &= B @ H(TE:
H) et RARMFE (0E) - UEHE
ETERERAMEBRESFEIN  EE
S TR o

bﬁ Mk &ﬁ (m]ﬂ&

/]

NN
)i

R2016F11 4B 2% » AR A AIBE
FRTHEASER TREEASEE DL
MERE  ZSNMBEEERBH CFEE
E) FEEH AR RIS (M) KREBEE 2 2Bk
MAEE - THADHIZRSE (11 H4H
F‘aﬂﬁ“ﬁ’ﬂﬂlﬂﬂﬁ?ﬁ) RN

HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

At any time prior to November 4, 2016, the Company may at
its option redeem the Notes, in whole but not in part, at a price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes plus the
applicable premium (which defined as to the greater of (1) 1%
of the principal amount of such senior notes and (2) the excess
of the amount equivalent to the principal amount and related
interest up to November 4, 2016 discounted at a rate equal to
an adjusted treasury rate plus 100 basis points over the principal
amount), as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but
not including) the redemption date.

At any time prior to November 4, 2016, the Company may
redeem up to 35% of the principal amount of the Notes at a
redemption price of 113.875% of the principal amount of the
Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not
including) the redemption date, with the proceeds from sales of
certain kinds of its capital stock, subject to certain conditions.

At any time and from time to time on or after 4 November
2016, the Company may redeem the Notes, in whole or in
part, at a redemption price equal to the percentage of principal
amount set forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to (but not including) the redemption date if redeemed during
the twelve month period beginning on 4 November of each of
the years indicated below.
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fEEE
B Period Redemption Price
20164 2016 106.93750%
20174 2017 103.46875%

EXZRR REEENAR
HERR N s S AR A AR (K -

REERTIR

SEEMFEINERD K EZET
B X #£4,292,000% T (4 A R
26,375,000) F MEBEBRFH X R
14.83% °

K2MFRAARE - REN2013F
NRAJMBHW AR BEHNARARE
934,024,00075 (48 & 7 153,196,500
TL) * DEREE-ERAREBEE

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the early
redemption options is insignificant at initial recognition and the
end of the reporting period.

The net carrying amount of the Notes is stated net of
issue expenses totalling US$4,292,000 (approximately
RMB26,375,000) and the effective interest rate of the Notes is
14.83% per annum.

The fair value of the Notes at December 31, 2013 with reference
to the quoted market price available on the Singapore Stock
Exchange amounted to approximately RMB934,024,000
(equivalent to US$153,196,500), which is measured at fair value
hierarchy of Level 1.
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HZE2013F 12 A31HLLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

30. BR&

HRE{EO0.01E LA E B

JETE

R2012F 1818 &
2012412 A318 (Kf:ta)

R2013F6 A 148 R

M2013F6 A14B1E 10 (ffeta)

2013412 A31H

BEBEITRER :

201241 A1H ~ 20134
12A318 X2013%F1/81H

R2013F6 A14B 5 1R

BT (Kata)

PR EFTEITRD
(Katb)

2013412 A31H

30. SHARE CAPITAL

R E S HER
FHE FETLT AREFT
Number of Equivalent
shares Amount to
‘000 Us$'000 RMB’000
Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each
Authorised:
At January 1, 2012 and December 31,

2012 (note a) 50 50 342
Sub-division on June 14, 2013 4,950 - -
Increase on June 14, 2013 (note a) 1,995,000 19,950 122,912
At December 31, 2013 2,000,000 20,000 123,254
Issued and fully paid:

At January 1, 2012, December 31, 2013

and January 1, 2013 50 50 342
Sub-division on June 14, 2013 4,950 - -
Issued by capitalisation (note a) 1,195,000 11,950 73,615
Issue of shares by global offering

(note b) 400,000 4,000 24,653
At December 31, 2013 1,600,000 16,000 98,610




BOFB BRI

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. BRA ()

(a)

AABREFEMEILE - JETERA
£50,000% 7T * 9 £50,000% & 38
f%  BA%1.003TT °

BIERRAIKER2013F67148
BPMEAARZE - ARREERAR
FEREEIETHNEERS
B A1000% - SFAXEE0.013%
JC ' AR A& E AR AN H 50,000
3 JT # %20,000,000% JT © £ 58
AN 32 $01,995,000,0000% & 5 &
2,000,000,000R% * : M AR A&
IR ¥ & £ 17400,000,0000% 18 © B%
RomEREMER  SEBEREN
f& AR B EBR A 11,950,000 TR E
B % & A& 2 F11,195,000,0008 f%
m - B2ERE -

R2013F7H " R AAIBEXRAR
BE REBAMEEL 2 ERE
€& - 2% 17400,000,0000% I {5 -
BR0.01%ETT - HEEATR1.49%8
TC o ARRFENEITRG » 2F
RETEFEELLZEEREHN

HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(a)

The Company was originally incorporated with an
authorised share capital of US$50,000 divided into 50,000
ordinary shares of US$1.00 each.

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing of the shareholders
of the Company passed on June 14, 2013, each ordinary
share with a nominal value of US$1.00 in the Company’s
authorised share capital was sub-divided into 100 ordinary
shares with a nominal value of US$0.01 each and the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
US$50,000 to US$20,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000
shares by the creation of an additional 1,995,000,000
shares; and conditional on the share premium account
of the Company being credited as a result of the issue
of 400,000,000 shares by the Company pursuant to the
global offering, the Directors were authorised to capitalise
an amount of US$11,950,000 standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company by applying such
sum to pay up in full at par 1,195,000,000 shares of the
Company.

In July, 2013, 400,000,000 shares of US$0.01 each
were issued pursuant to the initial public offering of the
Company by way of Hong Kong public offering and global
offering at a price of HK$1.49 per share. All the shares
which were issued by the Company during the year rank
pari passu with each other in all respects.
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HZE2013F 12 A31HLLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

31.

32.

33.

RKER G

REBEBBEFBERRER - ARRH
BB ARAS N —RBEH HBEE
EERERERNKRGTE - AEENTE
ERRZEHTAREBEENENREHN
RHES  MRFERSBNREE
TRARSHNEEFAFEN —EAD
HEtE - RRARBENFTEm S - AEE
MEREERRESELREMR -

s s B 8 2 A

HE2013F12A31BILFE - K& E
I BECrown Point Regional Center LLC
100% R RiEDw - EHABBLE=F
R (& A680,000 7t (FHE R AR K
4,190,0007T) ° WEES=IEE FF AEAIK
BEE (BEEMERIE675,000%T
(HHE N ARBAL,159,0007T) M IR1T4
#35,0003 7T (HHE M A K #31,0007T)
TEHFERBEEEENFRES L
675,000%% 7t (F8& X A K %4,159,000
JT) °

S E A H

201353 H25H @ ERETREEENRE
RIWEEREAR AR ([BERER] —
KHAKRELRELEHRQR) AT R0 E
ZE=pE o ARE AR %10,000,0007T H
ERMBARILRERENIKEERE
RAr ([EREN]) HEIAE - @
EREHHAFPERESHERES
RAa ([EhREEE]) HEIPIE -

31.

32.

33.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Company’'s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in a
defined contribution retirement scheme administrated by the
local municipal government. The Group entities in the PRC
contribute funds which are calculated on a certain percentage
of the average employee salary as agreed by local municipal
government to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits
of the employees. The principal obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group
acquired 100% equity interest in Crown Point Regional Center
LLC, from independent third parties, at a consideration of
US$680,000, equivalent to RMB4,190,000. The acquisition
has been accounted for as an acquisition of assets (comprising
other receivable of US$675,000 (equivalent to RMB4,159,000)
and bank balances of US$5,000 (equivalent to RMB31,000),
and resulted in a net cash outflow arising from acquisition of
US$675,000 (equivalent to RMB4,159,000).

DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

On March 25, 2013, Modern Green Development entered into a
share transfer agreement with Modern Construction Investment
Management Co., Ltd. EREHRKEEEFR A A (“Modern
Construction”), a company controlled by Mr. Zhang Lei, to
dispose of 100% equity interest in a subsidiary, Beijing Modern
MOMA Investment Management Co., Ltd. 1t R E R EBIREE
BAHERR AT (“Modern Moma”) which held 100% equity interest
in Suizhong Xian Changlong Property Development Co., Ltd.
G BREREMEMRZEARAA (“Suizhong Changlong”) at a
consideration of RMB10,000,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

33. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities over
which control was lost:
Prepaid lease payment
Property under development for sale
Bank balances and cash
Trade and other payables

Net assets disposed of

Consideration received:
Cash received

Total consideration received

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries:
Cash consideration
Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries recognised in
equity

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of

ended December 31, 2013.

20135
AR¥ET T
2013
RMB’000

146,652

98,746

217
(235,973)

20124
ARBTF T
2012
RMB’000

9,642

10,000

10,000

10,000
(9,642)

358

10,000
(217)

9,783

The subsidiaries disposed of did not have significant contribution
to the Group’s revenue, profits and cash flow during the year
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HZE2013F 12 A31HLLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

] 34. BIFEE 34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
E RBEMREERUTEE - tERASE The following assets were pledged to secure certain banking
r:E; EERNE TRITREBREANRE and other facilities granted to the Group and mortgage loans
= M B RERIZBERONER granted to buyers of sold properties at the end of reporting
3 period:
3
N
3 20134 20124
AR¥FT AREFT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
KEYE Investment properties 195,194 139,059
T E R IE Prepaid lease payments 777,923 42,559
BHREAYE Properties under development 390,675 996,635
BEHEWE Properties held for sale 319,197 97,313
M BB M ERE Property, plant and equipment 117,355 657,328
RITIER Bank deposits 125,930 85,225
EEERHEEARESERE  Guarantee deposits for housing provident
BERTR fund loans provided to customers 4,775 5,099
1,931,049 2,023,218
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35. EAR R HAA&E

REERR - NREBEH A TALE :

HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

35. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments:

20134 20124
ARMTF T ARET T
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEIHERNGEAMEERH  Contracted but not provided for in the
YEH B - consolidated financial statements:
—BRZEETMENTH — Expenditure in respect of properties under
development 1,515,033 2,813,346
— Bl - BEMEREN — Expenditure in respect of property, plant
S and equipment 18,547 79,685
— BAWE T F AR — Expenditure in respect of acquisition of
land use rights 1,276,221 20,265
— BRAWEME A RN L — Expenditure in respect of acquisition of
(K1at43b) a subsidiary (Note 43b) 10,000 =
2,819,801 2,913,296

AN - AEBE Y EEREE KR2011
FoRAHMBYE= IV EE EERE
B8 BEBEBEBEERBEL A5E
ERTEE RERE R FREIRBHER - i
HERERRESNFEKTE  A5HE
EREBBSBNEINREE - ERER
FE¥IAE RS RTBEK AR #E
TEE REEFEINZEBREN
ATBEEE M - Bt - WARMN2012F K&
201312 A3 R EMEFE - RIF
AEBEBYTFE=HM2014F3821H
FIVHERRE - St RIBENBEMRK
MEETRBERBEELCETENESE 5]
K T 15 TE ¥ i IR RIELBE] - B
1518 B &K% B B R =K REUH R - ¥
1B TR TIEEIME TR ©

In addition, the Group has entered into a project management
service contract in relation to a property development project
with an independent third party in June 2011. Pursuant to the
project management service contract, the Group has provided
a guarantee of minimum rate of return of investment of the
project and the Group would entitle to receive variable bonus
service fee if the rate of return of investment of the project is
above certain levels. The management has conducted a review of
the estimates of both future revenue and budgeted costs of the
project and concluded that the possibility of failure to achieve
the minimum rate of return is remote and therefore no liability
has been recognised at December 31, 2012 and 2013. Pursuant
to a supplementary agreement entered between the Group and
the independent third party dated March 21, 2014, after taking
into account of the current status of the project as well as the
differences arising from strategy and operations between the
two entities, both parties agreed to amend the terms of the
agreement, including the alteration of the scope of work to be
performed upon the cancellation of the clause of the minimum
rate of return of investment of the project.
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36. WARBEE 36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
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AEBERETROR/RAEEVEER
RIVHEZEBERR L NRERERHEE
* o RIBZFEARMNER  HERBXR
N RBHIE - AEEBERREERER
BERRMBTHREERBASERR
ANBREIR  MAKBEERBEEEE
HEAMENEERE - BFREBABHIR
BEFRRLARFEG  YEBEHISE
RIS HERZRER - EFAA - R
BHAMAAEBERVEERKYTE
Ko R4 AREHOERRE - X ER K
ERRBERERAORE -

k>
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REHR - REEEFROSENOT
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Ht

I

The Group had provided guarantees in respect of mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks in connection with the
mortgage loans entered into by purchasers of the Group's
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there
is default of the mortgage payments by these purchasers,
the Group is responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage
loans together with accrued interests thereon and any penalty
owed by the defaulted purchasers to banks. The Group is then
entitled to take over the legal title of the related properties. The
guarantee period commences from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and ends after the buyer obtained the
individual property ownership certificate. In the opinion of the
directors, the fair value of guarantee contracts is insignificant at
initial recognition. Also, no provision for the guarantee contracts
at the end of the reporting period is recognised as the default
risk is low.

The amounts of the outstanding guarantees at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

20134 20124

AR¥Fx ARBFT

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

ZIBER Mortgage guarantees 2,128,391 1,434,739

2013624 + ERETBE RILAE KA
EEMERBEAFR AR ([LLUAERAE
Ei iz ) RAEEHAE+F RERXLD
ENEERSMEBA T HRR B
EREEERBRBERAABEENEER
AI(TBEEEEER]) NHEERF - B
EEREEHMEEAREEE L IHHEE
THERRHER HELRZEMAER
BER%  ARFEEBCEHIHEAERE
EIEEEMN2013F12831HEERM A
BT RAEFBEAEREXERAEE
S RFEEINEREAEEEES
ERBER- Al XE5EEEERASZ
FERFAEFNERERTSHASH
RIS IERE AR ZE - 182013412
B31HI BT REE -

In February 2013, Modern Green Development and Shanxi
Modern Green Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. LU7EE X
HMEEMERZEAMR AT (“Shanxi Modern Green Real Estate
Development”) are involved in arbitration proceedings with two
management firms (the “Hotel Management Group”) specialising
in the management of hotel residences and serviced apartments
in relation to management services of the Group’'s planned
serviced apartments. The Hotel Management Group claimed its
loss of profits under the agreement entered with the Group,
the management of the Company has re-assessed the likelihood
of the claimed payment by the Hotel Management Group as
at December 31, 2013 and is of the view that full payment of
claims of the Hotel Management Group in the arbitration would
be largely unsupported according to principles of PRC laws, with
reference to the legal opinion from its lawyer. Accordingly, the
management of the Group considered that the ultimate outcome
of this legal proceeding will not have a material adverse effect
on the financial position of the Group, with no contingent
liabilities as at December 31, 2013.
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37. & HEAE 37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT 11;\':%
AEEERBEAA The Group as a lessor ;ﬂi
B
REE2013F12A31H L FEERK Property rental income recognised during the year ended
YIS WAL A ARE34,560,0007T December 31, 2013 amounted to approximately RMB34,560,000 %
(2012%F + AR™19,669,0007T) ° A% (2012: RMB19,669,000). The properties held by the Group for >
ERFELERENYER—FE_+F rental purpose have committed tenants from one year to twenty =
WY EENEEHSAREENHES - years with fixed rental. §
o
(]
RB|MEHR - NEE2EBEFHA TR At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted i
REAREEFKIEETA with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments %’_
as follows: =
=
>
20135 20124 e
ARMFT — ARMTT S
2013 2012 =
RMB"000 RMB’000 =X
g
—FR Within one year 32,467 21,073
FE_FEFRF In the second to
(BREERMF) fifth year inclusive 67,748 47,804
hF# After five years 35,195 37,984
135,410 106,861
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gil 38. BHE L B RS 38. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
- TRANSACTIONS
£
,E; (a) MEEHR - REBEWTHI BEE (a) At the end of the reporting period, the Group has amounts
= AR IR BT receivable from the following related parties and the details
3 are set out below:
X
S
= 20135 20124
AR¥FT ARBTF T
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
RELEZEFNAR Company controlled by Mr. Zhang Lei
B R (k) AR/AF  First Estate Service (Beijing) Co., Ltd.*
(Tdt=RE—E]) (“Beijing First Estate”)
FE—WERKE (bR) ARAF - 1,777
BR=E Shareholder
TR 1 12 % Super Land - 342
JEE SR A%E (M1aEi) Total non-trade balance (note i) = 2,119
RESLEEZEFNDQF Company controlled by Mr. Zhang Lei
B ERERRAR Beijing Tongzheng Equipment
([dE A IERAE]) Maintenance Co., Ltd.*
("Beijing Tongzheng Equipment”)
IEFBIEREREAR DA - 186
B S keniasa (Matii) Total trade balance (note ii) = 2,305
* FEHR AR &8 2 A A XS E *  The English name of the companies which operate in the PRC
HRE - JAREG o are for reference only and have not been registered.
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3. BB LB RRE (4) 38. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND B
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) EDE
e
(@) (#&) (@) (Continued) B
Kz Notes: %
>
(i)  M2012F12A31BERBIE S (i) Balances at December 31, 2012 are of non-trade nature, =
ME EHF EERAREX unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. The §
(B3R - RUEN: 7 IHE R E amounts due from related parties have been settled during %
F2013F12A31BIEEEEE - the year ended December 31, 2013. ,2
3
THERTIRBEE D GHRGIE The following information is disclosed pursuant to section %
16 1B EE - 161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance: g
Q
BE20136 6
128318 =
H2013F R2013F  LFERS %
1818 128318 #HESHE 3
AREFIT AREFT ARETT
Maximum
amount
outstanding
during the
year ended
At January At December December
R s 5B Name of related party 1, 2013 31, 2013 31, 2013
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
tRE—YE Beijing First Estate 1,777 = 1,777
TR 32 AR Super Land 342 = 342
(i) M2012F12A3MBAB T E S E (i)  Trade receivables from a related party at December 31, 2012
WRBEER 2R REREXK was unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand, with
BREE - R AH (HEREER aged within a year based on invoice date which approximated
HEIEE) RERA—F © the revenue recognition date.
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# 3. BB AR R F (#) 38. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
s TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
=
=
,E; (b) MEREHR - REBEE 5 B8 (b) At the end of the reporting period, the Group has amounts
= AR IR BT payable to the following related parties and the details are
3 set out below:
a
N
2 2013% 20124
- ARMFT  ARETT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RELAEZFENDF Companies controlled by Mr. Zhang
Lei
ERREEE (J12X) Modern Investment Group (Canada) Ltd.
BRAF] ERBREEB(MEXN)ARAA - 176
R Shareholder
TR 1 12 i Super Land - 3,140
EE S ERARE (BaE) Total non-trade balances (note i) = 3,316
RELEZFENDF Companies controlled by Mr. Zhang
Lei
b R E B T ER T2 AR A" Beijing Capital City Construction
([ EAk TR TR ) Engineering Co., Ltd*
("Beijing Capital”)
EREHETRERIEEGRAA] - 1,171
BRI (dbR) ABR2AA  Modern Enlightment Technology (Beijing)
(TEgRKRR) Co., Ltd.* (“Modern Enlightment”)
ERREEMALR)ER AR 116 116
IbRE—WE Beijing First Estate 11,907 6,779
b FGRIF R Beijing Tongzheng Equipment 643 232
HEE —MEREERRQ A Hunan First Estate Service Co., Ltd.*
([HAmE—mE]) ("Hunan First Estate”)
S —MERBE AR AT - 4
ERREEEBR AT Modern Investment Group Co., Ltd.*
(EREEEE]) ("Modern Group”)
ERREEBEARAR 1,324 1,324
P — M EREBRAF] Shanxi First Estate Service Co., Ltd.*
(TLAaE—1E]) (“Shanxi First Estate”)
IIFEE — M EREER A A - 4,172
e REEERE (JbR) Moma Club Management (Beijing)
BRAR ([EHEEEE]) Co., Ltd.* (“Moma Club")
e EAREREJLR) AR AR - 30
B G iEeriaEa (Katii) Total trade balance (note ii) 13,990 13,828
13,990 17,144
* LB E A N R X R E *  The English name of the companies which operate in the PRC
BRE - KRB o are for reference only and have not been registered.
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3. F AR S (&)

e

(i)

(i)

R2012F 1231 HEHBIHFE S
ME - EEF RERANREX
RR(EIE - BN NEERE
Z2013F12A31HILFEEE -

B 5 A R T SRR R
REMBRERKGEE - UTR
REBESHR REZAHZ7
B E 5 I E ) R BB T BRI
ARER AT -

DRI1E
1226
2E3F
3FLAE

HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

38. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Balances at December 31, 2012 were of non-trade nature,
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. The
amounts due to related parties have been settled during the
year ended December 31, 2013.

(i)  Trade payables to related parties are unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand. The following is an aged analysis
of amounts due to related parties of trade nature based on
invoice date at the end of each reporting period:

2013 20124

ARMTF T ARWFT

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

Less than 1 year 12,550 12,541
1-2 years 1,324 1,171
2-3 years - 9
More than 3 years 116 107
13,990 13,828
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HZE2013F 12 A31HLLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

3. S B RR S (©)

(©)

RER - ARE R BB (TN
TS :

BBLER

Name of related party

REREZRHNAF

Companies controlled by Mr. Zhang Lei

ERE-ME
Beijing First Estate

RS2 {R24 a0
Moma Club

i /e

Hunan First Estate

IEE—m%E

Shanxi First Estate

IEE—MERKER LA

Jiangxi First Property Service Co., Ltd.*

TREREFEHRIEBREL LA

Beijing Modern Innovation Landscape
Engineering Co., Ltd.*

ERRESE ([ERKRE])

Modern Investment Group (“Modern
Investment”)

EREXEERNBRAF

Modern Property Group Co., Ltd*
("Modern Property”) ([ EHRBEZ )

38. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with its related parties:

REME 2013
ARBEFT
Nature of transaction 2013
RMB’000
G ON 757
Rental income
MEEBREE 25,911
Property management services expenses
RN 720
Rental income
MEEBRREE 1,538
Property management services expenses
MEEEREE 7,542
Property management services expenses
MEEBRREE 10,768
Property management services expenses
NEEEREE 3,771
Property management services expenses
BEMA -

Construction costs

HEXH -

Rental expense

MEX -

Interest expense

20124
AREFT
2012
RMB’000

132

14,380

730

1,306

6,958

8,577

3,487

30

2,978

7,644
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3. BB ERARR S (&) 38. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
() (%) (c) (Continued)
)yt REME 2013 20124
AR¥Fr ARETFT
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB’000
—EEBTRHELLE (tR) ERAR EHEREREE 3,169 1,311

( AR A ERTRELE (ER) BRAR])

First Moma Real Estate Brokerage (Beijing) Real estate agency services expenses
Co., Ltd.* (formerly known as Tong Zheng
Lian Hang Real Estate Brokerage (Beijing)
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Co., Ltd.*
FMERBALBERAG (DRILE—DE]) NEERRLE 1,883 1,019
Hubei First Property Service Co., Ltd.* Property management service expenses
("Hubei First Estate”)
EREBPHHELERRA HEBA 254 381
(MRS

Beijing Moma Preschool Education Technology Rental income
Operations Co., Ltd.*
("Beijing Moma Preschool”)

FEBRFELEE (X)) AR FHEREREE 1,790 3,972
(AIBERBLEXELERE (it,? )
ARATF)

First Moma Commercial Operation Real estate agency services expenses

Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd.*
(formerly known as Modern Resort Business
Operation Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd.*

HE WA 136 102
Rental income
I RRIERE MEEERBEE 2,505 2,206
Beijing Tongzheng Equipment Property management services expenses
* RS R 2N AR X R 2 *  The English name of the companies which operate in the PRC
HRE - KRB e are for reference only and have not been registered.
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3.t SRR RS (&) 38. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
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(©)

(&)

BRR— 2T L EHEB AR
FBERERME3S -

HE2010612A31HIEEE - K
EEERHEN—ZEEREER
£ AL B2 37 & B 7R20104E11 H29H
I MR E R RE BT E
EREN—"EMmSEEAARK
4,071,000c % - ZIBEWHER
XEENZIEE TR EI10F R
FHEEZETZEES - H E2013
F12A3MBLEFERE A&EEE K
ZRSGERBE THRA KK AR
HATEGIARNER @8AA
R #407,0007T (20124F : AR ¥
407,0007T) °

B bl FE S BEES 5 SRIESN - 7A2011
F5H - AEBEBRZTERLH
BEERBXEES 8K ME
REE{E A AR®200,000,000
oo ZEXE R (ER20114F58 &
HiRE) HERE  BEFNEA
6.4% ° 7 78 201458168 &
B ZAEREREE20129F12
A3MHLFEEE -

(©)

(Continued)

Details of disposal of subsidiaries to a related party are
disclosed in Note 33.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, an employee of
Modern Green Development of the Group used the property
developed by Beijing Modern City Real Estate pursuant
to the agreement dated November 29, 2010 entered into
between Modern Green Development and the employee,
with market value amounted to RMB4,071,000, the title of
the property will be transferred to the employee upon his
completion of the service period of 10 years. The Group
recognised this transaction as staff cost and contribution
from a company controlled by the shareholder amounted to
RMB407,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013 (2012:
RMB407,000).

In addition to amounts due to related parties as mentioned
above, the Group obtained a loan from Modern Property
in May 2011, the Group borrowed RMB200,000,000 from
Modern Property through the entrusting loan arrangement.
The entrusting loan, which had been fully drawn down
in May 2011, was unsecured, carries fixed interest rate at
6.4% per annum and repayable on May 16, 2014. The
entrusted loan was fully repaid during the year ended
December 31, 2012.
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3. BB LB RRE (4) 38. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND B
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) [ITIHI‘E
M
(d) ATARFERR - SRHIFE3I7A (d) At the end of the reporting period, the future minimum B
ANERE R A ARK B BB T AR IR lease payment from related parties whereby the Group acts
HEBERIE as a lessor and included in Note 37 is as follows: %
>
20134 20124 a
ARMFT  AREFT s
2013 2012 =
RMB'000 RMB’000 3
>
ERE-—YE Beijing First Estate o
—FRA Within one year 933 132 g
E-FEFERF In the second to fifth year inclusive i
(BREEMF) 1,056 187 o
-
1,989 319 3.
g
RS e R 4R Moma Club
—&R Within one year - 730
1b T EE R 4h 2 Beijing Moma Preschool
—&FR Within one year 241 241
F_FEFRF In the second to fifth year inclusive
(BREEMSF) 302 543
543 784
3 B 4 2R R 4h e 4 U A In addition to rental income from Beijing Moma Preschool,
Hh o HEEE A B B 5 EETS 4 200 Beijing Modern has entered into a tenancy agreement with
2009E8 B6H T M E WS M Beijing Moma Preschool dated August 6, 2009, to lease
EETYECLHEE - H2011 certain properties for operation of preschool for a term of
F9H21H # F2029%8A31H 1t 20 years commencing from September 21, 2011 to August
BE0FE  BI=F4T  BFHER 31, 2029, with a rent free for the first three years and at
BN BE S ERSD - a rent to be negotiated commencing from the fourth year

term of the lease agreement.

() AREBEBABHFM (RAFEXN (e) The details of remuneration of key management personnel,
FESHNHES) BEBSEH N represents emolument of the Directors paid during the year
10 o are set out in Note 10.
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39. AR ETE 39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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AEEERHERNUBRASENE R
REFERLE  RARNERBLEBS IR
BB R A REAL R - AEEHE
BRERFEBEFETE -

AEBNEARBEREFEY - BT
28R29FT BB E REBEREMGRIE
THBENASURAKRRRIEE ARGRE
@ (BREHTERA - FHEREREEN)
BT - RARMNEARNRIBRIRITER
RS RARAEEAREER (B
EBTRARFEE) B -

E=THEMHNEARRE - (FRZEHNN
—H#n  EFEEREARAREAZEE
AERMER - WRBUEEFEFEE
EBENRE -

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings and senior notes disclosed in
Notes 28 and 29, net of bank balances and cash and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained profits. The capital structure of
the Company consists of bank balances and cash and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital, and take
appropriate actions to balance its overall capital structure.
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0. €@ T B 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) €M I AR (a) Categories of financial instruments
20134 20124
AR¥ETT ARKEFIT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH The Group
SREE Financial assets
Bk R e R IE Loans and receivables (including bank
(BERTEHSREIER) balances and cash) 2,967,381 979,533
i ERE Available-for-sale investments 34,336 12,056
cRaE Financial liabilities
REERAGTENAE Liabilities measured at amortised cost (2,674,861) (1,903,453)
PN The Company
SREE Financial assets
ERMEWEIE (B21EiE1T4548 Loans and receivables (including bank
NIRE) balances and cash) 583,106 1,584
cRaE Financial liabilities
WK AT 2N EaE Liabilities measured at amortised cost 937,511 1,350
(b) EREAMEEBEZERBER (b) Financial risk management objectives and

AEENTIESRMTABREES R
H Al fEUR - FEURBARE T 5RIR ~ X
REIRE  RITEHRERE - EH
R ELA A R - FEARREE DT 5RR
RITRHMEEARBERRE - &
FeRTANFBHRN S HEEM
e HzEem T AR ER R
BEZERBOBEHN T - K
SEEEEHZERBETEER
EL 1 ARE (R B @ S A U IR EUE B
Faht o

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
restricted cash, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties, bank and other
borrowings and senior notes. Details of these financial
instruments are set out in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.
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40. €M T H (@) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) £REKREEBERBER (&) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
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ARRNTES T ABREREUKH
BARIE - RITEHRLAE - R
TER - BEZBREMNHER RN
BB N E R A K A AR
B ZEFeRMTANFRRNENA
JEMisE - ARBEEERREZS
TRTAGENERR/BHEZ
FRRETEREREEARKRLR
% 55 2 b By BE B S B AU R EGE &

=R
5 E B

AEBERETGE ERTFERIME
ERZHREMEEEDOTSA
5 (AT -

R B AR R TS AR
HERRHBRSAR N LR
EART) -

(1) =@k

HRRITEBRTR - R
Re RRITEE RBRITER
F & AP B A RIBITRTR A=
KRB REERITHREFTERF
BEFE) MIBTmEH R HIE
KE) - MASEEEEAXRESR
EFERE -

AEENARBEMEERE
ZHRAMFESMEERELARR
B - AEEBR R EN BT
MITET AR NEPEATH
MEER - R BEEERA
7 B K R B KR R

B o

AEBEEARASRAEARRA
R RERR - FEBEN AN E
MEBESREREE—F] -

policies (Continued)

The Company’s major financial instruments include amounts
due from subsidiaries, bank balances and cash, bank
borrowing, senior notes, amount due to a subsidiary, trade
and other payables, and dividend payable The management
of the Company considers that the risk associated with
these financial instruments is minimal and will manage and
monitor the exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effectively manner, should the
risk exists.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose primarily to the market risks of
changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates
risks and other price risk (see below).

There has been no significant change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk over the year.

(1) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate on bank balances and deposits, restricted cash
and bank borrowings which carry at prevailing deposit
interest rates and variable rate based on the interest
rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China and
London Interbank Offered Rate.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to its fixed rate other borrowings and senior note. The
Group currently does not use any derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However,
the management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.
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40. £FTH (&)
(b) eHMAMETEEERBE (4)

mEEkE (&)

(1

MEEE (&)

M R GUKE

AT EREDN IHRIES S
HIRMRITEBRNTR - R
IR e MF BRIRITEENEE,
% LA K Bt B4R T2 SR B ) 3R TE
B (REBEFEFRTTE)
METE ° 27N R A EE# E 2
A B B A R B B & AT K
20(AEE (BUZ RRITIEEM
5) RITEB10MEER (BHRTT
REER R IF A R R BIZR S M
) REE AEERESD R
EIRITEE - RITHERRFR
AR ZR IR EH KA A

ok =4

Be 3 °

fin K = £ F+ R F52010E E 26
(RZBRITEEMS) M
B B S~ - AR
& B & =2013F12A831H8 1
FEEEN (HBRAEE R
TE) BRL AR
909,0007T (20124 : AR
397,0007T) °

fi K & £ F+ R FR1010E 26
(BRIRTTE R RTF KA RZR
HEEME) MABEME
HHERFTE  AIRNEEEZE
2013128318 It F E &
wm AR AR
2,152,0007C (20124 : A R
#655,0007T ) ©

BURE DM IR R HE R
R\ - BN RERE AR

HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(1) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been prepared based
on the exposure to interest rates on bank balances
and deposits, restricted cash and variable rate bank
borrowings at the end of each reporting period and
the stipulated change taking place at the beginning
of the financial year and held constant throughout
the year. A 20 basis points increase or decrease for
variable rate bank borrowings and a 10 basis points
increase or decrease for bank balances and deposits
and restricted cash are used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represent management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rate in respect of bank
borrowings, bank balances and deposits and restricted
cash, respectively.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by 20
basis points in respect of variable rate bank borrowings
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit (net of interest capitalisation effect) would
decrease/increase by approximately RMB909,000
(2012: RMB397,000) for the year ended December 31,
2013.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by 10
basis points in respect of bank balances and deposits
and restricted cash and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's profit would increase/decrease
by approximately RMB2,152,000 (2012: RMB655,000)
for the year ended December 31, 2013.

The sensitivity analysis is not representative as the
exposure at the end of the reporting period does not
reflect the exposure during the year.
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40. T H ()

(b) EREMREERTEREE (&)

mEEE (&)

2)

BrERR

N6 B R H AT it 1 A
ZRAEERR o KR2013F
12A31H EBERARNE
] 7 52 9 AR AN (B % 0K B [ B 1k
e ALt - WEZFHEHE D
o

SN Bz

SEEBNIREEEAAR
% REBRXIHUARE
B AEEBINEBHORSH
(B ERIERRERN L)
KETEEEMRAIHNUINE
FHE ° UINEEHER A TIRTT
RERRIRTTRE R - ARIAETT
BIINBEZRBRSAREAR
gL -

AEBUINESHENEREE
EEERBENEREARNK
EEMT

ETT us$
BT HK$

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

2)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risks through its
available-for-sale investments. At December 31, 2013,
the management considers that the Group’s exposure
to fluctuation in equity price is minimal. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the group entities is RMB
in which most of the transactions are denominated.
Foreign currencies denominated transactions arise from
the Group's overseas operation, such as purchases of
land held for further development and certain expenses
incurred. Certain bank balances and bank borrowings
are denominated in foreign currencies, while senior
notes are issued in US$ and expose the Group to
currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

EE =K
Assets Liabilities
M®12H318 M12H31H
At December 31, At December 31,

20134 20124 201345 20124
ARYFrr ANR®FTr AR®FrT AREFT
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
279,901 21,609 (934,045) -
31,999 - - -
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40. R T B () 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) £REKREEBERBEER (&) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

TSRk (&) Market risk (Continued)

(3) HNERER (&) 3)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

NEREER - RNA B AINE
TENEBEEREEAEY
FREEWDT :

ETT Us$
BT HK$

AEB MART B I EINE
PR - BEREREIMNE
R\ - IS T B B
BRIMERE °

TRFAINRE R EBRE
TEBERTAEEHEBING
FBAREERN5%H) 5 A
REEBNHRE - 5% R/ME
2 EIE A B AR IE WIME R
[RES R AR B E AR - RBR
EIEEUIMNEE RS IE A HE
HE G - GURENTESR
RIAIMNEFHER R BB E IR
B W& HREHARIMNEE
KH5% BB FEHLIME -

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

BE afE
Assets Liabilities
®W12A31H M®12A31H
At December 31, At December 31,

2013%F 20124 2013F 20124
AREFrT ARKETT AR®FrT ARETT
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
277,937 5 (934,045) -
31,702 - - -

The Group and the Company currently do not have a
foreign currency hedging policy but the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

The following tables detail the Group’s and the
Company’s sensitivity to a reasonably possible change
of 5% in exchange rate of each foreign currency
against RMB while all other variables are held constant.
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
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40. T H ()

(b) EREMREERTEREE (&)

mEEE (&)

3)

SMNERBR (AF)

7 B 1 1 R B BB 5 T
mF

FER 5
12 Cpid)
- EARBAEXTTRE
—EARBLETRE
- EBEARERETHE
—EARBLETIHE

TREIARREEE LK
BREFFE ©

FERE A
g COgid)
- EARBAETTRE
- EAREBLETTRE
—HEARBAETIHE
—BEARBLETIHE

AR ETTE L EBRN2013F
1MAET - AEBRARTIA
R R ETHE KRR SHE
APMTARERAEERAQFE,
Z2013%F12A318 I FE W
&g o

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(3) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

An analysis of sensitivity to currency risk for the Group

is as follows:
2013%F 20124
AR T AREFIT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit

for the year
— if RMB weakens against US$ (32,707) 1,081
— if RMB weakens against HK$ 1,600 -
— if RMB strengthens against US$ 32,707 (1,081)
— if RMB strengthens against HK$ (1,600) -

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to
currency risk:

2013%F 20124
ARMTF T ARBT T
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit

for the year
— if RMB weakens against US$ (32,805) -
— if RMB weakens against HK$ 1,585 -
— if RMB strengthens against US$ 32,805 —
— if RMB strengthens against HK$ (1,585) -

The currency risk sensitivity analysis for RMB against
US$ for the Group and the Company are not
representative of the exposure for the Group and the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2013, as
the US$ Senior Notes were issued in November 2013.



B Ot B 75 R 3k M =
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

40. R T B () 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) $REAKRETEEERBE (&) (b) Financial risk management objectives and

=ERBREE

MR2013F12A31H » AEB A Y
FrHREERBITEERAEEAMEME
B ISR T A2 W S B BN R B =
EHBEENSAEERR - TIE
4+ B AT EARARRARMIIESE
EREMEENREE - AR
SFTE BN RBESTE - A1
EERBERERK  BRITEER
Fr DARE{R SR EX IR #E 1T ) Uk [a] 38 HR (F
%o Wi ARBRSHMEHRE
=S EERE 5 K& EH Uk
K e Uk B 5 SRIB R AT YR [E] & &E o
EIREHTBRABRFT SR
TSR RIBEREE  WHASE
BIEEEANBELCR R EHIRRL
IR R ST AG 2R A AT ©

AEEE S RGN EE R R &
BEXEYF  AAZZERSBRE
ERZHEFREF °

policies (Continued)

Credit risk management

At December 31, 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
and financial guarantees issued by the Group is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statements of financial
position and the amount of contingent liabilities disclosed
in Note 36. In order to minimise the credit risk, monitoring
procedures are carried out to ensure that follow up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual
trade and other receivables and amounts due from
related parties at each of the end of the reporting period.
The amounts presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position are net of allowances for bad and
doubtful debts, estimated by the Group’s management
based on prior experience and their assessment of the
current economic environment.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade receivables, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

Jill3
=
bar
(e
i
B
af
|
<
>
]|
<
o

(o
(]

=

>

=
Q

>

o
n
3.
>

)
Q)
o

.
3.
=
()

o

179



B Ot B 75 R 3k M =
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2013F 12 A31HLLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

40. €M T H (@) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) £REKREEBERBER (&) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
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FERBREE (&)

HREHREERTKEROYEM
5 OAREARTIEFPABENE
BB MEARIBERMARTT
REER  EREFERSA/END
HEEEEMNT0% - MREFRER
HIR R BEEE IRHE - AR AIRIBN
RITAIBRAEEEEREEER
REMABRETNE - EILFER
T AREADRKEWHER I
EMHERLEME - Bt - BEE
R NEE PR HE RSB ER
BREOETRKD - ERERR
HRZERENYEIERER - MY
ENMESRERSHE  #EHRT
MEBTHEBERMEARNEER
RBRAER -FLEME EFRE
AEENEERREBERE -

HREFH I RERESFREE
BRTREEFRNRITHPENSE
BRIT #RBEEERAREA
fR -

policies (Continued)
Credit risk management (Continued)

For properties that are pre-sold but development has not
been completed, the Group typically provides guarantees
to banks in connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the properties
for an amount up to 70% of the purchase price of the
individual property. If a purchaser defaults on the payment
of its mortgage during the period of guarantee, the bank
holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding loan and any interest accrued thereon. Under
such circumstances, the Group is able to forfeit the sales
deposit received and resales the reprocessed properties.
Therefore, the management considers it would likely
recover any loss incurred arising from the guarantee by the
Group. The management considers the credit risk exposure
to financial guarantees provided to property purchasers is
limited because the facilities are secured by the properties
and the market price of the properties is higher than the
guaranteed amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies or state-owned banks
in the PRC.
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(b) SREMREEBEREE (&)

RBETE G EE

AEENBERDEREREBERR
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk management

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use
of borrowings. The Directors closely monitor the liquidity
position and expect to have adequate sources of funding to
finance the Group's projects and operations.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at
the end of the reporting period. The amounts included
below for non-derivative variable rate financial liabilities
is subject to changes if changes in interest rates differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of
the reporting period.
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40. €M T H (@) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) £REKREEBERBER (&) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

REELREREE (1) Liquidity risk management (Continued)

MEFY  BEREER AERRS

BRAZ  fOME 1536 BB3E HERE REE

% AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT  AREFIL
Weighted Repayable on

il
-
>
=
=
(=
>
-
=
m
-
=)
=
|
N
o
—
w

average  demand or Total
effective less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-3 years Over 3 years cashflows amount

% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

T8 Non-interest bearing - 515,998 = - 515,998 515,998
TEIA Fixed interest rate

instruments 13.81 157,209 812,343 1,057,528 2,027,080 1,294,753
FEIA Variable interest rate

instruments 5.31 310,694 500,089 170,723 981,506 864,110
BRERAD Financial guarantee contracts - 2,128,391 = - 2,128,391 =
M2013F12A318 At December 31, 2013 3,112,292 1,312,432 1,228,251 5,652,975 2,674,861
T8 Non-interest bearing - 793,553 - - 793,553 793,553
TEIA Fixed interest rate

instruments 16.00 48,000 316,000 - 364,000 300,000
FEIA Variable interest rate

instruments 7.30 163,636 594,957 201,702 960,295 809,900
BIERAD Financial guarantee contracts = 1,434,739 = = 1,434,739 =
M2012812A318 At December 31, 2012 2,439,928 910,957 201,702 3,552,587 1,903,453

EXRBMBEREQOFANEES

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
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contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely that no amount will be payable under the
arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood
that the financial receivables held by the counterparty
which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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40. £FTH (&)

(b) SREMREEBEREE (&)

(c)

MEBELTEEEE (&)

TRANARBTESRAED

FIHEHEIEA -
THE Non-interest bearing
EEFRIA Fixed interest rate
instruments
FETR Variable interest rate
instruments
R2013%12A318 At December 31, 2013
THE Non-interest bearing at
®20125128318  December 31, 2012
AREE

TREENEBRABBENAABER
BUARBRBREEREON REENQ
REBEAMETE °

B AR IR N A G B 5O
RAAHHERAT RS BB E K
TREBENRREREBERNAA
BEMRE

HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk management (Continued)
The following table details the Company's remaining

contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities.

nEFE  REXRE AERRE
ERRZE  @OME 123% BB3F REAE REE
% AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT  AREFI

Weighted Repayable on

average  demand or Total
effective less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-3 years Over 3 years cashflows amount
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
= 13,248 = = 13,248 13,248
14.83 112,609 401,667 1,057,528 1,571,804 904,753
2.84 20,019 - - 20,019 19,510
145,876 401,667 1,057,528 1,605,071 937,511
= 1,350 - — 1,350 1,350

(c) Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the Company’s statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of financial position approximate
their respective fair values at the end of each reporting
period.
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g 41. KA TF BT ER 41. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
>
= (a) ANRBIHIFIEAR L (a) Financial information of the financial position of the
C .
> Company:
=
m
3 20134 20124
< liiFs3 ARMFIT ARTT
2 2013 2012
& Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EMBNEE Non-current assets
R B A RRIRE Investments in subsidiaries 41(c) 750,926 =
mBEE Current assets
e B NCI QL Amounts due from subsidiaries 41(d) 5,688 1,237
JE Wit B Btk 5 R IE Amount due from a related party — 342
RITEBR MRS Bank balances and cash 577,418 5
583,106 1,584
mEaE Current liabilities
B NMEMERE Trade and other payables 11,882 =
FE BT B A B3k IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 41(d) 1,096 11
e A B 5 208 Amounts due to a related party - 1,339
EIRE Dividend payable 270 -
RITIERK Bank borrowing
— —F A EH — due within one year 41(e) 19,510 =
32,758 1,350
BN A EERE Net current assets 550,348 234
BEERTEERE Total assets less current liabilities 1,301,274 234
IR R Capital and reserves
N Share capital 98,610 342
& Reserves 297,911 (108)
et AR Total equity 396,521 234
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
BEEEE Senior notes 904,753 =
1,301,274 234
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M. KRB BER (2) 41. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY B
(Continued) ﬁ
i
(b) AR EIPEAR R 8 & (b) Movement of capital and reserves of the Company:
BE  BAHG  BiEE st o
AREFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT 5
Share  Accumulated 2l
Share capital premium losses Total §
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 3
=
=
®201241A18 At January 1, 2012 342 - (97) 245 %’
FEEE Loss for the year = = (11) (11) =
%
®K2012F12A31H At December 31, 2012 342 - (108) 234 ?_"
o
BB EST Capitalisation issue of shares 73,615 (73,615) - - 5
8 P ARARMDEIT  Issuance of shares in connection with F
listing 24,653 448,698 - 473,351 <
BIROEX Share issue expenses - (16,105) - (16,105)
EEER Loss for the year - - (41,974) (41,974)
&8 Dividend - (18,985) - (18,985)
#2013%126318 At December 31, 2013 98,610 339,993 (42,082) 396,521
() RMIBATRMNRE (c) Investments in subsidiaries
2013% 20124
ARE T AREFT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEETRE D » A Unlisted shares, at cost 409,500 -
BEm—TEMEAREE  Deemed capital contribution to a subsidiary 341,426 =
750,926 -
(d) EW () B A BFIE (d) Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries
YW (N) MEBARRESBER The amounts due from (to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
- RERAREKREEE - interest-free and repayable on demand.
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il A1. AR BN BER (#) 41. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
= (Continued)
=
z - =
= (e) BITER (e) Bank borrowing
=
m
§ M20135F10H « A QA A BHRITHE In October 2013, the Company borrowed from a bank a
- 18 7% B/ 89 & 53,200,000 Tt - variable rate short-term loan of US$3,200,000 at interest
5 FE AB2.6% % M BER 1T R % 7 rate of 2.6% plus quoted London Interbank Offered Rate.
B BFBARTMNBATLIES The loan was secured by a deposit placed by a subsidiary of
I - ZBR2014F 518 ° the Company and is fully repayable in 2014.
2. TERBARFE 42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
AN AF RR20134F K2012512 4318 £ Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at December
ZBARFIBAT : 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follow:
rEEEGRE
M2A318
Equity interest
attributable to the Group
At December 31,
EMEL/ EERE/ ERERR
RAEB R 8% A 20138 2012F BERARMR BHERE TEER
Place and date Authorised/registered and
of incorporation/ issued and fully paid/
Name of Company establishment 2013 2012 paid-up capital Principal activities
EENEAR
Direct subsidiaries
LERBBRAA ((REME]) EBRAHS 100% 100% %7€ BRZA50,000% T RERK
2007414230 BETRBRRAIET
Great Trade Technology Ltd. British Virgin 100% 100% Authorised US$50,000 Investment holding
Islands Issued and fully paid US$1

January 23, 2007

HERBEXERAR HE 100% TEA AMRAAKK400,000000T  MERE
(TEER]) (Hita) 2013597118 EHRAAR400,000,0007T

Nanchang Moma Development PRC 100% N/A" Registered RMB400,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd.* ("Nanchang Moma") September 11, 2013 Paid up Capital RMB400,000,000
(note a)

HENEERFHERZERAR HE 100% TEfR dEMBRAARE230,0000000  MEEE
(TEa#el) (Wita) 2013597118 ERRAAR230,000,0007T

Nanchang Xinjian Modern Real PRC 100% N/A" Registered RMB230,000,000 Property development
Estate Development Co., Ltd.* September 11, 2013 Paid up Capital RMB230,000,000

(“Nanchang Xinjian") (note a)
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42. TEMB R EFE (2 42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

DNAEH

R30I
Bt ER A
Place and date
of incorporation/

(Continued)

FRBEGERE
M2A318
Equity interest

attributable to the Group

At December 31,

20135 20125

EERE / ERMEAR
BRARMR / ERARE
Authorised/registered and
issued and fully paid/

TEEH

Name of Company establishment 2013 2012 paid-up capital Principal activities
BENEAR
Indirect subsidiary
AEEREBR LA BE 100% 100% J%ERRZA10,00087T REER
2007512 A28H BETRARRA10,00057T
Jiu Yun Development Co., Ltd. Hong Kong 100% 100% Authorised HK$10,000 Investment holding
December 28, 2007 Issued and fully paid HK$10,000
EREEIRERERERNER F 100% 100% i &R AR E5,000,0007 HEEBRES
R (i) 200549 A29H ERAAR%5,000,0007
Modern Moma Project PRC 100% 100% Registered RMB5,000,000 Project management and
Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd.*  September 29, 2005 Paid up capital RMB5,000,000 consulting
(note b)
TREETRERERERAR  FE 100% 100% &R ARK20,000,0007 REEAER
(Wita) 2011424158 EHRAAR20,000,0007
Beijing Green Project Management PRC 100% 100% Registered RMB20,000,000 Construction project
Co., Ltd.* (note a) February 15, 2011 Paid up capital RMB20,000,000 management
TRERPNBZELERARE TH 100% TER FMERARE1,000,0007 NELRIEARE
al (#fitb) 2013%4A22H EHRAAR1,000,0007
Beijing Green Power Commercial ~ PRC 100% N/A Registered RMB1,000,000 Property development
Operation Management Co., April 22, 2013 Paid up capital RMB1,000,000 related services.
Ltd* (note b)
EREE (Hia) i 100% 100% #MERAR200,000,0000  BREEERHAA
200646 A30H ERA AR #200,000,0007
Modern Green Industrial* (note a) PRC 100% 100% Registered RMB200,000,000 Investment management

June 30, 2006

Paid up capital RMB200,000,000

and consulting
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188

Technology Co., Ltd.* (note a)

March 22, 2006

Paid up capital RMB30,000,000

il 42. T EME R BFHE #) 42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
ﬁg (Continued)
=
=
= K EmE R
= M12A318
§ Equity interest
~ attributable to the Group
5 At December 31,
AL EERE / HREEAR
AAEB RIBER A 2013F 20126 BRTRMRE BHERK TEER
Place and date Authorised/registered and
of incorporation/ issued and fully paid/
Name of Company establishment 2013 2012 paid-up capital Principal activities
EREEEE (Hita) hE 100% 100% #FHERARKS00,000,000m  MERERRRA
200049A21H EHRAAR800,000,0007
Modern Green Development* PRC 100% 100% Registered RMB800,000,000 Property development
(note a) September 21, 2000 Paid up capital RMB800,000,000 investment and hotel
operation
TRBFETEHEREARAR T 100% 100% &R ARK30,000,0007 VESE
(Hita) 2002654308 EHRAARE30,000,0007T
Beijing Aoxinjiyuan Real Estate PRC 100% 100% Registered RMB30,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.* (notea) ~ May 30, 2002 Paid up capital RMB30,000,000
FTREREHEREERAF HE 100% 100% &R AR 60,000,0007 MEERRIRE
(Hiita) 2000427158 EHRAAR60,000,0007T
Beijing Modern Real Estate PRC 100% 100% Registered RMB60,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.* (notea) ~ February 15, 2000 Paid up capital RMB60,000,000  and investment
ERRBUARRELR) hE 55% 55% s fMEAARE3,000,0007 SR Y&
BRAA ([EHRRRH]) 2011647198 EHRAARE3,000,0007
(Hitc)
Modern Oupulasi Technology PRC 55% 55% Registered RMB3,000,000 Technology development
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.* ("Modern April 19, 2011 Paid up capital RMB3,000,000 and consulting
Oupulasi”) (note c)
FTRREEHEREERAF i 100% 100% HMERARES69,000000T  MEEE
(Hiita) 20014 11A13H EHRAARES69,000,0007T
Beijing Dongjun Real Estate PRC 100% 100% Registered RMB569,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.* (notea) ~ November 13, 2001 Paid up capital RMB569,000,000
MBNLRRENBRERRA  PE 100% 100% &R AR 30,000,0007 SR Y&
(Hiita) 2006634228 EHRA AR 30,000,000
New Power (Beijing) Architectural ~ PRC 100% 100% Registered RMB30,000,000 Technology development

and consulting
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Ltd.* (note a)

January 27, 2010

Paid up capital RMB100,000,000

42. T EMB A RFE (&) 42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES Tk
(Continued) EDE
i
rEBESRE
M12A318
Equity interest %
attributable to the Group 5
At December 31, a
HRAL/ EERA/ ERERR 5
AAEHE EATE YR 0135 2012F BRARAR/RARK 223 &
Place and date Authorised/registered and ,:i
of incorporation/ issued and fully paid/ %’_
Name of Company establishment 2013 2012 paid-up capital Principal activities =
>
IEERAEERBRAR HE 100% 100% HMEARARE190,000000T  MEER g
(Hista) 200748R 16H ik AR 190,000,0007T &
Shanxi Modern Green PRC 100% 100% Registered RMB 190,000,000 Property development :
Development Co., Ltd.* (notea) ~ August 16, 2007 Paid up capital RMB190,000,000 %
o
WAERMEFHEREERRR E 100% 100% #HMERARE50,000,0000  WERE
(Hita) 2007487 16H EHIRAARE150,000,0007T
Shanxi Modern Green Real Estate  PRC 100% 100% Registered RMB150,000,000 Property development
Development* (note a) August 16, 2007 Paid up capital RMB150,000,000
BREZX (M) BRAR (Hita) $E 100% 100% #FMERARE200,000,0000  WERE
200597 14H B SiRA AR #200,000,0007C
Hunan Modern Green PRC 100% 100% Registered RMB200,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.* (note a)  September 14, 2005 Paid up capital RMB200,000,000
IRERBHEZERAA HE 100% 100% HERAR%180,000,0000  MERE
(Kiita) 2009%12A22H EHRAAR%180,000,0007
Jiangxi Modern Green PRC 100% 100% Registered RMB180,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.* (note a) ~ December 22, 2009 Paid up capital RMB180,000,000
NIEBEXBRAR (Kita) +E 100% 100% sHERARY140,000,0000  WERE
2010612A22H B R AR #140,000,0007
Jiujiang Moma Development Co.,  PRC 100% 100% Registered RMB140,000,000 Property development
Ltd.* (note a) December 22, 2010 Paid up capital RMB140,000,000
MLBEESXBRAR (Hia) HH 100% 100% &R ARY100,000,0000 — WERE
2010%1A27H E#RA AR #100,000,0007
Hubei Wanxing Development Co.,  PRC 100% 100% Registered RMB 100,000,000 Property development
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(@) ZEARBATEAERA

H?

=i

(b) ZEAFHR/EIERT e

4

(0 EBREFuHR—RPIGERRF -

* EPEEER N AR RS EEHS

Z - WAREL °

H# 42. TEMB R AFE (&) 42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
ﬁg (Continued)
=
g AEBEERA
% M2A31A
= Equity interest
3 attributable to the Group
S At December 31,
« KL, EERE / EMERR
AAER RIBER B 2013F 20126 BRIRAR BHERK TEER
Place and date Authorised/registered and
of incorporation/ issued and fully paid/
Name of Company establishment 2013 2012 paid-up capital Principal activities
ZEERGE (KHE) 2R FEERESM 100% 100% 100%E %47 RETHRIN MEER
BRARF 20124 10A15H BRER - BHEFERI00ET
America Modern Green Texas, US 100% 100% 100% of issued and outstanding ~ Property development
Development (Houston), LLC October 15, 2012 membership interest in
consideration at an aggregate
contribution of US$100
IRERKEREACERER  H&E 100% TER EMEAARE30,000,0007T NEERREHERE
NF (Hath) 2013F12A3H EHRAAR30,000,0007T E®
(Hrzt2)
Beijing Modern Green Investment ~ PRC 100% N/A" Registered RMB30,000,000 Property development
Fund Management Co. Ltd.* December 03, 2013 Paid up capital RMB30,000,000 and real estate
(note b) (note 2) investment fund
REEREHEEERAA HE 100% NEfR ZERARE200,000,0007 NEER
(Hiitb) 2013%12A23H EHRA AR 200,000,0007
Wuhan Modern Green PRC 100% N/A Registered RMB200,000,000 Property development
development Co., Ltd* (note b) December 23, 2013 Paid up capital RMB200,000,000
HtaE - Notes:

(@) These companies are PRC limited liability companies.

(b) These companies are wholly foreign-owned companies.

(c)  Modern Oupulasi is a sino-foreign joint venture company.

* The English names of the companies which operate in the PRC are

for reference only and have not been registered.

ERFINESAA/UARERENEE
BREAZEZWBLRAR -EZRS
AROLEMMB AR SEBARER‘Z

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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HZE2013F12A31H LLFE For the year ended December 31, 2013

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

43.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the end of
the year or during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority
of these subsidiaries operate in either US or Hong Kong. The
principal activities of these subsidiaries are either investment
holding or inactive.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a)

On January 15, 2014, the Company entered into
purchase agreement in connection with the issue of
RMB1,100,000,000 of 11% senior notes due 2017. The
estimated net proceeds of the notes issue, after deduction
of underwriting commissions, amounted to approximately
RMB1,080,000,000 and the Company intended to use the
net proceeds from the notes issue to fund existing and new
property projects (including development costs and land
acquisition costs) and for general corporate purposes.

Pursuant to the agreement dated on December 8, 2013
entered between Modern Green Development and
Modern Construction Investment Management Co.,
Ltd., a company controlled by Mr. Zhang Lei, Modern
Green Development agreed to purchase the entire equity
interest of Modern Moma which held 60% equity interest
in Suizhong Changlong in consideration amounted to
approximately RMB137,420,000, being the equity interest
of RMB10,000,000 and the outstanding shareholder loan in
aggregate of approximately RMB127,420,000. The principal
activity of Suizhong Changlong is property development.
The transaction has been completed in January 2014.
Details of the acquisition are set out in the Company's
circular dated January 9, 2014.

The Group is in the process of assessing the fair value of
the identified assets and liabilities of the acquiree, therefore
the financial effect of the acquisition is not presented.

Pursuant to the agreement dated March 18, 2014 entered
into between the Group and AVIC Trust Co., Ltd., the
Group agreed to dispose 35% equity interest in each of
Nanchang Moma and Nanchang Xinjian, at consideration
of RMB140,000,000 and RMB80,500,000, respectively.
In addition, the Group agreed to grant to AVIC Trust Co.
Ltd. a put option to sell 35% equity interest in each of
Nanchang Moma and Nanchang Xinjian at the fair value of
the respective equity interest when certain conditions are
met. Details of the disposals are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated March 18, 2014.
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RESULT

Revenue

Profit before taxation
Income taxes expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earning per share (basic),
RMB cents

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

BZ12A31AILEE
For the year ended 31 December
2013%F 20124 20114 20104
ARMEELT ARKEET ARKEET ARKEET
2013 2012 2011 2010

RMB million RMB million  RMB million ~ RMB million

3,469 1,965 3,153 1,548
1,022 798 965 467
(494) (320) (521) (219)
528 478 444 248
529 471 432 235
(1) 7 12 13
528 478 444 248
38.1 393 36.0 19.6
11,053 8,391 7,920 7,781
(8,582) (6,891) (6,845) (6,656)
2,471 1,500 1,075 1,125
2,472 1,501 1,047 1,072
(1) (1) 28 53
2,471 1,500 1,075 1,125
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